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|. Letter to Shareholders

Dear shareholders,

As the Year of the Rabbit draws to a close, we would like to express our heartfelt
gratitude to all shareholders for your unwavering support and encouragement over the
past year. On behalf of the board of directors, | extend our deepest respect and
appreciation to each and every one of you.

Over the past year, the global economy has emerged from the pandemic crisis, but
inflation caused by loose monetary policies and the Russia-Ukraine war has yet to be fully
resolved. The Federal Reserve in the United States has significantly raised interest rates to
combat inflation, which has had some effect in reducing price inflation, but interest rates
remain high and have not yet begun to decline, causing concerns about the economic
outlook. Furthermore, ongoing conflicts such as the Israel-Palestine conflict could
exacerbate geopolitical instability and affect economic development. In the Asian region,
countries such as China, South Korea, Vietnam, and Hong Kong have experienced property
market declines and significant drops in housing prices due to inflation and soaring
interest rates. While domestic real estate prices have not shown significant declines, the
government has been strengthening regulations, as evidenced by the Legislative Yuan's
passage of the "Property Tax Amendment Act" (property hoarding tax 2.0) on December
19, 2023, demonstrating the government's determination to tighten property controls.
Despite short-term measures such as the New Qing An Scheme to assist young people in
buying homes, the property market saw a death cross signal in the third quarter of 2023,
with the number of new construction projects falling below the number of licenses issued,
indicating a significant decline in the volume of presale home transactions expected next
year. In the face of global economic uncertainty and domestic regulatory challenges,
coupled with the gradual cancellation of Taiwan's preferential treatment under the China-
ECFA agreement, the outlook for the domestic real estate industry next year is not
optimistic, and we must be even more cautious in our approach.

1.1. Performance of Enterprise:
We hereby report to our shareholders on the results of operations in 2023.
Consolidated revenue of Hocheng Co., Ltd. in 2023

Iltem Revenue
Operating income. | 4,870,787 | thousand dollars (net)

Operating gross profit. | 1,200,166 | thousand dollars

Operating profit. -7,538 | thousand dollars
Net income after tax. 22,077 | thousand dollars
Earnings per share. 0.06 | dollars

1.2. Outline of 2023Annual Business Plan

I Brand Management and Development: Since its inception, the company has progressed from
humble beginnings to domestic listing, from establishing roots domestically to expanding
internationally, all achievements made through collective efforts. It is our current shared goal to
further enhance the brilliance of the HCG brand, as stated by Group Chairman Qiu Lijian during his
participation in the "Oriole Lifestyle - H! OPEN Exhibition". He expressed a keen interest in the
design of the exhibition activities and hopes that through this exhibition, the brand can attract the
attention of contemporary consumer groups and become more youthful. The company established a

-1-



Brand Management Center in 2024, aiming to integrate domestic and foreign resources and rethink

the direction of the company's brand development. We also hope that our colleagues will actively

participate and assist in various ways to ensure that HCG becomes not only a trustworthy company

on its way to a century of excellence but also a high-value brand company full of vitality and

innovation.

II. Diversified Development of New Materials and Technologies: The sanitary product industry is

already mature, so it is crucial to research which materials or new technologies can be introduced to

enhance product functionality, quality, and reduce production costs. This can minimize resource

consumption and provide benefits to consumers, the company, and employees alike. In recent years,

in terms of composite and advanced ceramic products, several products like the LAZULI carbon

fiber frog shoes have been developed and well-received. We aim to apply these newly developed

materials and technologies to evaluate their potential in various industries and new product

development, thereby expanding our industry and product categories. In terms of advanced ceramic

product development, in addition to the already developed and sold safety protection and dental

materials, we plan to continue focusing on products related to national defense industries and

evaluate their applicability to the development of other industrial products.

III. Towards ESG Goals: With the establishment of the Taiwan Carbon Exchange, the first

international carbon credits were listed for trading on December 22, 2023. Regulations and trends

are moving towards carbon reduction goals. We hope that companies can achieve carbon neutrality

goals while balancing industry growth and development in accordance with national policies. In

2024, the company will continue to improve and complete the "Sustainability Report". We will

adhere to an enterprise culture of symbiosis with the Earth, sharing with humanity, co-creating with

society, and benefiting everyone, actively promoting energy conservation, reducing consumption,

carbon reduction, and other sustainable environmental norms, fulfilling our corporate responsibility

to society.

I1I.. Future Company Development Strategies:

L. Actively develop markets and channels to achieve annual business targets.

II Strengthen logistics management, diversify supply chain risks, and expand the utilization of
company funds flow.

Il . Accelerate the development of new products and technologies to enhance market
competitiveness.

IV Strengthen advertising and marketing to increase market share.

V Enhance talent training and implement performance management.

VI.Implement ISO quality, information security, and environmental policies.

VII.Strengthen cost budget control and implement unit cost management.

VIIComplete the implementation of the "Sustainability Report" policy.

2023 marked the 92nd anniversary of HCG Group. The company has always adhered to the spirit
of taking from society and giving back to society, paying close attention to the development of
Taiwan's ceramic industry and modern ceramics. Since the establishment of the Golden Ceramic
Award in 1992, seven competitions have been held, each attracting hundreds of entries. Through the
Golden Ceramic Award, we aim to encourage outstanding artistic talents and stimulate the
improvement of the ceramic industry. In 2023, the company opened the HCG Art Collection
Center, showcasing outstanding ceramic artworks from the Golden Ceramic Award domestically
and internationally. We hope that through this exhibition space, we can honor creators, encourage
the cultivation of more innovative and traditional craft techniques, and continue to showcase the
beauty of Taiwan's ceramics. Finally, we hope that all employees can continue to grow with the
company, adhere to the concept of sustainable development, constantly seek innovation and change,
adapt to the rapidly changing trends in economic development, and believe that with the efforts of
all colleagues, we can strive for excellence and create a new page, making the company a perennial
enterprise of sustainable development.

In conclusion, we sincerely wish all shareholders good health and prosperity. Thank you
all!

Chairman: Chiu Li-Chien
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I1. An Introduction to Hocheng Corporation
(1) Date of creation: 1931/12/17

(2) Date of establishment: 1963/04/15

(3) Our manufacturing business is as follows:

1. Sanitary ceramics and its attachments, tiles, ceramic toys, sand wheels, fine ceramics,
electronic ceramics, voltage insulators, bricks, ceramic table wares, ceramic containers,
artistic ceramic products, refractory materials, heat insulating materials, bathroom
appliances (including cosmetic mirrors, paper towel holders, soap dishes, mug holders,
towel rings/racks, clothes hooks, makeup plates, ashtrays, etc.), and other kiln ceramics.

2. water-supply copper wares, milling tubes, vanishes, enamel products and other fabrication
accessories.

3. Electric water heaters, water boilers, water dispensers, water flushers, water filters,
bathroom dryers, air purifiers, sauna heaters, hand dryers, automatic toilet cover devices,
dehydrators, and gas water heaters.

4.  Fire doors, partition walls, tile walls, door windows etc.

5. Reservoirs, bathtubs, toilet covers, modular bathrooms and glass fiber products.

6. Any of the forementioned raw materials processing and manufacturing services

7. Industrial furnaces (including batch furnaces, continuous furnaces, semi-continuous
furnaces, etc.) and their components.

8.  Environmental controlling equipment (including controlling/testing instruments and sensor
components) and other components of manufacturing.

9. Import/export trade and related interbank endorsement/guarantee business.

10. Entrustment of the construction of public housing and commercial buildings for lease/sale
business.

11. Automobile import and sale business.

12. Electric Instantaneous Water Heaters Manufacturing and Trading Business.

13. Manufacture and trading of pre-cast concrete, curtain wall.

14. Import/export, installation and sale of wood and plastic kitchen appliances and related
components (except stainless steel kitchen appliances).

15. Import/export, wholesale and retail business of watches, perfumes and departmental
merchandises.

16. Display, introduction, sale services of domestic and foreign art, folk crafts.

17. Design and construction of interior decoration and its materials trading business (except
architects and construction).

18. Import/export trading business of bathroom equipment, artistic ceiling fans and lighting
fixtures.

19. F111040 Tile Veneer Stone Wholesaler.

20. F211010 Building Materials Retailer.

21. CCO01030 Electrical Appliance Manufacturer.

22. CRO0O1010 Gas apparatus and its components Manufacturer.

23. F105010 Furniture wholesaler.

24. F105040 Kitchen Utensils Wholesaler.

25. F205010 Furniture Retailer.

26. F205030 Kitchen appliances retailer.

(4) Milestone:

In 1931 - Mr. Hocheng Chiu the late president of the company, founded Hocheng Pottery

Manufacturing with an initial capital of NT$500 to manufacture and sell
flowerpots and water tanks.

In 1941 - Starts production of non-washed sanitary porcelain.
In 1961 - Hocheng Pottery Manufacturing reorganized as Hocheng Kiln Co.



In 1972 - Hocheng Group was awarded the "CNS Mark" by the National Bureau of
Standards, and organized the third factory of Hocheng Kiln Co.

In 1980 - Hocheng Group established a research and development department to
independently improve product quality and competitiveness.

In 1981 - Hocheng Group launched the new “HCG” logo to mark its international presence.

In 1982 - Hocheng Group merged with Ho Chih Industrial Co. and started to manufacture
metal doors. On August 13, HCG was officially renamed as "Hocheng Co.

In 1984 - Hocheng and Stanada Corporation, U.S.A. established a joint venture, Hostan Co., Ltd.
HCG introduced the first “ONE-PIECE” water closet, Alps series, in Taiwan which got a
successful sale amount.

In 1985 - The product, sanitary pottery has been qualified by the JIS industrial standard (Japan)
and the ANSI national standard (the U.S).

In 1986 - The product, sanitary pottery has been qualified by the CAS industrial standard (Canada).

In 1987 - Launches the new series “Alps M II”, which has already hit the store Shelves and sales.

In 1988 - HCG successfully developed Industrial kilns.

CD faucet and SC single handle faucet with precision ceramic design shaft stop
are developed.

R&D design step into CAD (computer-aided design system), CAM (computer-
aided production system) generation.

In 1989 - Invests in HCG NORTH AMERICA INC. to establish a North American sales office and
introduced a low-pressure casting machine and technology from Switzerland in April.
During mid-year, cash capital increase in the amount of $181million to expand
the plants and purchase additional equipments.

In 1990 - proposes a capital increase from undistributed earnings in the amount of
NT$670,033,000 to expand its plants and purchase equipments in July.

In 1991 - For the 60th anniversary of the founding, HCG redesigned the CIS (corporate
identity system) logo toACG, and the IPO was approved on October 14.

In 1992 - purchases a plot of land at Satengpo Section in Sanchong, and built a 31-storey
residence for sale in January.
purchases a plot of land at Dahu Section in Yingge Town, and built kitchenware
plant in April.

Approves cash and surpluses of $446,269,900 in June.

Introduces KITCHEN HOUSE kitchenware manufacturing technology from Japan.
The amount of received capital increased to $1,496,302,900 in October.

Introduces ICI's acrylic manufacturing technology from the U.K. to enhance the
manufacturing capability of bathtubs and cosmetic countertops in December.

In 1993 - Purchases the third floor of the commercial building at 26 and 28 Nanjing East
Road, Section 3 for office use in March.

Introduces MOLYMER Corporation technology (Japan) to produce high-quality
and low-pollution SMC III bathtubs in June.

Obtains the ISO 9002 certification in July.

The capital increase from undistributed earnings and capital surplus was
NT$486,298,450, bringing the capital to NT$1,982,601,350 after the capital
increase on Aug. 26.

The kitchenware plant started mass production in September.

Establishes a Distribution Center in Gangshan, Kaoshiung as a headquarter in
south of Taiwan in December.

In 1994 - SMC bathtub was certified by CNS in March.

The directors and supervisors were re-elected, and the paid-in capital was
increased to NT$2,775,641,890 in April.
Issuance of overseas depositary receipts (GDRs) for US$85.4 million in June.



K9 and K10 kiln is completed relatively in June, October.
The copper and porcelain factories were also awarded the "Ministerial Quality
Control Award" by the Ministry of Economic Affairs in September.
Obtains three Green Marks in October.
Establishes the Guangzhou office, which is the 4th office in China in November.
In 1995 - Paid-in capital increases to NT$ 3,469,552,380 in June.
Issues the first corporate bond of NT$500 million in July.
UFO series wins the "Taiwan Excellence Award".
Launches the "Nest Repair Project" to provide clients with a full range of services
including design, renovation and decoration.
In 1996 — 1. Paid-in capital increases to NT$ 3,989,985,250.
2. Issues the second unsecured corporate bonds in the amount of NT$1,000 million.
3. Purchases the common stock 9,710,000 shares of Hotang Co., Ltd., owned by
MOEN Co., Ltd. for NT$297,543,000, and the total number of shares comes to
19,099,561 shares, which is 98% of shareholding.
4. Purchases over 6600-square-meter land in Neihu District with NT$800 million
and plans for development.
5. Starts the Construction of a new office building on Xinsheng South Road.
6. Starts the Construction of a new office building on Nanjing East Road.
7. Completion and handover of Alps Residential Building in Sanchong, Taipei.
8. Invests Living Mall Co., Ltd. with NT$120,000,000 and 1% shareholding.
9. Groundbreaking for the facility in Philippines.
10. Completes the construction of HoCheng manufacturing in Jiangsu and starts its
operation.
11. Launches the first 6L flush water-saving toilet in Taiwan, so-called king of
water-saving C4360, which is also the first domestic manufacturer to obtain the
Green Mark certification.
12. Single C toilets and low-flush toilets were approved by the KS Industrial
Standards (Korea).
13. SMC bathtubs is obtained the ISO 9002 certification.
14. Establishes a new branch in Nantou to increase the number of sales locations
15. Product multi-management strategy: shower doors, vanity tops, ceiling fans,
SMC water towers, etc.
16. Develops the components of two-stage low-flush toilet to promote the
environmental awareness.
In 1997 — 1. Paid-in capital increases to NT$ 4,189,484,550.
2. Obtains the ISO 9001 certification.
. Passes the ANSI Standards of the U.S.
. Launches the new product, Raised floor.
. Completes the development of new color series.
. Completes the development of the ceramic mandrel.
. Completes Philippine manufacturing branch and begins its operation.
. EDEN and LEGATO series are in full mass production.
. Purchases Holong Ceramics Co., land and factory in Danan for the expansion of
factory sites.
10. Sets up an activity center to increase the sales.
In 1998 - Awards the "Excellent Building Material Manufacturer Award" at the 26th Architect
Building Material and Furniture Exhibition in Taichung World Trade Center in February.
Andy Lau endorses the company, and reinforces the first brand image of Hocheng Co., in
March.
Unit Bathroom (UB) receives the Ministry of Economic Affairs' official seal of approval
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in March.
The Philippine branch officially lit up for mass production in May.
Our affiliate, Hocheng (China) Co., Ltd. obtains the KS Industrial Standards (Korea) in
June.
Obtains a certificate of the Ministry of Economic Affairs for the water-supply chopper
wares in August.
The construction site on Xinsheng South Road is completed and the license to operate is
obtained in September.
The construction site on Nanjing East Road is completed and the license to operate is
obtained in November.
Awarded as a Remarkable Company by CommonWealth Magazine (Vol. 210) in
November.
Ricardo sanitary products wins the first place in the Best Product Styling Award of the
Marketing Innovation Awards by Breakazine in December.
In 1999 - The TV commercial "It's Good to be Home" was shot by Andy Lau, which successfully
created the peak sales of Legato baths in January.
Both sanitary wares and kitchen wares of Hocheng products win the first place
of The Ideal brand survey by Breakazine in February.
Establishes the Department of Information Management to promote the MIS and
enterprise network business in March.
Establishes sales office in Taichung by merging with Daijun Corporation, the general
agency in Taichung in April.
Taoyuan Plant obtains the IAPMO certification of ANSI standard in July.
Taoyuan Plant obtains the ISO 14001 certification of Bureau of Standards in September.
Jiangsu branch obtains ISO 9002 certification of Beijing State Council.
Under the leadership of our chairman, HCG actively participates in the relief work for
921 Earthquake, and donates more than NT$8 million in goods and cash.
Receives the powder painting equipment from the affiliate, Hostan Co., and set up a
copper ware manufacturing department.
Establishes the Technical Division, in charge of the development of raw materials,
processing technology, equipment and project improvement, as well as supporting the
technical and human resources training for overseas factories in October.
Founds Taiwan Toilet Association in November. Andy Lau takes the shot of the TV
commercial for the free toilet seat and faucet, and cooperated with the Children's Scalding
Association to enhance the corporate image.
In 2000 - CERABO International Co., Ltd. is officially listed in April.
Golden Pottery Awards cooperates with Pottery Museum to hold the 6th International
Golden Pottery Awards.
For the worst affected areas of the 921 Earthquake (Nantou, Changhua, etc.), HCG offers
the most favorable prices for toilet products to help the victims rebuild their homes in
September.
The world's largest, thinnest and lightest CERABO ceramic panel of 120*320cm was
exhibited for the first time at the World Trade Fair in October.
A visiting group of professors from Jingdezhen, Jiangxi Province, visits Taiwan for art
exchange and participates in the creation of art pottery panels in November.
Restructures the sales offices in Hualien and Taitung to a general distribution.
CERABO Art Pottery Panel was officially unveiled at the Art Gallery Expo in December.
In 2001 - Philippine Plant obtains the KS Industrial Standards (Korea) in January.
Taoyuan Plant is awarded "Excellent Water Conservation Manufacturer" by Water
Resources Office in June.
A press conference is held at Hyatt Regency Hotel to introduce the ERP system in June.



Launches the "safety-enhancing basin", the first innovative development of new structure
products to reduce the degree of ceramic breakage in August.

Launches the new products, Ricardo 2nd generation series, ADB anti dirt/bacteria series,
and large countertop basin etc. in August.

Taoyuan Plant and the copper ware Plant obtains the ISO 9001 revised

certification of the new edition of 2000.

December - In celebration of the 70th anniversary of Hocheng, a musical event "My

Country, My Land, Taiwanese Folk Symphonic Poetry" was held.
One-Piece washlet starts to sale.

In 2002 — January - Introduces SUPERLET, an anti dirt/bacteria, intelligent washlet with various

May -

functions such as one-piece molding, 6-liter for no.2, 3-liter for no.1, and
wireless remote control.

Hocheng Service Center provides safety check for bathing stove, so that the
customers can use it with more peace of mind.

C239, C301 6L water-saving toilet with single C low tank officially launches to
sale.

In response to the massive water shortage in Taiwan, HCG promotes water-
saving sanitary equipment and encourages citizens to replace their water-saving
handles with two-stage ones.

October - The new products such as nano-tech antibacterial series, bowl basin, and the

third generation of Ricardo have receiving positive feedbacks from consumers.
Contracts the curtain wall project of Tsannkuen Co., home appliance storage
and distribution headquarters with CERABO silicone fiber panel back-lining by
galvanized panel with dry construction method.

November - Hocheng Art Center opens, exhibiting the 12 Orders of the Imperial Palace and

paintings by many renowned artists such as Fengchun Chen.
Philippine Plant obtains the ISO 9001 revised certification of the new edition of
2000.

In 2003 — April - Jiangxu Plant obtains the ISO 9001 revised certification of the new edition of

2000.

May - Collaborates with Energy resources Lab. of ITRI to sign water conservation

strategy alliance.

June - legato M III series C660, U660, CS662, L161, LF920, BF920, etc. wins the GD

MARK of Excellent Product Design Award from WTO.

July - Launches the new product, SUPERLET, a water-saving toilet.

Establishes the repair and renovation division, King of Renovation, to penetrate
the housing repair and renovation market.

October - Introduces eco-friendly bricks and eco-permeable bricks in line with green

In 2004 — March -

May -

June -

building materials.

Taiwan Plant's 150m tunnel kiln was put into production, adding 30,000 pieces
per month.
cooperates with the Ministry of Economic Affairs for 3 military
products technology projects.

Develops 2-and-half-size water line diameter, which can be applied to 6L toilets
and meets the demand of the US market.

Launches the new series, NEW ZEN and DINK.

July - The permeable bricks are started in automatic mass production, and acquires the

first environmental protection permeable brick structure and its manufacturing
method in Taiwan, Invention No. 1 225906.

August - Ceramic-faced platform for medical devices is introduced into mass

production.



October- Develops mass production of sanitary porcelain (T.M.C.) for yachts.

Penetrates to the technology industry and develops ceramic speakers.

November - Obtains the CSA registration from IJAPMO National Laboratory, the U.S.

In 2005 -

March - Manufactures hybrid faucet with single handle made of stainless steel for

water-supply copper wares.

May - Manufactures hybrid faucet with single handle mad of Lead-free copper for

water-supply copper wares.

The ceramic panels for bulletproof vests are certified by the H.P. WHITE
Laboratory to be accord with NIJ III of the National Institute of Justice.
Develops the high-tech business: Process the development of precision
ceramics and composite materials for various products, such as ballistic armor.

June - CERABO ceramic panels development applied with photocatalytic materials

“Energy Brick” receives the NanoMark.

October - The production of photocatalytic ceramic filters and the application of air

filtration.

November - Completes the project of the National Chung-Shan Institute of Science &

Technology for the Military Material Release Project, and obtains the priority
procurement right for military related products.

Taiwan Plant obtains the ISO 14001 revised certification of the new edition of
2004.

SMC countertop with 80 cm is in mass production.

December - 3C composite material decorative panel is successfully developed

In 2006 -

and applied to 3C panels.

March - HU-11 dental ceramic basin is successfully developed in collaboration

with Dingxing Belmont, and ships at the end of November.

May - The project "Preliminary Study on the Development of Multi-layer Columnar

Water Purification Module Technology" under the Small Business Innovation
Research (SBIR) of the Ministry of Economic Affairs (MOEA) is granted $1.25
million dollars to test water purification and antimicrobial efficacy of
photocatalytic ceramic filters.

September - Sanitary Ceramic Reliability Laboratory, Taoyuan Plant is awarded as a CNLA

certified national laboratory.

November - Hocheng Plant 2 is obtained the ISO 14001 certification by the Bureau of

Standards.

In 2007 - January - Department of Technology, Ministry of Economic Affairs: High Performance

Ballistic Ceramic Materials Technology Development Project.

Project Duration: 2006/12/01~2008/11/30

The research units and their cooperative research projects are as follows:

a. National Defense Science and Technology Research Institute, R.O.C. —
Bullet-resistant ceramic gunshot test research.

b. Five Institutes of the NCSIST-Research on ceramic physical assay of ballistic
resistant.

c. Samding Corporation - Optimization of assembly parameters and
armor-piercing damage analysis of bullet-resistant ceramic products.

d. AG materials Inc. - Research on the production and sintering of high grade
ballistic resistant ceramic powder.

March - Department of Technology, Ministry of Economic Affairs:

Toilet ceramic plasma ceramic coating technology and device development
project.

Project Duration: 2007/03/01~2008/02/28

The research units and their cooperative research projects are as follows:



a. Institute of Nuclear Energy - plasma ceramic coating parameter optimization
technology.
April - Jiangsu Plant obtains ISO 14001 certification of Beijing State Council.
May - The program of the Ministry of Economic Affairs to assist the research and
development of the service industry: Taiwan Sanitary Ceramics Industry
digitalization - Toilet Upgrade Education Exhibition and Sales Project.
Project Duration: 2007/05/22~2008/06/10
November - Obtains the EPA (the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency) HET
registration from IAPMO National Laboratory.
In 2008 — December - Taoyuan plant passes ISO 180012007 occupational safety and health
management system certification by Bureau of Standards.

In 2009—1. Industrial-academic collaboration project with the Department of Industrial
Design, Chaoyang University of Science and Technology
(A) Project name: The effect of dimensional variation of all-ceramic
production on toilet function.
(B) Project Duration: 2008/09/01~2009/08/31
(C) Total project expenses: NT$800,000
(D) Project Description: Combines industrial design and computer-aided
engineering technology to introduce toilet development research, and
focuses on the existing traditional research and development design
process to make comprehensive improvements.
II. NCSIST Military Products Release Cooperation Program
1. (A) Project name: Unmanned Aerial Vehicle (UAV) lightweight
sandwich structure research and development
(B) Project period: 2009/01/01~2009/12/31
(C) Total project expenses: NT$7,926,000
(D) Project Description: To enhance the composite material manufacturing
capacity of HCG, and to establish the manufacturing technology of
lightweight sandwich structure with integrated beams, ribs and control airfoil,
and to cultivate the implementation and integration technology of design,
analysis, manufacturing, assembly, testing and verification of composite
material lightweight sandwich structure.
2. (A) Project name: composite tapered shell molding technology
(B) Project Duration: 2009/01/01~2009/12/31
(C) Total project expenses: NT$10,400,000
(D) Project Description: To enhance the composite manufacturing capacity of HCG,
and to complete the technology transfer of medium and large composite cone
and shell pre-shaping, hot pressing, and composite cone and shell/metal ring
bonding.

II1. Participates in the U.S. Department of Defense Foreign Comparison Test
(FCT) program, where U.S. Army personnel and our personnel conducted
tests on the results of "protective ceramic products" and the progress of
subsequent development.

IV. Our ceramic ware plant is awarded the "Water Conservation Performance Unit
Award" by the Water Resources Department, Ministry of Economic Aftairs in
December 2009.

In 2010 - I Industrial-academic collaboration project with the Department of Material
Creation and Design, Tainan University of Arts
(A) Project name: Environmental ceramics faucet design project
(B) Project Duration: 2010/03/18~2010/07/01



(C) Total project expenses: NT$150,000
(D) Project Description: To enhance the competitiveness of the
environmental ceramics leader, the project intends to assist the
cultural and creative activities of the academic community and to
cultivate the ceramic product development and design capabilities of
the participating students and researchers to provide the appropriate
talents for the manufacturing industry of the environmental ceramics
talents in Taiwan.
II. Industrial-academic collaboration project with the Department of Industrial
Design, Shih-Chien University
(A) Project name: toilet design talent training seminar program in 2010
(B) Project Duration: 2010/10/01~2011/01/15
(C) Total project expenses: NT$79,800
(D) Project Description: Through a series of in-depth explanations and on
site visits, HCG hopes to cultivate more future talents who are
interested in bathroom design, and to serve as a reference for the
future application of product design concepts.
In 2011 -  April - Taoyuan Plant and Copper ware Plant passed the "MIT Smile Mark of
Taiwan-made products" certification.
Taoyuan Plant obtains the “KS Mark™ certification.
L. Industrial-academic collaboration project with the Department of Industrial
Design, Tunghai University
(A) Project name: Alpha Ceramic Faucet Product Development and Design
(B) Project Duration: 2011/04/01~2011/05/31
(C) Total project expenses: NT$150,000
(D) Project Description: The design theme of a means "multi-functional",
based on the idea of "multi-functional ceramic faucet", returning to
the potential needs of human-oriented, while integrating technology
and aesthetics of the wisdom of the crystallization, design a closer-to-
life creative ceramic faucet equipment.
II. Corporation with Taiwan Plastics Industry, Formosa Plastics Corporation,
Shangwei Corporation, Mingan International Corporation, and Huachuang
Electric Vehicle Technology Center (stock) and other five enterprises to form
a carbon fiber research and development alliance
(A) Project name: Carbon fiber composite materials for electric vehicle light-weight
key technology project
(B) Project Duration: 2011/12/01~2013/11/30
(C) Total project expenses: NT$100,000,000
(D) Project Description: This project is aimed at the development of a domestic electric
vehicle, Luxgen Motor, with carbon fiber composite material structure process as
the main shaft of technology development, and selected vacuum-assisted resin
injection molding and prepreg lamination process technology and materials
required for development, in response to the needs of the vehicle industry for rapid
delivery and cost reduction. This project will provide the best weight reduction
solution for domestic electric vehicles by establishing the key technology of
carbon fiber composite material for vehicles through rigorous testing in factory
regulations to verify the R&D results and light-weight effectiveness.
In 2012 I. Target material characterization research project with SolarTech Co.,
(A) Project name: High-pressure injection molding ITO rotary target
process technology development
(B) Project Duration: From 2012/06/01
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(C) Project Description: The project is entitled "High Pressure Injection
Molding ITO Rotating Target Technology Development" and on
behalf of the industry, HCG invite Solar Tech Co., and the Fifth
Research of NCSIST to be the partnership for the research and
development of the target characteristics analysis.
In 2013 — February - Awards as the first Competitive Enterprise Finalists.
November - Passes the military product release project of Ministry of Economic Affairs.
(A) Project name: NCSIST cooperative research project - research and development
of protective clothing for alumina series ballistic plates
(B) Project Duration: January to December 2014
(C) Project Achievement: The project takes the ballistic ceramic insert as the main
axis of technology development and completed the world's first "bendable"
ballistic ceramic insert, which passed the NIJ Class IV ballistic test and
obtained the patent of R.O.C. total expenses for the project are NT$5.93
million.
December - Obtains the ISO50001 energy management certification from BSI.
In 2014 — February - Awards as the 2nd Competitive Enterprise of Key Mentor Manufacturers.
May - Plastic Division Bumper is approved by CAPA.
November - Passes Ministry of Economic Affairs Military Products Release Project of A+
Enterprise Innovation R&D, led by HCG and cooperated with Shengpeng
Applied Materials Co., Huntsman (Taiwan) Ltd., to develop carbon fiber
composite materials.
(A) Project name: environmentally friendly PU resin carbon fiber composite material
automotive wheel development project
(B) Project Duration: January 2015 to December 2016
(C) Project Achievement: This project takes carbon fiber wheels for automobiles as
the R&D target, and has evaluated its structural design, component lap design,
structural analysis and stack design in advance to lay the foundation for process
technology development. The carbon fiber composite material has the
characteristics of light weight and high strength, which is especially beneficial
for the inertia of the wheels in the high speed rotation of the car, and it can be
applied to different car types. By passing the strict testing requirements of the
factory regulations and the light-weight effect of the R&D results, we expect to
improve the technical capacity and product technology threshold of the domestic
composite material industry, and to match the domestic and foreign market
channels and meet the product development direction of "high performance",
"high quality" and "high technology".
(D) Total expenses: NT$60,000,000
Self-financing: NT$34,500,000
Subsidy: NT$25,500,000
In 2015 -  March - Establishes a zirconia ceramic dental alliance.
August - The zirconia ceramic material is developed and approved by the dental
professionals.
November - "ISO 13485 Medical Device Management System and GMP for Medical
Devices" project starts.
December - The "Military Products Release Project" of NCSIST case closes.
(A) Project name: Research and production of protective vests for alumina series
ballistic plates
(B) Project Duration: January 2014~December 2015
(C) Project Achievement: This project takes the ballistic ceramic insert as the main
axis of technology development, and completes the world's first "bendable"
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ballistic ceramic insert; in the first year, it completes the bendable ballistic panel;
and in the second year, it completes the light weight of the bendable ballistic
panel; its effectiveness passes the NI1J Class IV test and obtains patents in
Taiwan, China, and Japan. The total expense for the project is NT$12,604,000;
(self-financing: NT$4,950,000, subsidies: NT$7,654,000).

A+ Enterprise Innovation R&D project of the Ministry of Economic Affairs

is completed.

(A) Project name: Environmental PU resin carbon fiber composite material
automotive wheel development project

(B) Project Duration: January 2015 to December 2016

(C) Project Achievement:

(1) Improved vacuum-assisted resin injection molding technology,
rapid molding.

(2) Development of large size fiber braided sleeves to improve
structural strength.

(3) Develop two-piece lap joint carbon fiber automotive wheels.

(4) Obtained a patent in Taiwan.

In 2016 - Taoyuan Plant and the copper ware Plant obtains the ISO 9001&14001 revised
certification of the new edition of 2015 in relatively September and December.
November - The project of NCSIST for the maintenance of the conventional industries is

completed.

(A) Project name: low smoke and flame retardant composite materials technology
development - low smoke, low toxic and flame resistant resin mass production
feasibility evaluation

(B) Project Duration: January ~ November 2016

(C) Project Achievement: This study is to assist domestic manufacturers in the
feasibility evaluation of phenolic lightweight low smoke and low toxicity flame-
resistant composite resin formulations, and to establish a mass-production grade
resin formulation that passes the fire/smoke/toxicity testing standards for rail
vehicle composite interiors, and when completed, it can formally start to mass-
production grade prepreg production, with a total project expense of NT$1
million.

December- The second year of A+ Enterprise Innovation R&D project of the Ministry of
Economic Affairs is completed.

Awards the 10th Taoyuan Innovative Enterprise Excellence Award and Gold
Quality Award.

In 2017 - May - The first domestic installation of a water tap grinding and polishing line for a
copper ware plant is completed under the productivity 4.0 industry promotion
program of the Industrial Development Bureau, Ministry of Economic
Affairs, which greatly enhances the usability and convenience of the
automated system.

September - Passes the SGS "ISO 13485:2003 Edition" medical device quality
management system certification.

November - "Hocheng Zirconia Ceramic Tile" receives the Medical Device License and
the Certificate of Good Manufacturing of Medical Devices from the Ministry
of Health and Welfare.

December - The ceramic part of the toilet with high-pressure molding will be officially
mass production, adopting the triple demolding method, and it's the first
creation in the world, and officially launches the energy-saving jet toilet to
the market.

In 2018 — August - Passes the SGS "ISO13485 Medical Device Quality Management System
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Certification" (2016 Edition) revised version and obtains the certificate.

October - High-pressure molded toilets are fetched by robotic arms.

December - The electronic warm-water toilet is fully promoted to establish CNS standard
and formally included in the product inspection control by the examination
meeting of the Bureau of Standards.

In 2019 - July - Awards the first manufacturer of electronic warm-water toilet in Taiwan of
which has to be qualified.

October - Awards the 28th "Taiwan Excellence Award" (sanitary equipment category,
kitchenware category products) - AFC290 long-lasting electrochemical de-
chlorination faucet, HD2085/HD2010 composite carbon fiber wheel and
three other products.

November - The composite carbon fiber wheels, AFC intelligent SUPERLET, and long-
lasting electrochemical de-chlorination faucet win the Taiwan Excellence
Award.

In 2020 — February - Obtains the MIT certificate of all the manufacturers of washlet in Taiwan.
April - HCG has developed bullet-resistant products that have passed gunshot tests
and receives numerous orders.

June - Publishes the brand, LAZULI, the new product carbon fiber Fins, and puts
them on sale.

July - Department of Power Mechanics' Racing Factory of Tsinghua University
unveiled the new generation of Formula Student racing car, with air power kit
and many structural components made by HCG carbon fiber composite
material technology.

Launches the ISO 27001 "Information Technology - Security Technology -
Information Security Management System - Requirements" introduction
project to comprehensively upgrade the information security protection level.

August - In conjunction with Kaohsiung University's participation in the high value
project of recycled materials, "Development of a prototype process for the
production of medical materials from eggshell waste using bone apatite
functional particles", the project passes the mid-term review by the Ministry
of Science and Technology.

September - The development of lightweight components of carbon fiber composite
materials for cooling water towers is completed and marketed, and patent
applications are pending in the R.O.C and the U.S.

Obtains the Certificate of Appreciation of Green Mark.

October - HCG’s washlet Obtains the MIT Gold Selection Award.

HCG's zirconia tiles have received 510(k) premarket notification from the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) for sale in the United States.

November - The Green Store is awarded for its outstanding performance.
0-Contact Al Antibacterial Water Faucet and 0-Contact AI Smart Cosmetic
Mirror wins the Taiwan Excellence Award.

December - HCG passes the examination of Technology Transfer and Commercialization
program by the NCSIST in 2020.

In 2021- February- "Relieved. Unbridled. Be Yourself" commercial was released and broadcasted
simultaneously on the Internet and social media.

March- Tsinghua University's Power Mechanics Racing Factory released the THOS
Formula Racing Car, with aero kits and multiple structural components made
by the Hecheng carbon fiber composite material team.

April- Certificated by ISO 27001 information security management system.

May- The new toilet "SHANGRI-LA" was developed and put into production.
July- Completed the research and development and trial production of lightweight

materials with high-end ballistic resistance.
September- Cooperation with the National Museum of Marine Science for the rehabilitation
of marine corals.
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November- CERATOP, a secondary brand of zirconia porcelain tiles for dentistry, was launched in
the US market.
December- Gorfin series products were launched and won the Taiwan Excellence Award.
Awarded a certificate of appreciation from the Taoyuan City Government for being an
eco-friendly green store.

December-Signed a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the Metal Industry Center, one of
the three major foundations in Taiwan, to jointly promote the development of the
sanitary appliance industry.

December-Completed the project of "High-speed impact resistant B4C-based lightweight
ceramic composite material" of the NCSIST.

In 2022 March- Donated “LENUS”smart epidemic prevention device to the National Museum of
Marine Science and Technology.

March-Gorfin series of products won the 2022 Taiwan Excellence Award.
June-Participated in the ESG Summit, promoting sustainable environment and
Implementing social responsibility. During the exhibition, sponsored

“LENUS”smart epidemic prevention device to strengthen on-site epidemic control.
June-AFC6699 intelligent super toilet seat won the MIT Taiwan Golden Selection.
July-The new formula SAE was unveiled by the Department of Power Mechanical

Engineering of Tsinghua University. The aerodynamic kit and many structural
parts were produced under the guidance of carbon fiber composite material
technology. In October of the same year, they participated in the Formula SAE
competition in Europe, achieving 5th place in the Croatia competition; and in the
Germany competition, they surpassed 70% of the teams worldwide, achieving
third place in the 'Figure-of-eight' project.

August-PERFIT, Formosa Plastics, and the Company jointly unveiled a carbon fiber safety
shoe tip.

August-Taiwan Stock Exchange approved the Company's cash capital reduction of
NT$665,736,500 (letter ref no. 1111803912). After the reduction, the Company's
capital was NT$3,032,799,600.

September-Sponsored the Ocean Rehabilitation Fund of the National Museum of Marine
Science & Technology.

October-Yingge and Taoyuan Factory passed the 1ISO consolidated examination.

October- The Racing Factory of the Department of Power Mechanical Engineering at

Tsinghua University participated in the Student Formula competition in
Europe. They achieved an impressive 5th place in the event held in Croatia.
Furthermore, they surpassed 70% of the teams worldwide in the German
event and achieved a remarkable 3rd place in the "Figure Eight Endurance"
category.

November-The LAZULI AQUAMARINE series of carbon fiber frog shoes received

recognition with the 2023 Taiwan Excellence Award.

December-The Company's Education Foundation held a "My Hometown, My Land —

Taiwanese Folk Symphony - Gratitude to Medical Staff Charity Concert".
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December-The Company was awarded the 2021 Green Store Outstanding Performance
Award by Taoyuan City.

December-The Company received a certificate of appreciation from the Environmental
Protection Administration for promoting environmental protection and green
consumption in 2021.

December-The AFC6699 intelligent super toilet seat was awarded the MIT Smile Product
Taiwan Golden Selection Certificate.
In 2023 March: Participated in the largest diving leisure exhibition in Taiwan, DRT SHOW, to
promote the LAZULI frog shoe brand.

April : Subsidiary HCG (China) Co., Ltd. announced cooperation with the mainland
government's land use rights acquisition. The Suzhou Wuzhong District Luchi
Factory will be demolished due to overall factory relocation.

June : The resistance value of the carbon rod supporting frame for semiconductor
wafer carriers has been adjusted to 1074 to 10210 ohms, demonstrating ESD
performance.

July : To integrate group resources and enhance operational competitiveness, it was
decided to merge with wholly-owned subsidiary Howstar Co., Ltd. according to
the Enterprise Merger Act.

August : Obtained a patent for the invention of a shell and signal transmission device
using the same (Patent No.: 1811555).

September : The company and Howstar Co., Ltd. underwent a simplified merger,
completing the reduction of capital and change of registration
announcement.

September : Obtained a patent for the invention of a frog shoe plate structure (Patent No.:

1815679).

September : Sponsored the National Museum of Marine Science and Technology's Marine
Restoration Fund.

October : The "H! OPEN" exhibition hall opened, combining "Oriole Lifestyle" and
"Origin Open Day," resulting in a significant increase in visitors.

October : Participated in the 2023 Taiwan Design Exhibition "O Start" in New Taipei City.

October : Passed the application for transitioning from GMP to QMS (Medical Device
Manufacturing License) by the Ministry of Health and Welfare.

October : Obtained a patent for the invention of a supporting rod structure and its
forming method (Patent No.: 1819909).

November : To meet operational needs, it was decided to increase the capital of wholly-
owned subsidiary Baolong Indoor Craft Co., Ltd. by 150 million NTD.

December : The zirconia dental material product obtained China's NMPA medical device

registration certification on December 6, 2023.
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December : Received the prestigious "Excellent Performance Award for Outstanding
Green Store in the 112th Year of Taoyuan City Environmental Sustainability
Joint Award."

December : Completion of the fourth year of the Military Discharge Business Science
Specialist Four-Year Plan/Third Year in December.

December : The Art Collection Center was inaugurated, featuring many award-winning

artworks from the Golden Ceramic Awards over the years.
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II. Corporate Governance Report

3.1 Organization

3.1.1 Organizational Chart
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3.1.2 Business description of each major department

Operation Improvement Group: Analyze, prepare audit explanation, improve and track the
management system of the company. Each production, operation performance and business
evaluation, internal audit operation, and evaluation of the reasonableness and timeliness of the
operation process.

Construction Section: Responsible for the planning, supervision and management of new buildings
and sales.

Information Technology Section: Planning and execution of computerized operation system, file
and hardware maintenance.

Legal Affairs Section: Registration and processing of legal cases.

Purchasing Section: Purchasing of raw materials and financial appliances.

Project Team: Project planning, execution, and evaluation.

T.Q.M Committee: Promote the TQM total quality management business.

Sales Division: domestic bathroom market research and evaluation, sales, promotion and after-
sales service of the company's products, and the operation of the volume sales channel; various
import business and the expansion of the company's products in overseas markets.

Bathroom Production Division: responsible for production planning, product manufacturing,
quality control, improvement of production technology and other related matters.

Cabinet Division: domestic kitchenware market research and evaluation, data collection, opinion
survey, and dealer counseling.

Plastic Steel Division: responsible for the production planning of bathtubs and all SMC products,
product manufacturing, and quality control.

Finance Department: responsible for the management and control of accounting system, financial
analysis and accounts processing, company capital allocation and research and planning of
long and short-term investment.

Product Development Strategy Division: Research and development, improvement, analysis and
implementation of new products.

Technology Materials Division: Research, development and production of high pressure molding
machines, resin molds and technology ceramics.

E-Commerce Department: Management and execution of internet marketing, supervision of
technical engineering management.

Environmental Safety General Affairs Department: Responsible for environmental protection,
planning, personnel and vehicle management of the factory.

Quality Assurance Department: Establishment and implementation of quality control system and
formulation of inspection standards for various products.

Logistics Department: Management of raw materials and finished products for the manufacturing
process.

Human Resources Department: Human resources strategy evaluation, personnel recruitment and
training, career planning, education and training program development and implementation,
labor law research, welfare system planning and promotion.

Computer Processing Center: Research and development, improvement, analysis, and
implementation of product molds.

Science and Technology Materials Division: Research, advanced ceramics. Drafting of
production plans for bathtubs and all SMC products, manufacturing of products, and
quality control.
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3. The Disclosure of Directors’ Professional Qualifications and Independent Directors’
Independence Status:

Criteria

Name

Professional Qualifications and
Experiences (Note 1)

Independence Criteria(Note 2)

Number of
Other
Taiwanese
Public
Companies
Concurrently
Serving as an
Independent
Director

Chiu,
Li-Chien

Have Work Experience in the
Areas of Commerce or
Otherwise Necessary for the
Business of the Company.

1. Yuhuang, Director (Xinjiexu,
Representative)

2. Holong, Director (HCG,
Representative)

3. Hostan, Director (HCG,
Representative)

4. Hocheng Group Holding
Corp., Director (Ritiboon,
Representative)

5. Hocheng (China), Director
(Ritiboon, Representative)

6. Ritiboon, Director

7. Hohong, Director (HCG,
Representative)

Not been a person of any

conditions defined in Article 30

of the Company Act.

Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate
shareholder that directly holds five percent or more of the
total number of issued shares of the company, or that ranks
among the top five in shareholdings, or that designates its
representative to serve as a director or supervisor of the
company under Article 27, paragraph 1 or 2 of the Company
Act.

Not a majority of the company's director seats or voting
shares and those of any other company are controlled by the
same person: a director, supervisor, or employee of that other
company.

Not the chairperson, general manager, or person holding an
equivalent position of the company and a person in any of
those paositions at another company or institution are the same
person or are spouses: a director (or governor), supervisor, or
employee of that other company or institution.

Not a professional individual who, or an owner, partner,
director, supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship,
partnership, company, or institution that, provides auditing
services to the company or any affiliate of the company, or
that provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting or
related services to the company or any affiliate of the
company for which the provider in the past 2 years has
received cumulative compensation exceeding NT$500,000, or
a spouse thereof; provided. Not having a marital
relationship, or a relative within the second degree of kinship
to any other director of the Bank.

0
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Criteria

Name

Professional Qualifications and
Experiences (Note 1)

Independence Criteria(Note 2)

Number of
Other
Taiwanese
Public
Companies
Concurrently
Serving as an
Independent
Director

Wu,
Yue-Long

Have Work Experience in the
Areas of Commerce or Otherwise
Necessary for the Business of the
Company.

Yuhuang, Chairman (Xinjiexu,
Representative)

Not been a person of any
conditions defined in Article 30
of the Company Act.

Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate
shareholder that directly holds five percent or more of the total
number of issued shares of the company, or that ranks among
the top five in shareholdings, or that designates its
representative to serve as a director or supervisor of the
company under Article 27, paragraph 1 or 2 of the Company
Act.

Not a majority of the company's director seats or voting shares
and those of any other company are controlled by the same
person: a director, supervisor, or employee of that other
company.

Not the chairperson, general manager, or person holding an
equivalent position of the company and a person in any of those
positions at another company or institution are the same person
or are spouses: a director (or governor), supervisor, or
employee of that other company or institution.

Not a professional individual who, or an owner, partner,
director, supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship,
partnership, company, or institution that, provides auditing
services to the company or any affiliate of the company, or that
provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting or related
services to the company or any affiliate of the company for
which the provider in the past 2 years has received cumulative
compensation exceeding NT$500,000, or a spouse thereof;
provided. Not having a marital relationship, or a relative within
the second degree of Kinship to any other director of the Bank.

0

Yuhuang
Co., Ltd.:
Chiu,
Shi-Kai

Have Work Experience in the
Areas of Commerce or Otherwise
Necessary for the Business of the
Company.

Hocheng (China), Chairman
(Ritiboon, Representative)

Not been a person of any
conditions defined in Article 30
of the Company Act.

Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate
shareholder that directly holds five percent or more of the total
number of issued shares of the company, or that ranks among
the top five in shareholdings, or that designates its
representative to serve as a director or supervisor of the
company under Article 27, paragraph 1 or 2 of the Company
Act.

Not a majority of the company's director seats or voting shares
and those of any other company are controlled by the same
person: a director, supervisor, or employee of that other
company.

Not the chairperson, general manager, or person holding an
equivalent position of the company and a person in any of those
positions at another company or institution are the same person
or are spouses: a director (or governor), supervisor, or
employee of that other company or institution.

Not a professional individual who, or an owner, partner,
director, supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship,
partnership, company, or institution that, provides auditing
services to the company or any affiliate of the company, or that
provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting or related
services to the company or any affiliate of the company for
which the provider in the past 2 years has received cumulative
compensation exceeding NT$500,000, or a spouse thereof;
provided.
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Criteria Number of
Other
Taiwanese
. A Public
Professmna}l Qualifications and Independence Criteria(Note 2) Companies
Experiences (Note 1)
Concurrently
Serving as an
Name Independent
Director
Fuho Have Work Experience in the|Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate 0
Investment |Areas of Commerce, Finance or|shareholder that directly holds five percent or more of the total
Co., Ltd.: |Otherwise Necessary for thelnumber of issued shares of the company, or that ranks among
Chiu, Business of the Company. the top five in shareholdings, or that designates its
Chi-Hsin |1. HCG, Finance Department representative to serve as a director or supervisor of the
CFO company under Article 27, paragraph 1 or 2 of the Company
2. Yuhuang, Director (Xinjiexu, |Act.
Representative) Not a majority of the company's director seats or voting shares
3. Hocheng Philippines, Director |and those of any other company are controlled by the same
4. Helong, Supervisor person: a director, supervisor, or employee of that other
5. Hocheng (China), Director company.
(Ritiboon, Representative) Not the chairperson, general manager, or person holding an
6. Fuho Investment Ltd., equivalent position of the company and a person in any of those
Chairman positions at another company or institution are the same person
7. Hohong, Chairman (HCG, or are spouses: a director (or governor), supervisor, or
Representative) employee of that other company or institution.
8. Xinjiexu, Director Not a professional individual who, or an owner, partner,
Not been a person of any director, supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship,
conditions defined in Article 30 |partnership, company, or institution that, provides auditing
of the Company Act. services to the company or any affiliate of the company, or that
provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting or related
services to the company or any affiliate of the company for
which the provider in the past 2 years has received cumulative
compensation exceeding NT$500,000, or a spouse thereof;
provided.
Wang, Have Work Experience in the|lndependent director who meets the independence criteria, 1
Cheng-Wei|Areas of Commerce, Finance,|including, but not limited to, natural person who is serving as a
(Independe |Legal, Finance, Accounting or|director, supervisor or employee of the company or its
nt Otherwise Necessary for the|affiliates, together with the person's spouse and relative within
Directors) |Business of the Company. the second degree of kinship; not holding shares of the

1. Fudan University (Shanghai),
EMBA

2. Kuang Chuan Dairy Co., Ltd.,
Director

3. Lien Chang Electronic
Enterprise Co., Ltd.,
Independent Director

Not been a person of any

conditions defined in Article 30

of the Company Act

company; not serving as a director, supervisor or employee of
a company with a specific relationship with the company; not
received remuneration or benefits for providing commercial,
legal, financial, accounting services or consultation to the
company or to any its affiliates within the preceding two years.
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Criteria Number of
Other
Taiwanese
. S Public
Professmna}l Qualifications and Independence Criteria(Note 2) Companies
Experiences (Note 1)
Concurrently
Serving as an
Name Independent
Director
Fan, Have Work Experience in the Independent director who meets the independence criteria, 0
Wei- Areas of Commerce, Legal, including, but not limited to, natural person who is serving as
Guang Finance, Accounting or a director, supervisor or employee of the company or its
(Independe |Otherwise Necessary for the affiliates, together with the person's spouse and relative within
nt Business of the Company. the second degree of kinship; not holding shares of the
Directors) |1. University of Southern company; not serving as a director, supervisor or employee of
California, Master degree a company with a specific relationship with the company; not
2. Mei Fu Engineering Service |received remuneration or benefits for providing commercial,
Co., Ltd., Chairman legal, financial, accounting services or consultation to the
3. Mei Fu Development Co., company or to any its affiliates within the preceding two
Ltd., Supervisor years.
4. Importers and Exporters
Association of Taipei,
Director
Not been a person of any
conditions defined in Article 30
of the Company Act.
Wang, Have Work Experience in the Independent director who meets the independence criteria, 0
Min-Chi  |Areas of Commerce, Legal, including, but not limited to, natural person who is serving as
(Independe |Finance, Accounting or a director, supervisor or employee of the company or its
nt Otherwise Necessary for the affiliates, together with the person's spouse and relative within
Directors) |Business of the Company. the second degree of kinship; not holding shares of the

1. Tsinghua University EMBA

2. Yi Chin & Gibson Co., Ltd. in
Hualien, Chairman

3. Koryo Co., Ltd., remuneration
committee member

4. Mercuries Data Systems Ltd.,
remuneration committee
member

Not been a person of any

conditions defined in Article 30

of the Company Act.

company; not serving as a director, supervisor or employee of
a company with a specific relationship with the company; not
received remuneration or benefits for providing commercial,
legal, financial, accounting services or consultation to the
company or to any its affiliates within the preceding two
years.

Note 1: Professional qualifications and experience: The professional qualifications and experience of individual
directors and supervisors shall be stated, and if a member of the audit committee with accounting or
financial expertise, the accounting or financial background and work experience shall be stated, together
with disclosure of any of the matters set forth in Article 30 of the Company Act are not applicable.

Note 2: The independence status of the independent directors shall be stated, including, but not limited to, a natural
person who is serving as a director, supervisor or employee of the company or its affiliates, together with
the person's spouse and relative within the second degree of kinship. Shares and its proportion held by the
person, spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship (or nominee arrangement) of the company.
Does he/she serve as a director, supervisor or employee of a company with a specific relationship with the
company (referred to Article 3, Paragraph 1, Clause 5~8 of the Regulations Governing the Appointment
and Exercise of Powers by the Remuneration Committee of a Company Whose Stock is Listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange or the Taipei Exchange). Received remuneration or benefits for providing
commercial, legal, financial, accounting services or consultation to the company or to any its affiliates
within the preceding two years.
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Note 3: For information disclosure, please refer to the Best Practice sample on the website of the Corporate
Governance Center of the TWSE.

Board Diversity and Independence:
Pursuant to Article 20 of the “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles”: The composition of the board of
directors should be diversified. Apart from the provision that the number directors concurrently serving as the
managers of the company shall not exceeds 1/3 of the total seats of the Board, the company shall stipulate proper
diversification principles on its operation, business type and development demand, and the principles may
include but are not limited to the standards of the two major aspects below:

1. Basic requirements and values: gender, age, nationality and culture, etc. Among them, the percentage of female

directors should reach one-third of total director seats.
2. Professional knowledge and skills: professional background (such as law, accounting, industry, finance,
marketing or technology), professional skills and industry experience, etc.

The members of the Board shall generally have the necessary knowledge, skills and qualifications to perform their

duties. The board of directors as a whole shall have the following efficiencies to achieve the ideal goal of corporate

governance:

. The ability to make judgments about operations.

. Accounting and financial analysis ability.

. Business management ability.

. Crisis handling capability.

. Knowledge of the industry..

. International market perspective.

. Leadership ability.

. Decision-making ability.

All directors have operating judgment, business management, crisis management, leadership, decision-making,

accounting and financial analysis ability, industry knowledge and international market perspective.

O~NOoO Ok~ WwWN PR

The board of directors of the company is consisted of professionals from different fields of industry, and the
independent directors are consisted of professionals with different abilities. The directors are qualified in industrial
decision making, finance, accounting, and law to facilitate the board of directors' business operation and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations. Gender: 0 female, 7 males, age: 41-50: 2 people, 51-60: 3 people, 61-70: 2
people, all of whom are R.O.C. nationals. Independent directors: 3 people account for 43% of all directors.
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3.3.10. Implementation status of internal control system
3.3.10.1. Statement of Internal Control System

HOCHENG Corporation

Statement of Internal Control System
Date: March 12, 2024

Based on the results of the self-assessment, the Company's internal control system for the year 2023 is stated as

follows.

1. The Company recognizes that the establishment, implementation and maintenance of the internal control system is the
responsibility of the Company's Board of Directors and the Manager, and that the Company has established such a system.
The purpose of the system is to provide reasonable assurance of the effectiveness and efficiency of operations (including
profitability, performance and safety of assets), reliability of reporting, timeliness, transparency and compliance with relevant
regulations and compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

2. No matter how well designed, an effective internal control system can only provide reasonable assurance of the achievement
of the above three objectives; moreover, the effectiveness of the internal control system may change due to changes in
circumstances and conditions. However, the Company's internal control system has a self-monitoring mechanism, and once
deficiencies are identified, the Company will take corrective action.

3. The Company determines the effectiveness of the design and implementation of the internal control system in accordance
with the criteria for determining the effectiveness of the internal control system set forth in the "Guidelines Governing the
Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies” (the "Guidelines™). The judgment items of the internal
control system adopted in the "Guidelines" are divided into five components based on the management control process: 1.
control environment, 2. risk assessment, 3. control operations, 4. information and communication, and 5. monitoring
operations. Each component includes a number of items. Please refer to the "Handling Guideline" for the above items.

4. The Company has adopted the above internal control system judgment items to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and
implementation of the internal control system.

5. Based on the results of the aforementioned evaluation, the Company believes that the design and implementation of the
Company's internal control system (including the supervision and management of subsidiaries) as of December 31, 2023,
including the understanding of the extent to which operational effectiveness and efficiency objectives have been achieved,
and the reporting of such internal control system is reliable, timely, transparent and in compliance with relevant regulations
and relevant laws and regulations, is effective and can reasonably ensure the achievement of the aforementioned objectives.

6. This statement will be the main content of the Company's annual report and public statement and will be made public. If any
of the above-mentioned contents are disclosed in a false or concealed manner, the Company will be subject to legal liability
under Article 20, Article 32, Article 171 and Article 174 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

7. This statement was approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting on March 12, 2024. Of the 6 directors present, zero held

opposing views and the rest agreed to the contents of this statement.

HOCHENG Corporation
Chairman : Chiu, Li-Chien

General Manager : Chen, Shih-Chieh

3.3.10.2. For those who need to appoint an accountant to review the internal control system, the
accountant's review report should be disclosed: None.
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(11) Recent year and until the printing date of the annual report, the company and its internal
personnel have not been punished according to the law, and the company has not imposed
any penalties on its internal personnel for violations of internal control system regulations.
There are no major deficiencies and improvement situations.

(12) Important resolutions of the shareholders' meeting and the board of directors in the
recent year and until the printing date of the annual report:

1. mportant resolutions of the board of directors:

Date

2023/05/09

2023/06/27

2023/08/08

2023/11/07

Important Resolutions

Amend the case of the company's visa accountant, Jiang Xiaoling.
Evaluate the independence of the visa accountant.
Acknowledge the financial statements for the first quarter of the year
2023.
Acknowledge the operating report for the year 2022.
Acknowledge the profit distribution plan for the year 20221.
Application for changes to the bank financing limit.
Amendment to the rules of the shareholders' meeting.
Deliberate on the distribution of employee and director remuneration
for the year 2022.
9. Application for endorsement guarantee from Hocheng China Co.,
Ltd.
10. Application for endorsement guarantee from Hocheng Philippines
Co., Ltd.
Resolution: Except for the directors mentioned above who abstained due to
conflicts of interest for items 8, 9, and 10, all other attending directors agreed
to pass the resolutions. All other resolutions were unanimously agreed upon
by all attending directors.

—

® N

PN T

1. The simple merger case between the company and its subsidiary.
Resolution: Unanimous approval by all attending directors.

1. The financial statements for the second quarter of the year 2023 of the
company.

2. Application for extension of the bank financing limit for the second half
of the year 2023.

3.Application for endorsement guarantee from Hocheng Philippines Co., Ltd.

Resolution: Unanimous approval by all attending directors.

1. The financial statements for the third quarter of the year 2023 of the
company.

2.Internal audit plan for the year 2024.

3.0Operational plan for the year 2024.

4.Amendments to the internal control procedures.

5.Cash capital increase proposal for Baolong Interior Craft Co., Ltd.
6.Confirmation that there are no incidents of disguised fund loans in the




2024/01/16

2024/03/12

overdue receivables as of the end of September 2023 for the
company.

Resolution: Unanimous approval by all attending directors.

1. Proposal for director remuneration and executive annual bonuses for the
year 2023.

2.Executive compensation proposal.

3.Application for extension of the bank financing limit for the first half of the
year 2024.

Resolution: Except for the directors mentioned above who abstained due to

conflicts of interest for item 1, all other attending directors agreed to pass the

resolution. All other resolutions were unanimously agreed upon by all

attending directors.

1. Evaluate the independence of the visa accountant.

2.Acknowledge the financial statements for the year 2023 of the company.

3.Assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control system and issuance of
the "Internal Control System Statement."

4.Agenda for the company's 2024th annual general meeting.

5.Date of receipt of written proposals from shareholders.

6.Nomination of director candidates for the company's 2024th annual general
meeting.

7.Period for accepting nominations for director candidates for the company's

2024th annual general meeting.

8.Election of directors.

9.Removal of restrictions on newly appointed directors regarding competition.

10.Amendment of the internal control system.

11.Proposal for endorsement guarantee from Baolong Interior Craft Co., Ltd.
(Cathay United Bank).

Resolution: Unanimous approval by all attending directors.

2. 1Review of resolutions and implementation status of the 2023th Annual Shareholders'

Meeting
Meeting Date Key Resolutions Resolution Results and
Implementation Status
-~ Approval of the 2022th The resolution has been
Annual Financial Statements | @PProved, —and Fhe rglevant
and Reports Case forms have been filed with and
reported to the competent
Annual authorities in accordance with
General the Company Law and other
Meeting 2023/06/21 related regulations.
(AGM) =~ Recognition of the Profit | The resolution has been
Dlstrlbut!on Proposal for the approved. From the
2022th Fiscal Year distributable surplus of 2022,
NT$22,910,303 will be allocated
to the statutory surplus reserve
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as required, and a cash dividend
of NT$0.2 per share will be

distributed.

= ~ Amendments to certain
articles of the Company's
Shareholders' Meeting

Rules -

The resolution has been passed
and processed in accordance
with the revised procedures -

(- =) In the most recent fiscal year and up to the printing date of the annual report, there
were no records or written statements from directors or supervisors who disagreed
with important decisions passed by the Board of Directors.

(+ = ) Summary of resignations or dismissals of individuals related to the company
(including the chairman, general manager, accounting officer, finance officer, internal
audit officer, corporate governance officer, and research and development officer) up
to the printing date of the annual report: None."

3.4 information on auditors' fees :

Amount Unit: New Taiwan Dollars (NTD) in thousands

Name of the Accountant

%if;)unt1ng Last Name, Auqllt((j)r s audit Audit fees No]rc\—audlt Total Remarks
' First Name |P€M© ees

Anhou Jianye| MarshaiWu |The year 2023

& Partners

Accounting | Swimming [The year 2023 5,900 729 4629

Firm HSU

KPMG Taiwan: Fees for transfer pricing tax services for the year 2022, fees for capital
reduction review of undistributed earnings for the year 2022, fees for simplified merger
services of parent and subsidiary companies for the year 2023, and expenses for audit travel,

report binding, photocopying, postage, etc.

Total: NT$ 700,836 thousand

Integrity & Co., CPAs: Service fees for business tax audit certification for the year 2022

Total: NT$ 28 thousand
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3.5

In the year 2023, due to the internal rotation within the accounting firm, Mr. Jiang Zhongyi,
the signing certified public accountant, was replaced by Ms. Xu Shumin.

3.6

The Chairman, General Manager, or manager responsible for finance or accounting of the
company, who has served in the accounting firm or its affiliated enterprises in the past year,
shall disclose their name, position, and period of service in the accounting firm or its affiliated
enterprises: None.
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3.7. Shareholding variation of directors, supervisors, managerial officers and largest shareholders

2023 Current year, as of April 30
Title (Note 1) Name Shareholding Pledged share | Shareholding | Pledged share
increase Increase increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)

Chairman Chiu, Li-Chien 0 0 0 0
Director Wu, Yue-Long 0 0 0 0
Director Fuho Investment 0 0 0 0

Co., Ltd.

- representative:

Chiu, Chih-Hsin
Director Yuhuang Co., Ltd. 0 0 0 0

- representative:

Chiu, Shi-Kai 0 0 0 0
Independent director Fan, Wei-Guang 0 0 0 0
Independent director Wang, Cheng-Wei 0 0 0 0
Independent director Tsai, Hung-Jian 0 0 0 0
Independent director Wang, Min-Chi 0 0 0 0
General manager Chen, Shih-Chieh 0 0 0 0
Vice general manager | Kang, Shui-Shu 0 0 0 0
Vice general manager | Huang, Jian-Cheng 0 0 0 0
Chief financial officer Chiu, Chi-Hsin
of finance department
Associate Xu,Zhao-Shan 0 0 0 0
Associate Chen,Yao-Song 0 0 0 0
Associate Huang,Zhao-Jie 0 0 0 0
Associate Chen,Jin-Ye 0 0 0 0
Associate Xu,Ting-Jia 0 0 0 0
Associate Li,Long-Cheng 0 0 0 0
Associate Li, Guo-Dong 0 0 0 0
Associate Luo,Yue-Ying 0 0 0 0
Associate Zhang , Yong- 0 0 0 0
Associate Chang 0 0 0 0

Tong, Qing-Wei 0 0 0 0
Associate You, Rong-Dan 0 0 0 0

Note 1: Shareholders holding 10% or more of total amount of the Company’s shares shall be designated as
largest shareholders, and separately listed.
Note 2: Where the counter party in any such transfer or pledge of equity interests is a related party, it shall be
filled in the following table.
Note 3: The decrease in share count is due to capital reduction. Assistant Managers, Xu Zhaoshan and
Chen Jinye, were relieved of their duties on March 17, 2023.

Information on Equity ledge

Name
(Note 1)

Reason of
pledge
change
(note 2)

Variation
date

Counter
party of
transaction

Relationship
between counter
party of
transaction and
the Company,
directors,
supervisors,
managerial
officers and
shareholders
holding 10% or
more of
shareholding ratio

Number of
shares

Shareho
lding
ratio

Pledge
(redemption)
amount

Pledge
ratio

None

None

None

None

None

None

None None None

Note 1: Fill in names of the Company’s directors, supervisors, managerial officers and 10 largest

shareholders holing 10% or more of shareholding ratio.
Note 2: Fill in pledge or redemption.
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4.1.2 Shareholder Structure

May.03, 2024

Shareholder
Structure

Quantity

Governmental
Organization

Financial
structure

Other Legal
Entities

Individual

Foreign
Organizations
and Foreigners

Total

Number of persons

0

0

53 22,739

63

22,855

Number of shares
held

0

0

64,230,727

226,697,661

11,375,331

302,303,719

Shareholding Ratio

0%

0%

21.25%

74.99%

3.76%

100%

Note: First listed (OTC) companies and emerging companies shall disclose the proportion of their shares held

by Chinese capital; Chinese capital refers to the people, legal entities, organizations, and other

institutions from mainland China or their companies invested in third regions as stipulated in Article 3

of the Regulations on the Permission for People to Invest in Taiwan.

4.1.3 Diversification of shareholding

4.1.3.1. Diversification of Ordinary Shareholdings :

Face value of NT$10 per share

May 02, 2024
Shareholding Classification Number of Number of shares held Sharehqldmg
shareholders Ratio
1 to 999 6,600 2,043,478 0.68%
1,000 to 5,000 12,630 27,104,187 8.97%
5,001 to 10,000 1,996 16,383,497 5.42%
10,001 to 15,000 469 6,067,779 2.01%
15,001 to 20,000 390 7,288,999 2.41%
20,001 to 30,000 262 6,836,598 2.26%
30,001 to 40,000 116 4,182,002 1.38%
40,001 to 50,000 88 4,107,774 1.36%
50,001 to 100,000 122 8,878,056 2.94%
100,001 to 200,000 78 10,802,121 3.57%
200,001 to 400,000 31 9,072,173 3.00%
400,001 to 600,000 9 4,354,341 1.44%
600,001 to 800,000 8 5,705,813 1.89%
800,001 to 1,000,000 4 3,426,607, 1.13%
1,000,001 or more depending on 52 186,050,294 61.54%
Actual situation
Total 22,855 302,303,719 100.00%
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4.1.3.2. Diversification of ownership of preferred shares: Not applicable.




4.1.4 List of major shareholders

May 02, 2024

Shares
Ig?me Number of shares held Shareholding ratio (%)
major shareholders
Dorkay Investment Company 14,940,045 4.94
Ltd.
Yuhuang Co., Ltd. 11,507,634 3.81
Chiu, Li-Chien 10,522,267 3.48
Chiu,Lin-Cui 8,015,343 2.65
Li,Kai-Ping 8,002,781 2.65
Chiu,Jun-Jie 7,283,922 241
Chiu,Hong-You 7,066,676 2.34
Bosch Investment Co., Ltd. 6,138,228 2.03
Chiu,Chen-Hui-Mei 5,926,287 1.96
Yishui Tang Investment Co., 5,477,000 1.81

Ltd.

—d ol
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4.1.5. Statement of market price, net worth, earnings and dividends per share

Year Current year, as of March

Item 2022 2023 31, 2024 (note 8)
Market  |The highest 23.35 30
price per

The lowest 9.87 16.95
share
(note 1)  |Average 13.79 20.57
Net worth | Before distribution 21.26 22.06 22.41
per share
(note 2) After distribution — - -

Weighted average number| 343,727 302,279 301,859
Earnings |of shares thousand thousand thousand
per share  (Earnings per share

0.46 0.06 (0.06)
(note 3)
Cash dividends 0.2 0.2 -
0 0 0

Dividends Bonus
per share shares 10 0 0 -

Accumulated unpaid L L L

dividends (note 4)

Earnings ratio (note 5) 29.98 342.83 -
Analysis of —— -

Dividend ratio (note 6) 68.95 102.85 —
return on
investment |Cash dividend yield rate 145% 097 -

(note 7)

* When the Company has earnings or capital surplus transferred to dividends, it shall disclose information of
market price and cash dividends retrospectively adjusted by distributed number of shares.

Note 1: List the highest and the lowest market prices of common stocks each year, and according to the turnover
and trading volume of each year, calculate the average market price of each year.

Note 2: Please go by the number of shares issued in the end of the year, and fill in according to the distribution
approved by board of directors or the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting in the next year.

Note 3: As the Company had bonus shares, and needed to retrospectively adjust, and it shall list earnings per
share before and after adjusted.

Note 4: If it specified that the undistributed dividends of the current year shall be accumulated in distributed
earnings year in equity securities issuance conditions, and the Company shall separately disclose
accumulated unpaid dividends as of the end of the current year.

Note 5: Earnings ratio = average closing price of the current year / earnings per share.
Note 6: Dividend ratio = average closing price of the current year / cash dividends per share.

Note 7: Cash dividend yield rate = cash dividends per share / average closing price per share of the current
year.

Note 8: Information of the recent quarter examined (reviewed) by CPAs shall be filled in columns of net worth
per share and earnings per share as of the date of publication of the annual report; information of the
current year shall be filled in the rest columns as of the date of publication of the annual report.
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4.1.6. Company's Dividend Policy and Implementation Status
Company's Dividend Policy:

1. If surplus earnings are available, priority is offsetting any loss from prior year(s) and
paying all taxes and dues. Secondly, the company shall set aside ten percent of such profits
as a legal reserve. If surplus earnings remain, it shall be combined with the statutory
surplus reserve from previous years to be distributed into shareholders dividends at
shareholders meeting. The Board of Directors shall draft a proposal of shareholders
dividends allocation which is based on Company’s operation status and capital
requirements and submit it to the shareholders meeting for resolution. Priority of
distribution is cash dividends. While the dividends were distributed in cash and shares at
the same time, cash dividends shall not be less than ten percent of total amount of
distributed dividends. Where such legal reserve amounts to the total paid-in capital, the
dividends shall not be distributed through resolutions by shareholders meeting. The
statutory surplus and capital reserve shall be paid as dividends and bonuses, as required by
relevant laws and regulations, and such distribution shall be submitted by Board of
Directors to shareholders meeting for approval.

2. Distribution of Dividend Proposed by Shareholders Meeting:

(1) (1) The financial statements for the fiscal year 2023 of the company have been
audited by Certified Public Accountants Xu Shumin and Wu Zhaoren from
Anhou Jianye & Partners Accounting Firm. The net profit after tax for the fiscal
year 2023 is NTD 19,346,653. In accordance with the company's articles of
association, NTD 4,103,220 is appropriated as statutory surplus, and the year-
end distributable profit is NTD 1,555,507,441. It is proposed to distribute a cash
dividend of NTD 60,460,744 from the distributable profit of the fiscal year 112
(NTD 0.2 per share of earnings), rounded down to the nearest whole number.
Any fractional amounts below one NTD shall be disregarded and the total of
fractional amounts less than one NTD shall be included in other income of the
company.

(2) Upon approval by the shareholders meeting, the chairman shall be authorized to resolve
the ex-dividend base date, the issuance date and other relevant matters.

(3) If the outstanding shares is afterward affected by buyback, transfer, cancellation of the
company shares, or in accordance with other laws and regulations, it is proposed that the
Board of Directors be authorized to adjust the amount and rate of dividend to be
distributed.

4.1.7. Effect upon 2023 Business Performance of the company and earnings per share of any
stock dividend distribution proposed or adopted at the most recent shareholders'
meeting: Not applicable due to no stock dividend distribution for this year.

4.1.8. Compensation of employees and directors:

A. The percentages or ranges with respect to employee, director, and supervisor compensation,
as set forth in the company's articles of incorporation: In addition to paying taxes and dues
and making up the losses of the previous year, ten percent of the net profit after the final
accounts shall be set aside as a legal reserve, pursuant to article 41 in Securities and
Exchange Act, a certain proportion of its earnings as special reserve. In view of business
conditions and policy of balance dividends, except for the reserved partial balance, the
undistributed surplus of the previous year is added to the balance. The distribution proposal
is as follows, subject to a resolution of the shareholders meeting for distribution.

1. The employee compensation allocation rate is 5%-8% of the annual profit.

2. Directors and supervisors’ remuneration allocation rate is with limit of no more than 3%
of the annual profit.

B. The company achieved a profit of NTD 56,453,438 for the fiscal year 2023. As
recommended by the 2nd Remuneration Committee of the 5th session for the
fiscal year 2024, employee (including management) remuneration totaling NTD

-97-



3,722,205 and director remuneration totaling NTD 1,861,102 were appropriated,

both to be distributed in cash.
C. Information on any approval by the Board of Directors of distribution of compensation:
1. The amount of any employee compensation distributed in cash or stocks and

compensation for directors. If there is any discrepancy between that amount and the
estimated figure for the fiscal year these expenses are recognized, the discrepancy, its

cause, and the status of treatment shall be disclosed.

2023
Employee Compensation NTD$3,722,205
Directors Remuneration NTD$%1,861,102

The actual amount of payment is congruent with the recognized amount for FY 2023.

2. The amount of any employee compensation distributed in stocks, and the size of that
amount as a percentage of the sum of the after-tax net income stated in the parent company
only financial reports or individual financial reports for the current period and total
employee compensation: There is no employee compensation distributed in stocks for this

period.

D. The actual distribution of employee, director, and supervisor compensation for the previous
fiscal year (with an indication of the number of shares, monetary amount, and stock price,
of the shares distributed), and, if there is any discrepancy between the actual distribution and
the recognized employee, director, or supervisor compensation, additionally the discrepancy,
cause, and how it is treated:

2022
Employee Compensation NT$14,920,394
Directors Remuneration NT$7,460,197
The actual amount of payment is congruent with the recognized amount for FY 2022

4.1.9. Status of the company repurchasing its own shares: In 2023 up to this annual report

published, there is no repurchasing its own shares by the company.

Financing Plans and Implementation of Corporate Bonds, Preferred Shares,
Overseas Depositary Receipts, and Employee Stock Option with Warrants:

4.1. Financing Plans and Implementation of Corporate Bonds: None
4.2. Financing Plans and Implementation of Preferred Shares: None
4.3. Financing Plans and Implementation of Overseas Depositary

Receipts: None

4.4. Financing Plans and Implementation of Employee Stock Option with

Warrants: None

4.5. Restrictions on the handling of new shares of employees' rights:

None

4.6. Implementation of Mergers and Acquisitions or Issuance of New

Shares in connection with any acquisition of shares of another
company: None

4.7. Implementation of Assets Process and Planning:

(1) Planning: Not applicable due to the company not issuing or privately placed
securities not been completed within the last three years.

(2) Implementation: Not applicable due to the company not issuing or privately
placed securities not been completed within the last three years.
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V. Operational Highlights
5.1. Business Activities:
(I) Scope of Business:

Main Business Activities and the Business Proportion:
The scope of business of this Company is mainly manufacture, processing, sales, repair &
maintenance, etc. of the general sanitary ceramics, water supply copper, bathtub, kitchen
utensils and bathroom accessories. The rate for import is 87.9%, while that for exportis 12.1%
(Hocheng China + Hocheng Philippines + other affiliates). Our products include:
Sanitary ware: Various toilets, water tanks, washbasins, pedestals, urinals, waste
basins, urinals, and other related items, accounting for 37% of total revenue. Water
supply copperware: Common faucets, single-handle faucets, high-end artistic faucets,
thermostatic faucets, water tank accessories, makeup mirrors, automated equipment,
automatic toilet seats, etc., accounting for 41.4% of total revenue. Bathtubs and
countertops: SMC bathtubs, massage bathtubs, automatic clothes racks, shower
doors, marble countertops, etc., accounting for 5.5% of total revenue. Others: Toilet

covers, kitchenware, scientific materials, etc., accounting for 16.1% of total revenue.
(IT) Industry Overview:

For recent two years, although the real estate market recovers, the competition of the domestic
bathroom products is rigid due to the occupation of foreign brands in the domestic market in
low cost. It is expected that the operation of the domestic manufacturers would be more
difficult after the government releases the import from Mainland China. For that sake, we
continue to develop the high value-added products, such as the products of retro Chinese style,
European classic style, environmental green series and artistic series, etc. Besides, in the
future, we would actively put emphasis on the promotion of the diversified products, for
example, such high-tech products as bulletproof ceramics, photocatalyst ceramic filter, and
the business transformation like the new composite material industry in a view to increasing
the company’s performance.

(IIT) Technology and Research & Development Overview:
1. Research & Development Expenditure For Most Recent Three Years

Unit: NT$ Thousands

The Current Year up
Year 2021 2022 2023
to March 31, 2024
Amount| 131,188 111,059 109058 23,857

2. Research and Development Results for the Most Recent Three Years:

Research and Development Results in 2022

Item Item of Product ltem Item of Product
No. No.
1 Owa Series Faucet Development 12 | Smart Water-Saving Urinal (AntFeel)
Stainless Steel Series F t .
2 ainiess Steel >eries rauce 13 | Health-Enhancing Hands-Free
Development
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L L4102.L4103.L4104 Semi-Embedded

3 | Innovative Sensor Faucet AF9368 14 . .
Cabinet Basin
4 | New Series (SM) Faucets 15 | L4567 Left/Right Basin Development
5 | C6695 Super Toilet Development 16
6 C4297 Monobloc Toilet 17
Development
7 | CS3207 Toilet Development 18
8 | New Model Super Toilet AFC6695 19
9 | New Type Super Toilet AFC6068 20
10 Premium Two-Stage Water-Saving )1
Toilet C4588
New CT106N.C153N High-Pressure
11 . 22
Molded Toilet Development
Research and Development Results in 2023
ltem Item of Product ltem Item of Product
No. No.
1 | BADEN 2.0 Series Development 11 | Developing mechanical urinal U283.
) ETON 2.0 Toilets CS4566, C4588
Development
3 ETON 2.0 Square Basins L4582,
L4568 Development
4 LEGATO 2.0 Toilets C4297, C4399
Development
5 LEGATO 2.0 Basins L4103, L4104,
L4107 Development
6 Round Pipe Faucets LF7011,
LF7021, LF7031 Development
7 Square Pipe Faucet LF8011
Development
2 Bathroom Faucets BF7013, BF8013,
BF 8023 Development
9 Kitchen Faucet KF7024
Development
10 L7000/L7002 Thin Basin Development
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3. Research and Development Plan in the Future:
| Items Scheduled for Development in 2024

No. Product Item No. Product Item

Development of bathroom
accessories

Application of PVD Technology in
Round Tube Faucets

1 | Development of ETON 2.0 series 10

2 | Development of LEGATO 2.0 series 11

3 | Development of new super toilets 12 | Development of in-wall urinal flusher

Development of smart and

4 . . . 13 | Development of Health Toilets
lightweight toilets

5 fo(??}fgj;ifnzu:::ig f;ggg;;gy 14 | Development of Children's Toilets

6 Development and application of fall 15 Development of New Material
detection system Application for Shower Door

. Development of wood grain safety 16 Development of New Material
handrails Application for Bathroom Cabinets

8 | Development of household urinals

Development of wall-mounted
urinals
(4)Long- and short-term business development plans
1.Short-term business development plans
(1)Improve customer service to establish trust and facilitate the sales of related
products.
(2)Actively develop and sell products related to the demand for composite materials,
bulletproof ceramics, and environmental-friendly ceramic faucets, among others.
(3)Make customers deeply recognize the concept of "quality first" and "service first"
for our products.
(4)Use "customer satisfaction is our responsibility" as the working principle for all
employees.
2.Long-term business development plans
(T)Actively develop markets and channels to achieve annual business goals.
(2)Reduce costs, strengthen logistics management, and increase operating profits.
(3)Accelerate new product development and improve market competitiveness.
(4)Strengthen advertising and marketing to increase market share of products.
(
(

9

5)Enhance talent training and implement performance management.
6)iImplement ISO quality and environmental policies.

5.2. Market and Production & Marketing Overview

(1) Market Analysis
(a)Overall Analysis (1) Economic Growth Rate: Due to the global economic downturn and
ongoing geopolitical disruptions, the expansion of commodity trade is hindered. However,
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due to a low base period, countries with export-oriented economies are showing relatively
better performance compared to those with domestic demand-oriented economies. Last
year, economic growth was primarily supported by private consumption, but this year, it is
supported by investment and foreign net demand, leading to a balanced growth pattern
both domestically and externally. As global growth slows and demand decreases,
inflationary pressures have eased, resulting in a moderation of overall price increases, and
the annual economic growth rate has also decreased to 1.31%, the lowest in fourteen years.
(2) Consumer Confidence Index: The Consumer Confidence Index reflects the satisfaction of
regional consumers with the current economic situation and their expectations for future
economic trends, indicating consumer willingness and sentiment. According to statistics, in
December 112, the Consumer Confidence Index in Taiwan reached 70.06, a slight increase
of 0.66 points from the previous month, marking the third consecutive month of increase
and reaching the highest level in twenty months. (3) Economic Policy Signals: In December
112, the Economic Policy Signal remained at a yellow-blue light, with a comprehensive
judgment score of 20, unchanged from November. The leading indicator has been revised
upwards for three consecutive months, indicating a continued recovery of the domestic
economy. However, subsequent changes still need to be monitored. (4) Consumer Price
Index: The CPI growth trend in 2023 slowed compared to the previous year, mainly due to a
fall in raw material prices. According to the survey, the Consumer Price Index for 2023 was
105.51, with an annual growth rate of 2.5%, a decrease of 0.45% from 2022, the second-
highest in nearly fifteen years. The price of domestic goods rose by 2.11% annually,
significantly smaller than the previous year's 3.56%, while the service category increased by
2.87%, driven by increased demand for entertainment services after border opening,
leading to price hikes in entertainment services, dining out, and rent. Therefore, the overall
CPl increase for the year was only slightly lower than 2022.

b.Industry Analysis (1) The housing market in 2023 was unpredictable. At the beginning of
the year, due to five interest rate hikes by the central bank and the passage of the
amendment to the average land rights law, the housing market continued to experience
double-digit declines in transaction volume. However, after the law was formally
implemented in July and the government introduced the New Youth Housing Loan Project
in August, boosting housing market demand, the decline gradually narrowed each month,
presenting a scene of rebounding after setbacks. (2) 2023 was the most stringent year for
the government's anti-speculation measures in history. However, despite the strict policies,
Taiwan's real estate market witnessed increases in land prices, housing prices, consumer
prices, and rents. The Directorate-General of Budget, Accounting and Statistics announced
that the residential category index for 2023 reached 104.35, a historical high. The index for
residential repair costs, also included in the residential category index, was influenced by
double increases in labor and material costs, setting a new record at 109.22, with an annual
increase of 3.2%.

3. :Analysis of HCG Finechem Co., Ltd.

(1) Selling Place and Proportion of Operational Revenue of Main Products
Unit: %

Outlyin
Area North Area Middle Area g
Islands
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Rate of
Operational Taipei Taoyuan Hsinchu Keelung Taichung Miaoli | Changhua | Nantou | Kinmen
Revenue
34.5 11.5 2.8 1.0 9.2 1.6 |46 2.3 0.7
2023
49.8 17.7 0.7
Unit: %
Area Southern Area Eastern Area
Rate of
Operational | Kaohsiung | Tainan | Chiayi | Yunlin | Pingtung | Hualien | llan | Taitung
Revenue
10.8 4.2 3 54 3.9 0.9 3.1 0.5
2023
27.3 4.5

(T)Participated in ESG summit to promote a sustainable environment and fulfill social
responsibility. Sponsored the "LENUS" intelligent epidemic prevention and
protection device to strengthen on-site epidemic control during the exhibition.

(2)AFC6699 intelligent super toilet seat won the MIT Taiwan Golden Selection award.

(3)The Racing Team of the Department of Power Mechanical of Tsing Hua University
presented a new generation of Formula SAE, with aerodynamic kits and multiple
structural components manufactured with the guidance of Hocheng's carbon fiber
composite material technology.

(4)PERFIT, Formosa Plastics, and Hocheng jointly released carbon fiber safety toe cap.

(5)Sponsored the National Museum of Marine Science and Technology's marine
restoration fund.

(6)The LAZULI AQUAMARINE series of carbon fiber frog shoes received recognition
at the 2023 Taiwan Boutique Awards.

(7)The Hocheng Cultural and Educational Foundation held the "My Homeland, Taiwan
Folk Symphony - Hocheng Appreciation Concert for Medical Staff* charity
concert.

(8)The AFC6699 intelligent super toilet seat received the Taiwan Smile
Product MIT Golden Selection certificate.

(IT1) Important Usage and Production Process of Main Products

1. Usage of Main Products

Main Merchandise Usage

Sanitary Porcelain For sanitary use

Water Feeding Copper and Ceramic
Faucet

Bathtub and Marble Countertop,
Kitchenware

For sanitary use

For sanitary use

- 103 -




Shower Sliding Door

For use of construction materials

Bulletproof Ceramics and Composite
Materials

For use of high-tech materials

2. The production process of products is as follows:
(1) SMC Bathtub

Cutting Spreading Forming Forming Trimming
Materials P Materials > P Inspection | g
|
A 4
Hole Processing Processing Parts Assembly Wrap up and
»| Inspection » »| Store
(2) Porcelain
Raw Coarse Material Weighin Preparing Mud Iron
Materials P Crushing P Warchouse > . > P Removing
|
Sieving Storage Measurement Embryo Embryo Drying
> > P Casing P Arrangement >
Inspection Wiping Glazing H Baking Finished
P Embryo > > Loadl > P Products
Sieving Storage Measurement Inspecting trial
> > water
Iron < Weighing Packing
Removing Preparing
Glaze
Raw Materials of Finished Products
Glaze Warehouse
(3) Copper
Casting Mechanic o Grinding o Plating 5| Assembling o | [mspecting o] Packing
Processing w ” d - d

(4) Composite Materials
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(5) Bulletproof Ceramics
Bulletproof Fiber Feeding > Cutting » Hot Press > Drying
Inspection
Feeding Inspection and n . o| Biscuit Firing of - P
Formula Preparation »  Press Forming d Raw Embryo Ceramic Sintering
Steel Plate Feeding Inspection > Cw;;gg;y > S'%ggiﬁgm »{  Welding Steel Box
A 4
%T;ﬁg;)ﬁn% Hot Press & Fixing »  Welding Steel Box »  Drilling Steel Box
Packing and P Finished Products |, Sand blasting & P Welding Sleeve
Warehousing h Inspection Spraying Paint | Y
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(IIT) Supply Status of Main Materials

The raw materials of SMC are supplied by the domestic suppliers and imported materials
manufacturers. Their quality is stable and their sources are sufficient.

Source of materials for the porcelain: Domestic Suppliers and import (except Japan, Korea and
Mainland China, there are other foreign substitute products) are paralleled. The quality of the main
imported materials is stable; the price is cheap and the sources are sufficient.

Source of materials for the copper: We sign the contract with the foreign copper ingot producer
(Korea, Japan, Germany) and the supply of materials is not scarce. A few part of the additive
materials required at the time of low-pressure casting are provided by the traders, the ratio of which
is not high.
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(V) Production Volume & Value for the Most Recent Two Years

Unit: Pcs; NT$ Thousands

Productyon 2022 2023
Production Yield Output |Production Vield Output
Main Products Capacity Value Capacity Value
(or Dept.
Type)
Porcelain 700, 000 401, 143 843, 879 700, 000 312,974 731,416
Copper 1,700,000| 1,434, 741| 1,145,117 1,700,000( 1,277,572| 1,103, 353
Kitchenware 66, 000 55, 200 268, 252 66, 000 53736 261,138
SMC 121, 440 70, 429 50, 970 121, 440 57, 682 43, 536
Fine Ceramic
Composite Note 3 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3
Materials
Mainland China
+ Philippines Note 3 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3
Other
Affiliates
Total Note 3 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3

Note 1: Production Capacity: refers to the volume, which can be produced under
the normal operation by making use of the existing production equipment
excluding such factors as the stoppage, required after the company s
consideration and holidays.

Note 2: If the production of each product is substitutable, the production
capacity may be calculated on a consolidated basis, and a note should be

provided.

Note 3: Because Mainland China + Philippines + Other Affiliates and the items of
operation for the fine ceramic composite materials are too numerous to be
quantified and the prices are different, their volume shall not be included
in the statistics.

(VI) Sales Volume & Value for the Most Recent Two Years

Unit: Pcs; NT$ Thousands

2022 2023
Import Export Import Export
Main Products Volume | Value | Volume | Value | Volume | Value | Volume | Value
(or Dept.

Type)

Porcelain 1227672|1, 302, 195 66, 407 2,427(1,164, 476|1, 346, 989 4,910 1,992
Copper 1,879, 6881, 382, 402 19, 596 3, 3392, 060, 326|1, 340, 961 39, 492 6, 158
Kitchenware 447730| 258,198 5 11 62, 776| 261,124 3 13
SMC 95, 061 206, 644| 33,812] 9,323| 77,765 172,269 24,284] 7,764
Find Ceramic Note| 234, 219 Note| 1,469 Note| 115, 419 Note| 2,575
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Composite
Materials

Mainland China
+ Philippines +
Other
Affiliates

Note| 392,824 Note|1, 211, 393 Note|1, 042, 498 Note| 573,024

Total Note|3, 776, 482 Note|1, 227, 962 Note|4, 279, 260 Note| 591, 527

Note: Because Mainland China + Philippines + Other Affiliates and the items of
operation for the fine ceramic composite materials are too numerous to be
quantified and the prices are different, their volume shall not be included
in the statistics.
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5. 3. Information of Employees during the Most Recent Two Years up to the Date of

Publication of the Annual Report
March 31, 2023

Year 2022 2023 March 31, 2024
Key Management 267
Staff 240 266
Employee No. | Staff 355 360 336
Operator 436 395 387
Total 1058 995 989
Average Age 42. 46 42,79 43.07
Average Years of Service 13. 39 13.63 13.775
Ph. D. 0.19 0. 30 0. 30
Master 2.65 2. 61 2. 63
Distribution | University & 2800
Rate of College ) 38.19 38. 42
Education | Senior High School 24. 95 24.12 24. 27
Below Senior High
School 34.21 34. 78 34. 38

5.4. Information of Expenses for Environmental Protection

Loss which the company suffers from polluting the environment during the most recent two years:
None.

1.  In consideration of the generally-upgraded environmental awareness and the sustainable
operation idea, this Company has deemed pollution prevention and environmental protection work
as a responsibility of corporate management, so we strictly ask our workers to do well environmental
protection during the construction process of each engineering.

2. We carry out the extension of the emission permit for each polluted facility and various
declarations pursuant to the statutory regulations.

3. In order to meet the statutory requirements, we are devoted to the maintenance and improvement
of each treatment facility, equipment and waste classification in respect of environmental protection.
4. We supervise and audit the melioration of site operation environment, maintain the employees’
health and raise work efficiency, for instance, simplifying the manufacturing process of embryo
wiping, etc.

5. We reduce the waste water discharge and recycle the waste water and soil and correspond to the
manufacturing process of site operation.
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(3) Material Capital Expenditure in Environmental Protection for the Future Three Years:

Unit: NT$ Thousands

2024 2025 2026
Pollution
Prevention
Equipment Efficient wastewater Efficient wastewater Maintenance and
Intended for separation and separation and improvement of dust
Purchase or treatment treatment collection equipment
Contents of
Expenditure
Estimated Meeting the Meeting the Meeting the
Improvement requirement of the requirement of the requirement of the
Status Environmental Environmental Environmental
Protection Act Protection Act Protection Act
Estimated 6,700 6,900 6,600
Amount
Effect on Net The preceding The preceding The preceding
Profit after expenditure makes no expenditure makes no | expenditure makes no
Improvement remarkable effect on remarkable effect on remarkable effect on
the company’s net the company’s net the company’s net
profit. profit. profit.
Effect on 1. Increase the waste | 1 Meet the 1. Complies with
Competition water disposal requirements of the environmental
Status efficiencyReduce environmental regulations
the repair and protection act. 2. Reduces waste
maintenance Improve the generation
expenses for the 2 operation Enhances

waste water

environment.

3. corporate image

disposal Maintain the Lowers production
2. equipment. employees’ health. 4. costs, increases
Meet the 3 Raise work corporate
requirements of the efficiency. competitiveness
environmental Promote the 5 Increases reuse rate
protection act. 4 corporate image. "Increasing
Promote the Increase the Reusability Rate

corporate image.

corporate co

Increase the Enhancing

corporate Corporate Imagem
3. competitiveness 5 Petitiveness

Meet the ' Increasing Corporate

requirements of the | 6 Competitiveness

environmental p

4. protection act
Promote the

5. corporate image.
Increase the
corporate
competitiveness

Management Rules Concerning the Environmental Policy, Goal and Object Management Projects
Objective: Establish and maintain the documented environment safety goal and the object collective
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management projects for the purpose of actualizing the environment safety policy in the
organization.

Scope: It applies to establishment, amendment, retention, examination and related matters.

Energy Saving Measures:

Energy Saving & Carbon Reduction and Reduction of Greenhouse Gas

Conduct on an irregular basis the policy proclamation for the internal employees and strengthen their
energy saving awareness.

In order to avoid the excessive waste of energy, install the real time power monitoring system and
equipment point check list in respect of the energy use.

Replace originally-used T8 lamp tube by LED lamp, reduce the quantity of light tube and advocate
the “switching off when leaving” in the area of site production plants.

Set the air conditioning temperature at 26°~28° and label the energy slogan in order to achieve the
energy saving and carbon reduction purpose.

In order to upgrade the power factor, fully re-install the low-voltage capacitor to substantially reduce
the power factor.

Replace the previously-used reciprocating air compressor by the spiral air compressor in order to
reduce the energy consumption and carbon emission.

Induct the residual heat created during production into the embryo baking place in order to reduce
the energy use and carbon emission.

Carry out the regular inspection of the air pollution equipment to avoid excessive energy
consumption.

Water Saving Policy

Replace on an overall basis the water saving facilities in the plant, for example, the water saving
toilet, the automatic sensing flusher, the water saving bubble head.

Recycle the waste water, make use of the dosing disposal through the filtering system and then
recycle it for the site use so as to attain to the water saving purpose.

Replace the water pipe in the plant and conduct the regular inspection, reduce the loss of water
during the conveying process and avoid the waste of water resources.

Utilize the recycled water in the plant in the living water, such as washing the toilet, etc.

Waste Substance Reduction

Recycle the organic dirt, get rid of the dosing treatment, but make use of the natural precipitation to
achieve the dirt recycling purpose in order not only to reduce the volume of waste substance but
decrease the dosing volume.

Exactly classify the garbage in the plant, reduce the volume of trash to be cleaned and delivered to
the incinerator in order to attain to the waste reduction effect.

Promote the employees’ knowledge of environmental protection and effective performance of waste
reduction.

5.5. Labor Relations

(1) Current Major Labor-Management Agreements and Implementation Status
1.Employee Welfare Measures:

(1) Insurance: In addition to handling labor insurance and national health insurance according to
regulations, the company also provides group insurance for employees (life insurance, accident
insurance, hospitalization medical insurance, major disease insurance, major burn insurance), and
statutory communicable disease protection comprehensive insurance.

(2) Health and Safety:

A. Employees are entitled to a free health checkup once every five years while on duty. Those aged
over forty but under sixty-five are entitled to a free health checkup once every three years. Special
operation personnel are entitled to a free health checkup annually. The company values the results of
employee health checkups and, with the employee’s consent, actively assists in tracking treatment or
observation for employees with abnormal or special circumstances to ensure their health.

B. Medical personnel are stationed to assist in enhancing employees' health management
knowledge, providing relevant improvement advice and follow-up re-examination arrangements and
reminders for objects with abnormal health checkups. The company estimates the cardiovascular
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disease risk level based on WHO cardiovascular disease risk estimation charts through abnormal
reports from labor health checkups for tracking management.

C. Qualified first aid personnel are stationed to handle first aid matters. According to recent
statistics from the Ministry of Health and Welfare on the top three causes of death among
Taiwanese, heart disease ranks high. Many deaths from heart disease occur in the form of sudden
cardiac arrest, and defibrillation is a way to restore normal heartbeats. Studies have shown that for
cases of sudden cardiac arrest due to sudden arrhythmia, if defibrillation can be administered within
one minute, the success rate of first aid can reach 90%, with a decrease in success rate of 7-10% for
every minute of delay. The Automated External Defibrillator (AED) is a device that can
automatically detect the heart rhythm of injured or sick patients and deliver a shock to restore normal
heart function. Therefore, the company has installed AEDs in office buildings and comprehensively
trained employees on how to use them for use in emergencies, reducing the pre-hospital mortality
rate for such patients.

D. To strengthen employees' fire and disaster prevention awareness and prevent disasters, a self-
defense fire brigade has been established, and regular drills are conducted.

(3) Travel: When employees have served for eighteen years, the company subsidizes domestic and
international travel.

(4) Activities: Organizing basketball, baseball, darts, and soccer competitions to enhance team
cohesion, promote emotional exchange among employees, and liven up the organizational
atmosphere.

(5) Leave: Providing statutory leaves and annual special leaves according to the Labor Standards
Act, and providing statistical reports for colleagues to schedule various activities in order to achieve
a balance between work and life. (6) Birthdays, weddings, and funerals: Each unit holds irregular
birthday celebration events every month, distributing birthday vouchers, and providing
congratulations or condolences and hospitalization or major disaster allowances for employees'
weddings, funerals, hospitalizations, or major disasters.

(7) Year-end bonuses.

(8) Employee remuneration.

(9) Setting up lactation rooms and friendly parking spaces.

2.Education, Training, and Further Education (1) In the fiscal year 2023, the company conducted a
total of 13 internal training sessions, with a total class time of 95 hours and a total of 664
participants; a total of 650 hours of external training was conducted, with a total of 74 participants,
and the total training cost was NT$1,003,359.

(2) Employees' external training and domestic and foreign further education are subsidized in full or
in part according to the company's education and training regulations.

3.Retirement System

(1) Handled according to the Labor Standards Act, with monthly contributions made as stipulated to
the Labor Retirement Reserve Fund, stored in a special account supervised by the Labor Retirement
Reserve Supervision Committee. Since July 1, 94, the Labor Retirement Pension Act (new system)
has been implemented, with the following provisions:

A. Employees who started work on or after July 1, 94, are fully subject to the Labor Retirement
Pension Act.

B. Employees who started work before July 1, 94, can choose between the "Labor Retirement
Pension Act" or the "Labor Standards Act" retirement system within five years from July 1, 94,
based on their actual needs. If employees fail to make a choice by the deadline, they will continue to
be subject to the retirement pension regulations of the Labor Standards Act from the date of
implementation. C. Employees may voluntarily retire under the following conditions:

(A) Those aged fifty-five or older with fifteen or more years of service.

(B) Those with twenty-five or more years of service.

(C) Those aged sixty or older with ten or more years of service.

D. Retirement benefits: Under the old system, retirement benefits are calculated according to the
employee's length of service, with two base units granted for each year of service. However, for the
portion of service exceeding fifteen years, one base unit is granted for each year. The maximum total

- 114 -



is capped at forty-five base units. Those with less than half a year of service are calculated as half a
year, and those with over half a year are calculated as one year. Under the new system, retirement
benefits are handled according to the "Labor Retirement Pension Act." Employees are required to
contribute a monthly retirement pension of no less than 6% of their monthly salary, stored in a
personal account established by the Ministry of Labor's Labor Insurance Bureau. Employees aged
sixty or older are eligible to receive retirement benefits (accumulated principal and interest from the
personal account). Employees with fifteen or more years of contribution should receive monthly
retirement benefits, while those with less than fifteen years of contribution should receive a lump-
sum retirement benefit. After receiving retirement benefits, employees can continue working and
making contributions, with one annual opportunity to receive additional retirement benefits. In the
event of the employee's death before reaching the age of sixty, the retirement benefits can be claimed
by the surviving family members or the designated beneficiary according to the will. Employees
under the age of sixty who have lost their ability to work can apply for early retirement benefits. (2)
Since November of the seventy-fifth year of the Republic of China, the company has been making
monthly contributions to the Labor Retirement Reserve Fund account at Taiwan Bank at a certain
rate. As of the end of year 112, the balance of the retirement fund was NT$688,507,000.

4.Work Ethics/Code of Conduct (1) The company has established a system of rewards and
punishments for employees, considering the motivation, means, purpose, impact, daily behavior, and
post-incident attitude of the parties involved, and handling them accordingly, based on the degree
determined by the Personnel Review Committee. (2) Categories of rewards and punishments include
commendation: great merit, merit, and praise; disciplinary action: dismissal, major offense, minor
offense, and warning.

5.Protection Measures for Workplace Environment and Employee Personal Safety The company
outsources operation environment inspections twice a year to maintain employee health.

6. Agreements Between Labor and Management To coordinate labor-management
relations and promote cooperation between labor and management, the company holds
labor-management meetings in accordance with the Implementation Measures for Labor-
Management Meetings. In case of labor disputes, they are resolved through labor-
management coordination and mediation.

Promotion of workplace diversity and gender equality policies: The company has
established the Gender Equality in Employment Act and the Sexual Harassment Prevention
Act in accordance with the law, and promotes workplace diversity. Currently, the company
employs 17 individuals with disabilities, accounting for 1.7% of the workforce, and 15
indigenous people, accounting for 1.5% of the workforce, both of which are higher than the
legally required employment ratios.

(2) Losses due to labor disputes in the most recent fiscal year and up to the publication
date of the annual report, as well as estimated amounts and countermeasures for current
and future potential disputes:

Losses due to labor disputes in the most recent fiscal year and up to the publication date of
the annual report: There have been no significant labor disputes.

Estimated amounts and countermeasures for current and future potential disputes: The
company consistently values employee welfare, provides an excellent working environment,
and emphasizes two-way communication with employees, fostering harmonious labor-
management relations. Therefore, the likelihood of future losses due to labor disputes is
minimal.

VI. Information Security Management:
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(1)Information security risk management framework, policy, specific management plans, and
resources invested in information security management:

1.Information security risk management framework:

In order to enhance information security management, the Company established an "Information
Security Committee" in 2021, with the management representative as the convener. We have also
introduced ISO27001:2013 and assigned department-level managers to establish information
security teams. The Information Technology (IT) department has established an information security
execution team and an emergency response team, responsible for daily information security
operations. We have also set up an information security audit team, conducting at least one internal
security audit each year and holding information security management review meetings. The IT
department head reports the results of information security execution to the information security
manager regularly each year. External units such as SGS perform external audits to complete the
annual review of ISO27001.

To promote the effectiveness of the Company's information security management system, we have
formulated the HCS-IS-BI-04 Information Supervision and Measurement Business Standard to
evaluate the effectiveness of information security performance and the information security
management system to ensure the conformity and appropriateness of information security objectives.
We have established measurement items and indicators and filled them in the "ISMS Effectiveness
Measurement Table" (R-IS-BI-04-01), reporting the execution results in the annual management
review meeting.

5.6 The information security committee structure is as shown below:

The Company passed SGS's ISO/IEC27001:2013 certification in June 2021 and continues to
maintain the effectiveness of its [ISO27001 information security management system (ISMS). The
certificate is valid from June 14, 2021, to June 14, 2024, and was re-audited through an external
audit on May 09, 2023, maintaining the validity of the certification.

Information
Security

Information
Security

Executive
Secretary

Information

: Emergenc
Security °

\'%

Our company has applied to SGS for ISO/IEC 27001:2022 update certification in 2024. We
anticipate document review on April 17, 2024, and the actual audit on May 17, 2024.

2.Information Security Policy

Purpose:

To strengthen information security management, ensure the confidentiality, integrity, and availability
of the company's information assets, provide a secure information environment for the company's
information business operations, and comply with relevant regulations to prevent intentional or
accidental threats from internal and external sources. This policy sets the guidelines.

Policy:

(1)Conduct information security education and training, promote employee awareness of information
security, and enhance their understanding of related responsibilities.

(2)Regularly conduct internal and external audits to ensure that related operations are implemented
effectively.

(3)Protect the Company's business information to prevent unauthorized access and modification and
ensure its accuracy and completeness.

(4)Ensure that the company's core business maintains a certain level of system availability.

3.Description of Information Security Policy and Management Plan:
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Item

Specific management methods

Firewall protection

Set connection rules for the firewall.
Special connection requests require additional applications for access.
Monitor and analyze firewall data reports.

Password setting
principles

Passwords should be at least 8 characters long.

Mix letters and numbers, and include uppercase and lowercase letters or
other symbols as much as possible.

Passwords should be changed every 180 days at least.

Server passwords should be changed every 90 days.

Antivirus software

Use antivirus software and automatically update virus definitions to
reduce the chance of infection.
Check antivirus software and virus definitions every six months.

Operating system
updates

The operating system is automatically updated. If it is not updated due to
any reason, the information department will assist in updating.

Email security
control

Automatically scan email for threats, prevent unsafe attachments,
phishing emails, spam, and expand protection against malicious links
before users receive emails.

The antivirus software will scan for unsafe attachments after personal
computers receive emails.

Website protection

The website has a firewall to block external network attacks.

mechanism
Data backup Important information system databases are regularly fully backed up,
mechanism the ERP has an oft-site backup system, and there are tape backups.

Off-site storage

Server and various information system backup files are stored separately
in different locations.

Disaster recovery
drill

Perform an important system disaster recovery drill once a year.

Control of the access
to server room

Registration form for accessing the server room, equipment access logs,
and the change logs.

(2)List the losses, potential effects, and response measures incurred due to significant information
security incidents in the latest fiscal year and up to the date of the annual report printing. If it is
impossible to make a reasonable estimate, it should be stated as such: The Company has not
experienced any significant information security incidents up to the date of this annual report.

5. 7. Important Contracts

Date of
Igz;‘gzcczf g?)rrilce:me d gt(; IEE:ECt Main Contents Restriction Article

and Ended
This Yu Da From The authorized place | (a) The term of operation
Company (China) Co., | April 7, is Mainland China for the authorized
authorizes the | Ltd. 2017 to (except Taiwan, Hong person’s company
copper April 6, Kong and Macau) expires and the
hardware 2027 (hereinafter referred to shareholders of the
category in as Authorized Place). authorized person do
Mainland Unless otherwise not agree to apply for
China to Yu agreed in writing by extending the
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Date of

Iggﬂgg;;f g?)rrtlce:me d gt(; r;gza Main Contents Restriction Article

and Ended
Da (China) the authorizer, the operation term or the
Co., Ltd. authorized person or assessing authority

the third party who is
permitted to use the
authorized trademark
by the authorizer shall
not directly or
indirectly export, sell
and distribute or
transport the
authorized
merchandise to the
territory or country
other than the
Authorized Place.
Except the above-
mentioned areas, the
authorized person
cannot still be
restricted by the
territory to sell the
product to other
companies
subordinated with
Hocheng Holding
Corp.

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

does not approve the
application for
extending the
operation term.

The authorized person
incurs material loss
and is incapable of
repaying his/her
mature debt.

Either party of this
contract is announced
bankrupt, or enters
into the proceeding of
bankruptcy,
dissolution or
liquidation or is
incapable of repaying
the mature debt.
Either party involves a
material breaching
behavior and fails to
make correction with
the written notice.
Either party is entitled
to propose the
termination of the
contract; if with the
written agreement of
the other contracting
party, he/she can
terminate the contract.
When the authorizer
violates the agreement
in this Contract, both
parties agree to
manage it pursuant to
the essence as set
forth in Article 12.2 of
this Contract.

When the conditions
of termination as
specified in (b), (c) &
(d), the exercise of the
compensation claim
for breach of contract
by the other party
shall not be
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Nature of
Contract

Parties
Concerned

Date of
Contract
Started
and Ended

Main Contents

Restriction Article

interrupted.

12.2 Continuance of
Contract

If the authorized person
does not involve any
material contract-breaching
behavior, the authorizer and
the authorized person
should automatically
renewed the contract for ten
years after the term of
authorization in this
Contract expires, so is the
later date. If the authorizer
does not renew the contract,
he/she has to purchase the
business and channels that
the authorized person has
established. Both parties
agree that a mutually-
accepted evaluation
institution of the
subcontractor can conduct
the value appraisal. If both
parties’ disagreement with
the appraised value is so
huge that no agreement can
be reached, it should be
referred to arbitration.
During this period, both
parties shall continue to
fulfill the contract till it is
executed subject to
arbitration results.

Trademark
License
Letter of
Authorization
for Use

Bao Long
Interior Art
Co., Ltd.

January 1,
2023
December
31,2024

Party A authorizes
Party B to use the
HCG trademark on its
products (range hoods,
electric water heaters,
water dispensers,
instantaneous electric
water heaters, kitchen
cabinet sets).
However, Party B
shall not use the
trademark on products
of any third party or

HCG reserves the right to
appoint representatives in
writing at any time to
supervise and inspect the
production of "Authorized
Manufacturing Products™
and the production process
of Bao Long Interior Art
Co., Ltd.

Any packaging or
advertising must be
produced with the consent
of HCG, and must be
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Nature of
Contract

Parties
Concerned

Date of
Contract
Started
and Ended

Main Contents

Restriction Article

other companies
except its own. Any
violation shall be
subject to liability
under the Trademark
Law.

improved according to
HCG's requirements until
approved by HCG.

- 120 -




VI. FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

6.1 Information of Condensed Balance Sheet and Consolidated Income Statement for the Most Recent
Five Years; CPAs’ names and their audit opinions should be specified.

(1) Information of Condensed Balance Sheet and Income Statement

Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet — Adopting the International Financial Reporting

Standards

Unit: NT$ Thousands

Year Financial Information for the Most Recent Five Years Financial
(Note 1) Information
in the
Current
Item Year up to
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 March 31,
2024
(Note 3)
Current assets 4,682,802| 4,818,266] 5,550,655| 4,245,339]  4,683,997| 4,265,799
(PI{I%QS%’ Plant and Equipment 4301,102| 3,846,594 3,520,840 3,594,970 3,457,571| 3,461,089
Intangible assets | 51,855] 45,075 37,788 37,757 31,279 29,064
Other assets (Note 2) 1,877,759| 2,028,726| 2,361,593 1,986,122 2,421,942| 2,816,766
Total assets 10,913,518 10,738,661 11,470,876] 9,864,188] 10,594,789| 10,572,718
Before 3,791,624| 3,632,989 3,107,407| 2,477,584| 3,358,296 3,255,182
e distribution
Current liabilities AR
er 3,791,624 3,706,960| 3,181,378| 2,538,240 6 6
distribution
Non-current liabilities 1,415,384| 1,154,090 1,004,174 877,912 509,830 494,870
Before 5,207,008| 4,787,079| 4,111,581 3,355,496  3,868,126| 3,750,052
. distribution
Total liabilities Afier
er 5,207,008| 4,861,050, 4,185,552| 3,416,152 6 16
i i distribution
Eﬁ;‘ﬁéypgt}gﬁ“tab'e to shareholders | 5 (3¢ 9731 5.888286] 7.255.061| 6,448,029 6,669,472 6,763,360
Capital stock [ 3,698,536] 3,698,536] 3,698,536 3,032,800 3,023,037] 3,023,037
Capital surplus 13,079 13,293 13,478 15,223 16,587 16,587
Before 1,627,397|  1,759,275| 2,881,696 3,036,828/ 3,017,205 3,007,214
. . distribution
Retained earnings N
er 1,627,397 1,685,304| 2,807,725 2,976,172 6 36
distribution
Other equity interest 314,443 433,764 677,933 376,639 617,424 721,803
Treasury stock (16,582) (16,582)(|  (16,582)] (13,461) (4,781) (4,781)
Non-controlling interest 69,637| 63,296 104,234 60,663 57,191 58,806
Before 5,706,510 5,951,582| 6,508,692 6,726,663|  6,726,663| 6,822,666
. distribution
Total equity “Afier
er 5,706,510 5,877,611 7,285,324 6,448,036 16 16
distribution

Note 1: The financial information for each of the preceding years has been all audited and certified
by the CPAs.

If the asset revaluation had ever been conducted in the current year, the date of conduction
and the reevaluated and appreciated value should be specified.

Up to the date of publication of the annual report, if the listed companies or those companies,
the stock of which has been traded in the securities dealer’s business department, have the
latest CPA audited, certified or reviewed financial information, it should be disclosed as well.
For the above-said figure after distribution, please fill up according to the resolution of board
of directors or the shareholders meeting in the next year.

If the competent authority notifies the companies to correct or re-prepare the financial
information on its own, the preparation should be made in the corrected or reorganized
figures with the notes taken on its conditions and reason.

The earnings distribution case in 2023 has not been resolved by the shareholders meeting.

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:
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Consolidated Condensed Income Statement — Adopting the International Financial Reporting

Standards
Unit: Except for the earnings per share in NT$ 1, others in NT$ thousands
Year Financial Information for the Most Recent Five Years Financial
(Note 1) Information
in the
Current
Year up to
Item 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 March 31,
2024
(Note 2)
Operating revenue 5,526,252 5,102,207| 5,313,319| 5,004,444| 4,870,787 1,133,532
Gross profit 1,388,507| 1,254,786| 1,357,367| 1,308,655| 1,200,166 267,093
Income & loss from operations 78,837 185 66,675 102,533 (7,538) (21,932)
Non-operating revenue & expenses 10,861 129,033 1,912,563| 147,697 73,721 8,717
Income before tax 89,698 129,218| 1,979,238| 250,230 66,183 (13,215)

Income from continuing operation for this
. 89,698 129,218 1,979,238 250,230 66,183 (13,215)
erm

Loss on discontinuing operation -- - -- -- - -
Income (loss) for this term 35,942 79,404| 1,745,927| 158,132 22,077 (17,034)
Other comprehensive income & loss for
this term (net amount after tax)

Total amount of comprehensive income
& loss for this term

202,569 165,542 214,818| (229,305)| 263,349 113,037

238,511 244,946| 1,960,745| (71,173)| 285,426 96,003

Income attributable to shareholders of the
47916 86,793 1,224,801 157,290 19,347 (17,944)

parent

Income attributable to non-controlling

. (11,974)|  (7,389)| 521,126 842 2,730 910
interest

Total amount of comprehensive income

& loss attributable to shareholders of the 248,799 251,199| 1,440,561 (67,272)| 282,047 94,388
parent

Total amount of comprehensive income

& loss attributable to non-controlling (10,288)|  (6,253)| 520,184|  (3,901) 3,379 1,615
interest

Earnings per share 0.13 0.24 3.33 0.46 0.06 (0.06)

Note 1: The financial information for each of the preceding years has been all audited and certified
by the CPAs.

Note 2: The financial information as of March 31, 2024 has been reviewed by the CPAs.

Note 3: Losses from discontinued units are shown net of income tax.

Note 4: If the competent authority notifies the companies to correct or re-prepare the financial
information on its own, the preparation should be made in the corrected or reorganized
figures with the notes taken on its conditions and reason.
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Parent Company Only Condensed Balance Sheet — Adopting the International Financial
Reporting Standards

Unit: NT$ Thousands

Financial Information for the Most Recent Five Years
Year (Note 1)

Item 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Current assets 2,552,170 2,471,400 3,592,751 2,439,987| 2,635,135
Property, Plant and Equipment 1,233,299 1,216,013 1,187,862 1,182,769| 2,894,813
Intangible assets 32,618 27,951 23,524 19,594 15,689
Other assets 5,267,283 5,150,089 5,219,695 4,734,881 2,959,917
Total assets 9,085,370|  8,865,453| 10,023,832 8,377,231 8,505,554

Before distribution 2,280,028| 2,069,914| 2,015,992 1,333,098 1,442,609
Current liabilities

After distribution 2,280,028| 2,143,885 2,089,963 1,393,754 6
Non-current liabilities 1,168,469 907,253 752,779 596,104 393,473

Before distribution 3,448,497 2977,167| 2,768,771 1,929,202 1,836,082
Total liabilities

After distribution 3,448,497 3,051,138| 2,842,742 1,989,858 6
Capital stock 3,698,536| 3,698,536 3,698,536/ 3,032,800 3,023,037
Capital surplus 13,079 13,293 13,478 15,223 16,587

Before distribution 1,627,397 1,759,275 2,881,696| 3,036,828 3,017,205
Retained earnings

After distribution 1,627,397 1,685,304 2,807,725 2,976,172 6
Other equity interest 314,443 433,764 677,933 376,639 617,424
Treasury stock (16,582) (16,582) (16,582) (13,461) (4,781)

) Before distribution 5,636,873 5,888,286| 7,255,061 6,448,029 6,669,472

Total equity

After distribution 5,636,873 5,814,315 7,181,090 6,387,373 6

Note 1:The financial information for each of the preceding years has been all
audited and certified by the CPAs.

Note 3:If the asset revaluation had ever been conducted in the current year, the
date of conduction and the reevaluated and appreciated value should be
specified.

Note 3:Up to the date of publication of the annual report, if the listed
companies or those companies, the stock of which has been traded in the
securities dealer’ s business department, have the latest CPA audited,
certified or reviewed financial information, it should be disclosed as
well.

Note 4:For the above-said figure after distribution, please fill up according to
the resolution of the shareholders meeting in the next year.

Note b:If the competent authority notifies the companies to correct or re-prepare
the financial information on its own, the preparation should be made in
the corrected or reorganized figures with the notes taken on i1ts conditions
and reason.

Note 6:The earnings distribution case in 2023 has not been resolved by the
shareholders meeting.

-123 -



Parent Company Only Condensed Income Statement — Adopting the International Financial

Reporting Standards

Unit; NT$ thousands

Year Financial Information for the Most Recent Five Years
(Note 1)
Item 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Operating revenue 3,444,399 3,548,446 3,624,360 3,400,227 3,255,265
Gross profit 895,722 1,003,942 991,570 936,135 841,777
Income & loss from operations 125,316 246,394 150,549 162,221 115,788
Non-operating revenue & expenses (57,331) (126,615) 1,110,285 64,071 (59,334)
Income before tax 67,985 119,779 1,260,834 226,292 56,454
I fr tinui tion for thi
fleome Tof continuing operation for this 67,985 119779] 1,260,834 226,292 56,454
term
Loss on discontinuing operation - - - - -
Income (loss) for this term 47,916 86,793 1,224,801 157,290 19,347
Oth hensive i & loss fi
CIET COMPIENCNSIVE 1ncome & 105s 1ot 200,883 164,406 215760  (229,481) 262,471
this term (net amount after tax)
Total amount of comprehensive income &
. 248,799 251,199 1,440,561 (72,191) 281,818
loss for this term
I i 1 harehol f'th
ncome attributable to shareholders of the 47,916 86,793 1,224,801 157,290 19,347
parent
?ncome attributable to non-controlling 0 0 0 0 0
interest
Total amount of comprehensive income &
loss attributable to shareholders of the 248,799 251,199 1,440,561 (72,191) 281,818
parent
Total amount of comprehensive income &
. p 0 0 0 0 0
loss attributable to non-controlling interest
Earnings per share 0.13 0.24 3.33 0.46 0.06

Note 1: The financial information for the preceding years has been audited and certified by the CPAs.
Note 2: This Company has adopted the IFRSs since 2013, so there will be no ROC GAAP
information effective 2013; for the financial information for the years from 2019 to 2023,

please refer to the information as shown in the above list.

(2) NAMES OF CPAs AND THEIR AUDIT OPINIONS FOR THE MOST RECENT FIVE

YEARS
Year CPAs Audit Opinions
2019 Chiang, Chung-Yi & Yang, Liu-Feng Unqualified Opinion
2020 Chiang, Chung-Yi & Chiang, Hsiao-Ling | Unqualified Opinion
2021 Chiang, Chung-Yi & Chiang, Hsiao-Ling | Unqualified Opinion
2022 Chiang, Hsiao-Ling&Xu Shumin Unqualified Opinion
2023 Xu Shumin &Wu Marshai Unqualified Opinion
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6.2. Financial analysis after adopted international accounting standards
Consolidated financial analysis-adopted international accounting standards

Year (note 1) Financial analysis of the last five years Financial
information
of the
current year

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 |as of March
. 31, 2024
Items of analysis (note 3) (note 2)
Fina | Debt to asset ratio (%) 47.71 4458 35.84 34.02 36.51 35.47
ncia
I
stru | Long term capital to property, | 55 o5 | 473191 0504| 19509| 19664 198.93
ctur | plant and equipment ratio (%)
e
i Current ratio (%) 123.50 132.63 178.63 171.35 139.48 131.05
Iq
uidi | Quick ratio (%) 67.81 86.93 123.80 91.34 84.2 75.72
t
y Interest coverage ratio (%) 212 2.76 37.03 5.92 2.28 (0.61)
Receivables turnover (times) 3.75 3.88 3.95 3.86 3.94 3.78
Average cash recovery day 97.33 94.07 92.41 94.55 92.63 96.56
eorffl)t Inventory turnover (times) 2.05 2.12 2.49 2.13 2.01 2.00
Ing | Payable turnover rate (times) 5.67 6.05 6.33 5.79 6.28 6.18
cap
acit | Days sales outstanding 178.04 172.16 146.59 171.36 181.59 182.50
y .
Property, plant and equipment 1.28 1.33 1.51 1.39 141 131
turnover rate (times)
Total asset turnover (times) 0.51 0.48 0.46 0.51 0.46 0.43
0.92
Return on assets (%) 1.28 16.12 1.86 0.62 (0.10)
Pro | Return on equity (%) 0.64 1.36 26.23 2.28 0.33 (0.25)
fita . :
... | Ratio of pre-tax net profit to
b|;|t paid-up capital (%) (note 7) 243 3.49 53.51 8.25 2.19 (0.44)
Net profit ratio (%) 0.65 1.56 32.86 3.16 0.45 (1.50)
Earnings per share (dollar) 0.13 0.24 3.33 0.46 0.06 (0.06)
Cas | Cash flow ratio (%) 8.67 17.82 6.59 424 37.54 (1.13)
fII10 Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 115.02| 168.61 96.74 73.31 115 (228.28)
W | Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 2.64 5.25 0.94 0.24 10.59 (0.32)
Lev | Operating leverage 21.22{10,160.76 21.11 14.08 | (189.43) (15.59)
era
ge Financial leverage (79.63) 0.00 5.68 1.98 0.13 0.73
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Please explain change reasons of various financial ratios of the last two years. (If the variation of
increase or decrease did not reach 20%, analysis cannot be made.)

1. Current Ratio: The current ratio decreased compared to the same period last year due
to a significant decrease in current assets, primarily driven by the repayment of bank
loans, and a slight increase in net inventory.

2.Interest Coverage Ratio: The interest coverage ratio decreased significantly compared
to the same period last year due to a substantial reduction in non-operating income,
resulting from the sale of assets by a subsidiary in the previous year. As a result, pre-tax
net profit also decreased significantly.

3.Return on Assets: The return on assets decreased significantly compared to the same
period last year due to a substantial reduction in non-operating income, resulting from
the sale of assets by a subsidiary in the previous year. This decrease led to a significant
decline in post-tax net profit.

4.Return on Equity: The return on equity decreased significantly compared to the same
period last year due to a substantial reduction in non-operating income, resulting from
the sale of assets by a subsidiary in the previous year. As a result, post-tax net profit also
decreased significantly.

5.Pre-tax Net Profit to Paid-in Capital Ratio: The ratio of pre-tax net profit to paid-in
capital decreased significantly compared to the same period last year due to a
substantial reduction in non-operating income, resulting from the sale of assets by a
subsidiary in the previous year.

6.Net Profit Margin: The net profit margin decreased significantly compared to the same
period last year due to a substantial reduction in non-operating income, resulting from
the sale of assets by a subsidiary in the previous year. This decrease led to a significant
decline in post-tax net profit.

7.Earnings per Share (EPS): Earnings per share decreased significantly compared to the
same period last year due to a substantial reduction in non-operating income, resulting
in a significant decrease in post-tax net profit.

8. Cash flow ratio: Due to the need to support economic development construction in
this period, the Chinese subsidiary relocated and received advance land compensation in
accordance with the contract, amounting to approximately TWD 1,224,463 thousand,
resulting in a significant increase in net cash inflow from operating activities compared
to the same period last year. Therefore, the cash flow ratio for this period has increased
significantly.

9. Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio: Due to the need to support economic development
construction in this period, the Chinese subsidiary relocated and received advance land
compensation in accordance with the contract, amounting to approximately TWD
1,224,463 thousand, resulting in a significant increase in net cash inflow from operating
activities compared to the same period last year. Therefore, the cash flow adequacy ratio
for this period has increased significantly.

10. Cash Reinvestment Ratio: Due to the need to support economic development
construction, the Chinese subsidiary relocated in this period and received advance land
compensation in accordance with the contract, totaling approximately TWD 1,224,463
thousand. This resulted in a significant increase in net cash inflow from operating
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activities compared to the same period last year. Therefore, the cash reinvestment ratio
for this period has increased significantly.

11. Operating leverage: Due to a decrease in gross profit from sales of products in this
period compared to the same period last year, the operating net profit for this period
decreased significantly. Therefore, the operating leverage for this period decreased
significantly compared to the same period last year.

12 Financial leverage: Due to a decrease in gross profit from sales of products in this
period compared to the same period last year, the operating net profit for this period
decreased significantly. Therefore, the financial leverage for this period decreased
significantly compared to the same period last year.

Note 1: Financial information of each year mentioned above was audited and certificated by
CPAs.

Note 2: As of the date of publication of the annual report, when listed companies or the companies
with stocks traded on the Taipei Exchange have financial information of the most recent
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year audited, certificated or reviewed by CPAs, the information shall be consolidated to
analyze.
Note 3: In the end of the annual report table, the calculation formula shall be listed as follows:

1. Financial structure
(1) Debt to asset ratio = total amount of debt / total assets.

(2) Long term capital to property, plant and equipment ratio = (total equity + non-current

liabilities) /net property, plant and equipment.

2. Solvency
(1) Current ratio = current assets / current liabilities.

(2) Quick ratio = (current assets — inventory — prepaid expenses) / current liabilities.

(3) Interest coverage ratio = net profit before income tax and interest expense / interest

expense.

3. Operating capacity
(1) Receivable (including trade receivables and notes receivables arising from operating

activities) turnover rate = net sales / each period average receivables (including trade
receivables and notes receivables arising from operating activities) balance.

(2) Average cash recovery day = 365, receivable turnover rate.

(3) Inventory turnover rate = cost of sales / average inventory.

(4) Payable (including accounts payable and notes payable arising from operating activities)
turnover rate = cost of sales / each period average payables (including accounts payable
and notes payable arising from operating activities) balance.

(5) Days sales outstanding = 365,/ inventory turnover rate.

(6) Property, plant and equipment turnover rate = net sales / net property, plant and
equipment.

(7) Total asset turnover rate = net sales / average total assets.

4. Profitability
(1) Return on assets = (post-tax profit or loss + interest expense x (1 — rate )) / average total
assets.

(2) Return on equity = post-tax profit or loss / average total equity.

(3) Net profit rate = post-tax profit or loss / net sales.

(4) Earnings per share = (interests attributable to parent company owner — Preferred Shares

dividends) / weighted average number of issued shares. (Note 4)

5. Cash flow

(1) Cash flow rate = net cash flow from operating activities / current liabilities.

(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio = net cash flow from operating activities of the last five years /
(capital expenditure + increase in inventory + cash dividends) of the last five years.

(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (net cash flow from operating activities — cash dividends ) /
(gross property, plant and equipment + long-term investment + Other non-current assets +
working capital ). (Note 5)

6. Leverage:

(1) Operating leverage = (operating revenues — variable operating costs and expenses ) /

operating income. (Note 6)

(2) Financial leverage = operating income / (operating income — interest expense ).

Note 4: The calculation formula of earnings per share mentioned above, the following matters
shall be particularly noticed when the Company measured:

1. Use weighted average number of ordinary shares as standards, instead of basing on the
number of issued shares in the end of the year.

2. When a company has capital increase or treasury stock trading, shall consider to calculate
weighted average number of shares within the circulation period.

3. When a company has surplus to increase capitalization or capital surplus to increase
capitalization, and as earnings per share of the past year and half of the year were calculated,
the company shall retrospectively adjust by the ratio of increase capitalization, and it’s not
necessary to consider the issued period of increase capitalization.
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4. If preferred shares are unconvertible accumulated preferred shares, the dividends of the
current year (whether distribute or not) shall be deducted from net profit after tax, or added
net loss after tax. If preferred shares are non-accumulative, under the circumstance of
existing net profit after tax, preferred shares dividends shall be deducted from net profit after
tax; if the balance is a loss, it shall not be adjusted.

Note 5: When cash flow analysis was measured, the following mattering shall be particularly
noticed:

1. Net cash flow from operating activities means the number of net cash inflow from operating
activities in the statements of cash flows.

2. Capital expenditure means the number of cash outflow of capital investment each year.

3. Inventory increase number was only counted, when the ending balance is more than the
beginning balance, if year-end inventory decreased, it shall be calculated by zero.

4. Cash dividends include cash dividends of common shares and preferred shares.

5. Gross property, plant and equipment means the deduction of total amount of property, plant
and equipment before accumulated depreciation.

Note 6: An issuer shall divide various operating costs and operating expenses into fixing and
variation, if evaluation and subjective judgment are involved, rationality shall be noticed,
and consistency shall be retained.

Note 7: When the Company’s share has no denomination or the denomination per share is not NT$
10, for the calculation of related paid-in capital ratio mentioned above, interest rate
attributable to parent company owner in the balance sheet shall be used to calculate.
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Individual financial analysis-adopted international accounting standards

Year (note 1) Financial analysis of the last five years
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Items of analysis (note 2)
Fina | Debt to asset ratio (%) 37.96 33.58 27.62 23.03 21.59
ncial
Struct | |_ong term capital to property, plant 52137 | 53457 65454 58236  230.39
Ureé | and equipment ratio (%)
Current ratio (%) 111.94 1194 178.21 183.03 182.66
Liqui | oyick ratio (%) 57.84 68.01| 12538 88.35|  100.46
Interest coverage ratio (%) 2.60 4.39 45.47 11.58 3.57
Receivables turnover (times) 3.16 3.72 3.76 3.59 3.71
Average cash recovery day 115.51 98.12 97.07 101.67 98.38
Inventory turnover (times) 219 2.31 2.61 2.21 2.04
Oper
ating | Payable turnover rate (times) 6.02 7.37 8.28 7.55 7.85
capa :
city | Days sales outstanding 166.67 158.01 139.85 165.16 178.92
Property, plant and equipment 2.79 2.92 3.05 2.87 1.12
turnover rate (times)
Total asset turnover (times) 0.38 0.40 0.36 0.41 0.38
Return on assets (%) 0.92 1.28 13.21 1.90 0.44
Return on equity (%) 0.86 1.51 18.64 2.30 0.29
Profi . i i
... | Ratio of pre-tax net profi id-
tabili | <aHO 0 op e-tax net profit to paid-up 1.84 3.24 34.09 7.46 1.87
ty capital (%) (note 7)
Net profit ratio (%) 1.39 2.45 33.79 4.63 0.59
Earnings per share (dollar) 0.13 0.24 3.33 0.46 0.06
Cash flow ratio (%) 12.84 30.73 65.89 31.07 29.62
ﬁgf’c Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 74.46 124.97 |  1355.96 888.60 890.77
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 3.41 7.33 12.11 3.60 3.86
Operating leverage 8.73 498 7.43 6.85 9.01
Leve P g g
ra9€ | Financial leverage 1.51 117 1.23 1.15 1.23
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Please explain change reasons of various financial ratios of the last two years. (If the variation of
increase or decrease did not reach 20%, analysis cannot be made.)

1. Long-term funds to fixed assets ratio: Due to the consolidation of subsidiary
companies in this period, there was a significant increase in fixed assets compared to the
same period last year. Additionally, with the repayment of long-term loans, the ratio of
long-term funds to fixed assets for this period decreased significantly compared to the
same period last year.

2 Interest Coverage Ratio: Due to a decrease in gross profit and dividend income from
product sales in this period compared to the same period last year, the pre-tax net profit
decreased significantly. As a result, the interest coverage ratio for this period decreased
significantly compared to the same period last year.

3. Property, Plant, and Equipment Turnover Ratio: Due to the consolidation of subsidiary
companies in this period, there was a significant increase in property, plant, and equipment
compared to the same period last year. Additionally, with a decrease in gross profit from product
sales compared to the same period last year, the property, plant, and equipment turnover ratio
for this period decreased significantly compared to the same period last year.

4Return on Assets (ROA): Due to a decrease in gross profit and dividend income from
product sales in this period compared to the same period last year, the post-tax net
profit decreased significantly. Consequently, the return on assets for this period
decreased significantly compared to the same period last year.

5. Return on Equity (ROE): Due to a decrease in gross profit and dividend income from
product sales in this period compared to the same period last year, the post-tax net
profit decreased significantly. Consequently, the return on equity for this period
decreased significantly compared to the same period last year.

6. Pre-tax net profit to paid-in capital ratio: Due to a decrease in gross profit and
dividend income from product sales in this period compared to the same period last
year, the pre-tax net profit decreased significantly. Consequently, the pre-tax net profit to
paid-in capital ratio for this period decreased significantly compared to the same period
last year.

7. Net profit margin: Due to a decrease in gross profit and dividend income from product
sales in this period compared to the same period last year, the post-tax net profit
decreased significantly. Consequently, the net profit margin for this period decreased
significantly compared to the same period last year.

8. Earnings per Share (EPS): Due to a decrease in gross profit and dividend income from
product sales in this period compared to the same period last year, the post-tax net
profit decreased significantly. Consequently, the earnings per share for this period
decreased significantly compared to the same period last year.

9. Operating leverage: Due to a decrease in gross profit from product sales in this period
compared to the same period last year, the operating net profit decreased significantly.
Therefore, the operating leverage for this period increased compared to the same period
last year.

The Company has adopted International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) from 2013, and
there’s no information on ROC GAAP providing from 2013.
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6.3. The audit committee review report of the most recent annual financial report

The Audit Committee reviews the 2023 final accounts report

HOCHENG Corporation
Audit Committee Review Report

The board of directors prepared the 2023 business report, financial statements, and earnings
distribution proposals, among which the financial statements (individual and consolidated financial
statements) have been checked by KPMG accounting firm and an audit report will be issued. The
above-mentioned business report, financial statement and earnings distribution proposal have been
checked by the Audit Committee and found that there are no discrepancies. According to Article 14-
4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Law, the report has been

prepared for verification.

The company's 2024 shareholders meeting

Convener of the Audit Committee: Wang, Cheng-Wei

2024/5/07
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Representation Letter

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of Hocheng
Corporation as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023 under the “Criteria Governing
Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial
Statements of Affiliated Enterprises” are the same as those included in the consolidated financial
statements prepared in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standard No. 10,
“Consolidated Financial Statements” endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission. In addition,
the information required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements is included in the
consolidated financial statements. Consequently, Hocheng Corporation and its subsidiaries do not
prepare a separate set of combined financial statements.

In witness thereof, the Declaration is hereby presented.

Company name: Hocheng Corporation

Chairman: Li-Chien Chiu

Date: March 12, 2024
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of Hocheng Corporation:

Audit opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hocheng Corporation and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of another auditor (please refer to paragraph Other
Matters), the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Hocheng Corporation and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2023 and
2022, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended
in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers
and with the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”), Interpretations developed by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(“IFRIC”) or the former Standing Interpretations Committee (“SIC”) endorsed and issued into effect by
the Financial Supervisory Commission.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation
of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in the Republic of China (“the Code™),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. Based on our audits
and the report of another auditor, we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Based on our audits and the reports of other auditors, we
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of the most significance
in our audit of the 2023 consolidated financial statements of the current period for the Group. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:
I. Accounts receivable valuation

Refer to Note 4(7) for the accounting policy of accounts receivable valuation, Note 5(1) for
accounting assumption, judgments and estimation uncertainty of accounts receivable and Note 6(4)
for the disclosure of the valuation of accounts receivable to the consolidated financial statements.
Description of key audit matters:

The Group’s sales and accounts receivable are mainly concentrated in Taiwan, China, and the
Philippines. The valuation of allowance for doubtful accounts involves a subjective judgment of
the management and, thus, needs significant attention in our audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our and other CPAs’ audit procedures for the above key audit matters included assessing
whether the impairment of accounts receivable is under established accounting policies of Hocheng
Corporation and its significant subsidiaries, obtaining an aging analysis form and analyzing the
aging of accounts receivable overdue and the accuracy of the sample review of the aging analysis
forms, performing a test of details of past due receivables is significant, understanding the rationale
for any identified substantial overdue and assessing the adequacy of the Company’s recognition,
and evaluating whether the disclosure of receivable aging and changes of allowance for accounts
receivable is appropriated for the management of the Group.

II. Valuation of inventories

Refer to Note 4(8) and Note 5 (2) for the accounting policy of inventory valuation, as well as
the estimation and assumption uncertainty of the valuation of inventory, respectively. Information
on the estimation of the valuation of inventory is disclosed in Note 6(6) of the consolidated financial
statements.

Description of key audit matters:

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value in the consolidated
financial statements. The Group’s products are mainly sold to consumers through distributors and
big box stores. The Group faces competition from its competitors with homogeneous products and
low-price strategies. The risk of inventory costing might exceed its net realizable value due to
obsolete products or inconsistency with consumers' preferences.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our and other CPAs’ audit procedures for the above key audit matters included understanding

the accounting policies of the Group for impairment loss provision, examining whether inventory

write-down or obsolescence allowance had been provided for inventories according to the
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Company’s existing accounting policies including implementing sampling procedures, verifying
relevant forms and certificates to verify and accuracy of its calculation, and evaluating the adequacy
of the Group’s disclosures related to inventory write-down or obsolescence allowance.

Other Matters

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements, we did not audit the financial statements of certain
subsidiaries. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors. Therefore, our opinion expressed
for the abovementioned consolidated financial statements, insofar as they relate to the financial
statements of such subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of other CPAs. Total assets of the
abovementioned subsidiaries accounted for 21% and 15% of the consolidated total assets as of December
31, 2023 and 2022, respectively; their net operating revenue accounted for 10% and 7% of the
consolidated net operating revenue for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Hocheng Corporation has additionally prepared its parent company only financial statements as of
and for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards, Interpretations developed by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee or the former Standing Interpretations Committee as endorsed by Financial Supervisory
Commission of the Republic of China, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) of the Group are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists in the consolidated financial statements. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China, we exercised professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
1. Identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, designed and performed audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group’s audit. We remain solely responsible for

our audit opinion of the Group.
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The planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the 2023 consolidated financial statements of the Group
and are, therefore, key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

KPMG Taiwan

Accountants:

No. of approval and Jin-Guan-Zheng-Liu-Zi
certification from the  ° N0~0940100754 '
competent authority of Jin-Guan-Zheng-Shen-Zi No.
securities 1070304941

March 12, 2024
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HOCHENG CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022
Unit: NT$ thousand

2023 2022
Amount % Amount %
4000 Operating revenue (Note 6(22)) $ 4,870,787 100 5,004,444 100
5000 Operating costs (Note 6(6)) 3,670,621 75 3,695,789 74
5950 Operating gross profit 1.200.166 25 1,308,655 26
Operating expenses:
6100 Sales and marketing expenses 718,778 15 725,026 15
6200 General and administrative expenses 377,938 8 353,025 7
6300 Research and development expenses 109,058 2 111,059 2
6450 Expected credit loss (Note 6(4)) 1,930 - 17,012 -
6300 Subtotal 1,207,704 25 1,206,122 24
6900 Net profit (7.538) - 102,533 2
Non-operating income and expenses: (Note 6(7) and (24))
7100 Interest income 13,335 - 5,689 -
7010 Others 150,654 3 260,346 5
7020 Other gains and losses (37,842) 1) (66,328) (1)
7050 Finance costs (51,893) €))] (50,848) €9)]
7370 Share of gains of associates and joint ventures recognized by using the equity (533) _ - 1.162) _ -
method
Subtotal 73.721 1 147,697 3
Net profits before tax 66,183 1 250,230 5
7950 Less: Income tax expenses (Note 6(19)) 44,106 1 92,098 2
Net profits for the period 22.077 - 158.132 3
8300 Other comprehensive income:
8310 Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
8311 Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 5,181 - 77,029 |
8316 Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments 240,352 5 (350,306) 7
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
8349 Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified (869) - (14.563) -
Total amount of items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 244,664 5 (287.840) (6)
8360 Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss subsequently
8361 Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 17,763 - 63,175 1
8370 Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures 922 - (4,640) -
under the equity method
8399 Income tax related to items that may be reclassified - - - -
Total amount of items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 18.685 - 58.535 1
subsequently
8300 Other comprehensive income for the year 263.349 5 (229.305) (%)
8500 Total comprehensive income for the period $ 285,426 5 (71,173) 2)
Current net income (loss) attributable to:
8610 Owner of the parent company $ 19,347 - 157,290 3
8620 Non-controlling interests 2,730 - 842 -
$ 22,077 - 158,132 3
Comprehensive income attributable to:
8710 Owner of the parent company $ 282,047 5 (67,272) 2)
8720 Non-controlling interests 3.379 - (3,901) -
$ 285,426 5 (71,173) 2)
Earnings per share (NT$) (Note 6(21))
9750 Basic earnings per share (NTS$) $ 0.06 0.46
9850 Diluted earnings per share (NTS) M 0.06 0.45

(Please refer to the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements)

Chairman: Patrick Chiu Managerial officer: Shih-Chieh Chen Head-Finance & Accounting: Yueh-Ying Lo
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HOCHENG CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022

Unit: NT$ thousand

2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before tax from continuing operations 66,183 250,230
Net income before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Depreciation 227,117 221,376
Amortization expense 10,290 9,501
Expected credit impairment losses 1,930 17,012
Net losses (gains) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (2,934) 2,273
Interest expenses 51,893 50,848
Interest income (13,335) (5,689)
Dividend income (49,947) (161,554)
Share of gains of associates and joint ventures recognized by using the equity method 533 1,162
Gains on disposal and scrapping of property, plant and equipment (49) (1,441)
Losses (gains) on disposal of right-of-use assets 121 (186)
Reversal of allowance for sales returns and discounts (3.043) (1.778)
Total items of income and expenses 222,576 131,524
Changes in assets/liabilities related to operating activities:
Net changes in assets related to operating activities:
Notes receivable 16,160 (6,473)
Accounts receivable (44,409) 150,483
Other receivables (4,768) (23,449)
Inventory 108,148 (288,602)
Other current assets 10,990 2,713
Total net changes in assets related to operating activities 86,121 (165.328)
Net changes in liabilities related to operating activities
Notes payable (72,007) (48,962)
Accounts payable 41,361 (27,516)
Other payables (116,861) (80,465)
Other current liabilities 1,090,010 (9,893)
Net confirmed benefit debt (41.192) (18.420)
Total net changes in liabilities related to operating activities 901,311 (185.256)
Total net changes in assets and liabilities related to operating activities 987.432 (350,584)
Total item of adjustments 1,210,008 (219,060)
Cash inflows generated from operations 1,276,191 31,170
Interest received 13,335 5,689
Dividends received 49,947 161,554
Interest paid (51,8006) (50,848)
Income tax paid (26,923) (42.431)
Net cash inflows from operating activities 1,260,744 105.134
(Please refer to the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements)
Chairman: Patrick Chiu Managerial officer: Shih-Chieh Chen Head-Finance & Accounting: Yueh-Ying Lo
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HOCHENG CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (cont’d)
January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022

Unit: NTS thousand

2023 2022
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (50,873) (21,574)
Disposal of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 89,399 49,779
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (124,586) (125,766)
Disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 293,258 85,395
Acquisition of investments accounted for under the equity method (620) (5,332)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (105,298) (239,795)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 78,563 4,541
Decrease in refundable deposits 18,855 30,035
Acquisition of intangible assets (3,857) (9,298)
Other non-current assets (28.442) 17,343
Net cash inflows (outflows) from investing activities 166,399 (214.672)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Decrease in short-term borrowings (461,988) (492,514)
Short-term notes payable (105,000) -
Increase in long-term loans 92,370 -
Decrease in long-term loans (156,496) (110,386)
Decrease in guarantee deposits received (107) (50)
Repayment of principal of lease liabilities (37,355) (31,784)
Cash dividends paid (60,470) (73,623)
Capital reduction in cash - (662,615)
Changes in non-controlling interests (6.132) (40,022)
Net cash outflows from financing activities (735.178) (1.410.994)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 15,107 24,134
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the period 707,072 (1,496,398)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 665.867 2,162,265
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year b 1,372,939 665,867
(Please refer to the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements)
Chairman: Patrick Chiu Managerial officer: Shih-Chieh Chen Head-Finance & Accounting: Yueh-Ying Lo
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HOCHENG CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in NT$ thousand, unless otherwise specified)

I. Company History
Hocheng Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated in 1961 under the approval of the
Ministry of Economic Affairs. The address of its registered office is 1F, No0.398, Xingshan Rd.,
Neihu District, Taipei City 114, Taiwan. The consolidated financial statements of the Company as
of December 31, 2023 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the
Group”) and the Group’s interest in associates and jointly controlled entities. The Group primarily
engages in the manufacturing and trading of residential equipment (i.e., bathtubs, toilets), kitchen

equipment, copper pipe equipment and construction of national housing.

I1. Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board
of Directors (the “Board”) on March 12, 2024.

ITI. New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:
(I) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) endorsed by the
Financial Supervisory Commission, which have already been adopted.
The Group has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have a
significant impact on its consolidated financial statements, from January 1, 2023.
« Amendments to IAS1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
« Amendments to IAS8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”
« Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Income Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising
from A Single Transaction”
The Group has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have a
significant impact on its consolidated financial statements, from May 23, 2023.
Amendment to IAS 12 “International Tax Reform - -Pillar Two Model Rules”
(IT) The impact of IFRS endorsed by the FSC but not adopted
The Group assesses that the adoption of the following new amendments, effective for the
annual period beginning on January 1, 2024, would not have a significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements.
« Amendment to [AS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current”
« Amendments to IAS1 “Non-current Liabilities with Contractual Terms”
+ Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 “Supplier Financing Arrangements”
« Amendments to IFRS 16 “Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback”
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

(IIT) The impact of IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC
The Group assesses that the following IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the
FSC will not have significant effects on the consolidated financial statements.
« Amendments to IFRS10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets between An Investor
and Its Associate or Joint Venture”
« Amendment to IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” and IFRS 17
« Amendment to IAS 21 -- “Lack of Exchangeability”

IV. Summary of significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies presented in the consolidated financial statements are
summarized below. Except for the explanation of Note 3, the following accounting policies were
applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.
(I) Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (hereinafter
referred to as “the Regulations”) and the International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations endorsed
and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission.
(IT) Basis of preparation
1. Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for the following material items in the balance sheet:
(1) Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value;
(2) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair
value;
(3) The net defined benefit liabilities (assets) are recognized as the fair value of the plan
assets less the present value of the defined obligation, which is limited, as explained in
Note 4(18).
2. Functional and presentation currency
The functional currency of each Group entity is determined based on the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates. The consolidated financial statements
are presented in New Taiwan Dollars (NTD), which is the Company’s functional currency.
All financial information presented in NTD has been rounded to the nearest thousand.
(IIT) Basis of consolidation

1. Principles of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and entities controlled
by the Group (i.e., subsidiaries). The Group ‘controls’ an entity when it is exposed to or has
rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intragroup balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from
Intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
The Group attributes the profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

The Group prepares consolidated financial statements using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received will be recognized directly in equity, and the Group will attribute it to the owners
of the parent.

2. Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements

Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements:

Name of the Shareholding

investors Name of subsidiaries Main Business Activity 2023.12.31 2022.12.31  Explanation
The Hostan Corporation Engaged in the manufacture and - % 100.00% Notel
Company sale of various products such as

water heaters, gas stoves, oil
excretes, and computer toilets,
as well as the construction of
residential buildings by
commission, lease and sale of
commercial buildings

7 Ritiboon International Limited Holding company 100.00%  100.00%

7 Hohong Co., Ltd. Invested in production, 99.60%  99.50% Note2
securities, construction, tourism
and trading

i Hoceng Service Co., Ltd. Engaged in the installation, 70.00%  70.00%
maintenance, and import and
export of bathroom, kitchen
appliances and other parts

i Bao Long Interior Crafts Co., Engaged in manufacturing, 100.00%  100.00%
Ltd. processing, and trading of
porcelain, ceramic boards, and
tiles.
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

Ritiboon

Hocheng Philippines Property Land lease

International Holding, Inc.

Limited

”

Hocheng
Group
Holding
Corp.

Hocheng
Group
Holding
Corp.

”

Hohong Co.,

Ltd.

Hocheng
(China)
Corporation

Hocheng Group Holding Corp. Holding company

Hocheng (China) Corporation Engaged in the production and
sale of plumbing products

UPEX Trading business
Hoceng Philippines Engaged in the production and
Corporation sale of plumbing products

Swatton International Corp.  General investment

Hocheng Shanghai Sale of bathroom equipment
Corporation

40.00%

100.00%
100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

40.00%

100.00%
100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Because the
Company can
control the
financial and
business
operations of the
company and the
right to 75% of
the company's
profit distribution
the company is
deemed as a
subsidiary.

Note 1: Based on the benefits of integrated resource utilization, the Company's board of directors resolved to conduct a
short-form merger with its subsidiary Hostan Corporation on June 27, 2023. The record date of the merger was
July 28, 2023, and the Company became the surviving company after the merger.

Note 2: In January 2023, the company purchased the outstanding equity of He-Hong Co., Ltd. from key management
personnel, resulting in a change in the shareholding ratio. Please refer to Note 7 for details.
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

3. Subsidiaries excluded from the consolidated financial statements:
Shareholding

Name of the
investors

Name of
subsidiaries

Main Business Activity 2023.12.31 2022.12.31

Explanation

The
Company

Hocheng
Group
Holding
Corp.

Lazuli
International Co.,

Engaged in the

utensils

Triple S Holdings Holding company
Corporation

- 148 -

installation and import
Ltd. of furniture, cooking

100.00%

40.00%

100.00%

40.00%

Established in March 2006. The
Group has control over the company,
which has a capital of NT$1,000
thousand as of December 31, 2023,
and 2022, representing 0.03% of the
Group's capital. Since the products
are similar to the Group, in order to
avoid overlapping of the market, it
was suspended from business in
March 2008 and dissolved by
resolution of the Board on June 21,
2012. The liquidation process is still
in progress. However, the amount is
not material; it did not consolidate
into the consolidated financial
statements.

Established in 2004, Hocheng Group
Holding Corp. held 40% of the
shares, and the right to allocate a
surplus to the company was 88%.
Hocheng Group Holding Corp. has
substantial control over the
company’s surplus distribution
rights. However, the amount is not
material; so it was not consolidated
into the consolidated financial
statements.



Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

(IV) Foreign currency
1. Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional
currencies of Group entities at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of each subsequent reporting period (“the reporting date”), monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the functional currencies using the exchange rate at
that date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are translated into functional currencies using the exchange rate at the date that the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured based on historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

Exchange differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for those
differences relating to the following, which are recognized in other comprehensive income:
(1) an investment in equity securities designated as at fair value through other

comprehensive income;
(2) a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to
the extent that the hedge is effective; or
(3) qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent the hedge are effective.
2. Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising from acquisitions, are translated into the presentation currency at the
exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency at the average exchange rate. Exchange differences
are recognized in other comprehensive income.

When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, joint control, or significant
influence is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign
operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the
Company disposes of any part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation
while retaining control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is re-attributed to
non-controlling interests. When the Company disposes of only part of its investment in an
associate or joint venture that includes a foreign operation while retaining significant
influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified

to profit or loss.
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

When the settlement of a monetary receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, exchange differences arising
from such a monetary item that is considered part of the net investment in the foreign
operation are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(V) Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities
An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets
are classified as non-current.
1. It is expected to be realized, or intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating
cycle;
2. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
4. The asset is cash or a cash equivalent (as defined in IAS 7) unless the asset is restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other
liabilities are classified as non-current.
1. It is expected to be settled in its normal operating cycle;
2. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or
4. The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by issuing equity instruments do not affect its
classification.
(VD) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits that meet the above definition and
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment
or other purposes should be recognized as cash equivalents. Time deposits with maturities
within a year or less that meet the above definition and are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes should be

recognized as cash equivalents.
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

(VII) Financial assets

Trade receivables are initially recognized when they originated. All other financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (excluding accounts receivable
without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. An accounts receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

1. Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets classified in the same category
are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.

On initial recognition, financial assets are classified as financial assets at amortized
cost, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequently to their
initial recognition unless the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets,
in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in the business model.

(1) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

« it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

« its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized costs add/less cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method and adjusted for any loss allowance.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses, and impairment loss, are recognized
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

(2) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Some trade receivables are held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling by the Group; therefore, those
receivables are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. However,

they are included in the ‘trade receivables’ line item.
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

On initial recognition, the Group is able to make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading in other comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are
subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in profit or loss
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income and are never
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Group’s
right to receive payment is established (generally, ex-dividend date).

(3) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income described above are measured at fair value through
profit or loss, including derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, as at fair value
through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

(4) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial
assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, financial assets
at amortized costs, notes and accounts receivable, other receivables, guarantee deposits
paid and other financial assets), and contract assets.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for
the following, which are measured as 12-month ECL.:

+ debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

« other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e., the risk of a default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowance for accounts receivable and contract assets are always measured at

an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based
on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment, as well as forward-
looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 365 days past due.

Lifetime ECL is the ECL that results from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected
life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are probability-weighted estimates of credit losses over the expected life of
financial assets. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e.,
the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive). ECL is discounted at the effective
interest rate of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortized cost and debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income are
credit impaired. A financial asset is “credit impaired” when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

« significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

+ a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 365 days past due;

+ the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

« it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;
or

+ the disappearance of an active market for security because of financial difficulties.
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Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from
the gross carrying amount of assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
For corporate accounts, the Group individually makes an assessment with respect to the
timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of
recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount written off.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of the amount due.

(5) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains all
of the risks and rewards of ownership substantially. It does not retain control of the
financial asset.

2. Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(1) Classification of debt or equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as financial liabilities
or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(2) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences the residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued are recognized
as the amount of consideration received, less the direct cost of issuing.

(3) Treasury shares

When shares recognized as equity are repurchased, the amount of the consideration
paid, including directly attributable costs, is recognized as a deduction from equity.
Repurchased shares are classified as treasury stock. When treasury shares are sold or
reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an increase in equity, and the
resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is recognized in capital reserve or retained

earnings (if the capital reserve is not sufficient to be written down).
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(4) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or at fair value
through profit or loss. A financial liability is classified as at fair value through profit or
loss if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative, or it is designated as such on
initial recognition. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in
profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit
or loss.

(5) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or canceled, or expire. The Group also derecognizes a financial liability when
its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized
at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

(6) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in
the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(VII) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost of
inventories is calculated based on the weighted average method and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs, and other costs incurred
in bringing them to the location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and
work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal
operating capacity.

The net realizable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less all estimated costs of completion and necessary selling expenses.
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(IX) Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence over their
financial and operating policies but not control or joint control.

Investments in the equity of associates are accounted for using the equity method. Under
the equity method, the costs were recognized upon initial acquisition. The cost of the
investment includes transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in associates
includes goodwill identified on the acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment losses.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of those associates, after adjustments to align the accounting
policies with those of the Group, from the date on which significant influence commences until
the date on which significant influence ceases. When an associate’s equity changes due to
reasons other than profit and loss or comprehensive income, which did not result in changes
in the Group’s shareholding percentage in the associate, the Group recognizes equity changes
attributable to the Group by its shareholding percentage as capital reserve.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and an associate are
recognized in the financial statements only to the extent of a non-related investor’s equity in
the associate.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interests in an associate, the carrying
amount of the investment, including any long-term interests that form a part thereof, is reduced
to zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent the Group has
an obligation or has made payments on behalf of its associates.

(XI) Joint Arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement in which two or more parties have joint control.
The IFRS classifies joint arrangements into two types — joint operations and joint ventures,
which have the following characteristics: (a) the parties are bound by a contractual
arrangement; and (b) the contractual arrangement gives two or more of those parties joint
control of the arrangement. IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” defines joint control as the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities (i.e., activities that significantly affect the returns of the
arrangement) require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the Group has joint control of the
arrangement (i.e., joint ventures) in which the Group has rights to the net assets of the
arrangement rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities. The Group
recognizes its interest in a joint venture as an investment and accounts for that investment

using the equity method in accordance with IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint
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Ventures” unless the Group qualifies for exemption from that Standard. Please refer to note
4(9) for the application of the accounting of equity method.

When assessing the classification of a joint arrangement, the Group considers the
structure and legal form of the arrangement, the terms of the contractual arrangement, and
other facts and circumstances. When the facts and circumstances change, the Group
reevaluates whether the classification of the joint arrangement has changed.

(XI) Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation, or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes. Investment property
is measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation expense is calculated based on
the depreciation method, useful life, and residual value, which are the same as those adopted
for property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount) is recognized in profit or
loss.

Rental income from investment property is recognized as other revenue on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognized as an integral part of
the total rental income over the term of the lease.

(XII) Property, plant and equipment
1. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized
in profit or loss.

2. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic

benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.
3. Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset, less its residual value, and is

recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
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component of an item of property, plant and equipment.
Lands are not depreciated.
The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for the current and

comparative years are as follows:

(1) Houses and buildings 3~ 60 years
(2) Machinery and equipment 2~20 years
(3) Transportation equipment 3~8 years

(4) Office equipment 3~15 years
(5) Other equipment 2~35 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted if appropriate.

4. Reclassification to investment property

A property is reclassified to investment property at its carrying amount when the use
of the property changes from owner-occupied to investment property.

(XIIT) Lease
At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
1. As a lesee

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset
or the end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be reliably determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
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Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the
following:
(1) fixed payments, including in substance fixed payments;
(2) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;
(3) amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
(4) payments for purchase or termination options that are reasonably certain to be exercised.
The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. It is remeasured when:
(1) there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in c;
(2) there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee;
(3) there is a change in the lease term resulting from a change of its assessment on whether
it will exercise an option to purchase the underlying asset;
(4) there is a change in its assessment of the lease period on whether it will exercise an
extension or termination option;
(5) there is a lease modification

When the lease liability is remeasured, when are changes in an index or rate to
determine lease payments, changes in the amount of residual value guarantee, or changes in
the assessment of purchase, extension, or termination options above, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the
lease for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Group accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognize the difference in
profit or loss for any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
and lease liabilities as separate line items, respectively, in the balance sheets.

The Group has elected not to recognize the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short-term leases of computer equipment and other equipment that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a practical expedient, the Group elects not to assess whether all rent concessions

that meet all the following conditions are lease modifications or not:
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(1) the rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic;

(2) the change in lease payments that resulted in revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

(3) any reduction in lease payments that affects only those payments originally due on or
before December 31, 2022; and

(4) there is no substantive change in other terms and conditions of the lease.

In accordance with the practical expedient, the effect of the change in the lease liability
is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
rent concession occurs.

2. As alessor

When the Group is the lessor in the transactions, it classifies lease contracts based on
whether substantially all risks and compensations from the ownership of target assets are
transferred; if yes, the contracts are classified as financing leases, and if no, operating leases.
As part of this assessment, the Group considers certain indicators, such as whether the lease
is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease
and the sublease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sublease with reference
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. If a head lease is a short-term lease to
which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sublease as an
operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Group applies IFRS15
to allocate the consideration in the contract.

(XIV) Intangible assets
1. Recognition and measurement

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost, less
accumulated impairment losses.

Expenditure on research activities is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured
reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic
benefits are probable, and the Group intends to, and has sufficient resources to, complete
the development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognized in profit or loss as
incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, development expenditure is measured at cost,
less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have useful lives that are
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measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
2. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures, including
expenditures on internally generated goodwill and brands, are recognized in profit or loss
as incurred.
3. Amortization
Amortization is calculated over the cost of the asset, less its residual value, and is
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets from the date that they are available for use.
The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for the current and
comparative years are as follows:
Computer software cost 2~15 years
Residual values, useful lives, and amortization methods of intangible assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
(XV) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets
(other than inventories and deferred income tax assets) to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or cash-generating units (CGUs). Goodwill arising from a business
combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to reduce the carrying amounts

of the other assets in the CGU on a pro-rata basis.
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An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment
loss had been recognized.

(XVI) Debt allowance

A debt allowance is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Debt allowances are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pretax rate that reflects the current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The amortization
of the discount is recognized as interest expenses.

A provision of debt allowance for sales is recognized when the underlying products or
services are sold based on historical allowance data and a weighting of all possible outcomes
against their associated probabilities.

(XVII) Revenue recognition
1. Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Group recognizes
revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of goods or
services to a customer. Descriptions based on the major revenue items of the Group are as
follows:

(1) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts
and volume rebates. Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence exists, usually in
the form of an executed sales agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the customer, recovery of the consideration is
probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there
1s no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably. If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can
be measured reliably, then the discount is recognized as a reduction of revenue as the

sales are recognized.
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The timing of the transfers of risks and rewards varies depending on the individual
terms of the sales agreement. For international shipments, a transfer occurs upon loading
the goods onto the relevant carrier at the client’s designated location. For domestic
shipments, a transfer occurs upon loading the goods delivered to the customer's premises.

(2) Services

The Group offers merchandise installation services to customers. Revenue from
services rendered is recognized in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion
of the transaction at the reporting date.

(3) Rental income

The rental income arising from investment property is recognized in accordance with
the straight-line method over the lease period; also, the given lease incentives are deemed
as part of the overall rent income, and it is credited to the rental income in accordance
with the straight-line method over the lease period. The revenues generated from the sub-
lease of the property are recognized as non-operating income and expenses under “lease
rental income.”

(4) Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction
prices for the time value of money.

(XVII) Employee benefits
1. Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to the defined contribution plans are expensed as related

services are provided.
2. Defined benefit plans

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plans is calculated
separately for each of the plans by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair
value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential
asset for the Group, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions
to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to

any applicable minimum funding requirements.
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Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprises actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling
(if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income, and
accumulated in retained earnings within equity. The Group determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the then net defined benefit liability (asset). Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting
change in benefit that relates to prior service costs or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognizes gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

3. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(XIX) Income taxes

Income taxes comprise both current taxes and deferred income taxes. Except for expenses
related to business combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive
income, all current and deferred income taxes shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Current income tax includes estimated income tax payable or tax refund receivable
calculated based on the taxable income (losses) of the year and any adjustment made to the
income tax payable or tax refund receivable in prior years. The amount is the best estimate of
estimated amounts payable or receivable measured based on the tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted on the reporting date.

Deferred income taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities on the financial reporting date and their respective tax bases. Deferred
income taxes are recognized except for the following:

1. Temporary differences in the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
1s not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profits (losses)
at the time of the transaction, and no equivalent taxable and deductible temporary

differences is incurred at the time of the transaction.
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2. temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future;
and

3. taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred income tax asset is recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused
tax credits, and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized. Deferred income tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefits will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability
of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred income taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to
temporary differences when they reserve, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset if the following criteria are met:

1. the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

2. the deferred income tax assets and the deferred income tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either:

(1) The same taxable entity; or
(2) Different taxable entities which intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis or to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred income tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered.
(XX) Earnings per share

The Group discloses the Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company. Basic earnings per share are calculated as the profit
attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding. The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company, divided by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. Potential ordinary shares of the Group include the remuneration of

employees.
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(XXI) Segment information
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities
from which it may incur revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses
relating to transactions with other components of the Group). The operating results of the
operating segment are regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision-maker to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance.

Each operating segment consists of standalone financial information.

V. Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation
uncertainty:

In preparing this consolidated financial report, the management must make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the adoption of accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The
management recognizes any changes in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of
those changes in accounting estimates in the following period.

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effects on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements causes no
significant effects.

Information about assumptions or estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year is as follows:

(I) The loss allowance of accounts receivable
The Group has estimated the loss allowance of trade receivable that is based on the risk
of a default occurring and the rate of expected credit loss. The Group has considered historical
experience, current economic conditions and forward-looking information at the reporting date
to determine the assumptions to be used in calculating the impairments and the selected inputs.

For relevant assumptions and input values, please refer to note 6(4).

(IT) Inventory valuation
As inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, the Group estimates
the net realizable value of inventories for obsolescence and unmarketable items at the end of
the reporting period and then writes down the cost of inventories to net realizable value. The
net realizable value of the inventory is mainly determined based on assumptions as to future
demand within a specific time horizon. Due to the rapid technological changes, there may be
significant changes in the net realizable value of inventories. Please refer to Note 6(6) for

further description of the valuation of inventories.
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VI. Explanation of significant accounting items

(I) Cash and cash equivalents

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Cash and petty cash $ 4,440 4,602
Checking account deposits 2,394 25,862
Demand deposit 639,129 471,615
Time deposits 726,976 163,788
Cash and cash equivalents presented in the consolidated $ 1,372,939 665,867

statement of cash flows

Please refer to Note 6(25) for the exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, and sensitivity

analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the Group.

(IT) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss:
Beneficiary certificates - open-end fund $ 149,560 315,923
Stocks listed on TWSE (TPEXx) 113 1,867
Total A 149,673 317,790

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, none of the financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss have been pledged as collateral.

(IIT) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Domestic and foreign listed stocks $ 1,161,975 957,467
Domestic non-listed stocks 2.941 3.147
Total h 1,164,916 960,614

1. Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Group holds such equity instruments as long-term strategic investments, not for

transaction purposes; therefore, they are designated as measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

In 2023 and 2022, the Group recognized a dividend income of NT$49,947 thousand

and NT$161,554 thousand, respectively, for the investments in equity instruments

designated as measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
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Due to changes in investment strategy in 2023 and 2022, the Group has disposed of its
financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income. The fair value
upon the disposals was NT$89,399 thousand and NT$49,779 thousand, and the Group
recorded cumulative disposal gains (losses) of NT$17,144 thousand and NT$9,348
thousand in 2023 and 2022, respectively. The cumulative disposal gains or losses have been
transferred to retained earnings.

2. For credit risk (including the impairment of debt investments) and market risk, please

refer to Note 6(25).
3. The financial assets above had not been pledged as collateral.

(IV) Notes and accounts receivables

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Notes receivable $ 427,171 443,331
Accounts receivable 823,467 780,793
Less: loss allowance (63.,844) (63.649)
$ 1,186,794 1,160.475

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for its ECL for all notes and
accounts receivable (i.e., the use of lifetime ECL provision for all receivables) in Taiwan,
Mainland China, and other regions. Notes and accounts receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics of customers’ capacity in settling the amount past due
according to the contractual terms, with reference to the net amount after deducting the value
of the collateral provided by customers, as well as incorporated forward-looking information,
including macroeconomic and relevant industry information, to recognize loss allowance
based on the expected loss rate of each group.

The ECL of notes and accounts receivable of the Group in Taiwan and other countries is

analyzed as follows:

2023.12.31
Book value of

notes and Weighted Loss

accounts average ECL  allowance for

receivable rate lifetime ECL
Current $ 1,081,943  0%~0.2% 1,889
1 to 30 days past due 32,547 0%~7% 2,261
31 to 120 days past due 36,340 0%~17% 6,297
121 to 365 days past due 11,856 0%~46% 5,468
More than one year past due 7,021 100% 7,021

h 1,169,707
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Current

1 to 30 days past due

31 to 120 days past due
121 to 365 days past due

More than one year past due

2022.12.31
Book value of
notes and Weighted Loss
accounts average ECL  allowance for
receivable rate lifetime ECL
$ 1,034,801 0%~0.1% 680
25,170 0%~2% 514
23,661 0%~5% 1,238
11,614 0%~27% 3,184
17,524 100% 17,524

h 1,112,770

23,140

The ECL of notes and accounts receivable of the Group in Mainland China is analyzed

as follows:

Current

1 to 90 days past due

91 to 180 days past due

181 to 365 days past due
More than one year past due

Individual assessment

Current

1 to 90 days past due

91 to 180 days past due

181 to 365 days past due
More than one year past due

Individual assessment

2023.12.31
Book value of
notes and Weighted Loss
accounts average ECL  allowance for
receivable rate lifetime ECL
$ 30,068  0%~0.5% 134
3,928 0%~5% 195
7,871 0%~19% 1,519
9 0%~56% 5
15,482 100% 15,482
23.573 100% 23.573
$ 80,931 40,908
2022.12.31
Book value of
notes and Weighted Loss
accounts average ECL  allowance for
receivable rate lifetime ECL
$ 65,684 0%~1% 442
6,372 0%~19% 1,225
958 0%~53% 503
3 0%~67% 2
13,083 100% 13,083
25,254 100% 25,254
$ 111,354 40,509
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The movements in the loss allowance for notes and accounts receivables of the Group are

set out in the following table:

Beginning balance

Impairment losses recognized

Amounts written off due to the inability to recover
during the year

Exchange gains or losses

Ending balance

(V) Other receivables

Others

Less: loss allowance

2023 2022

$ 63,649 46,130
1,148 17,012
(545) (122)

(408) 629

$ 63,844 63,649

2023.12.31 2022.12.31

$ 91,083 86,173
(16.766) (16.624)

$ 74,317 69,549

The movements in the loss allowance for other receivables of the Group are set out in the

following table:

Beginning balance

Impairment losses recognized

Amounts written off due to the inability to recover
during the year

Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates

Ending balance

(VD) Inventories

Raw material
Supplies

Work in process
Finished goods
Merchandise

In transit inventory

2023 2022
$ 16,624 17,474
59 ;

(6) (1,003)

89 153

$ 16,766 16,624

2023.12.31 2022.12.31

$ 300,128 297,837
20,604 23,357

183,721 200,878

943,016 932,121
315,861 408,234
5.765 14,816

$ 1,769,095 1,877,243

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the cost of goods sold and expenses
amounted to NT$3,670,621 thousand and NT$3,695,789 thousand, respectively. The Group

recognized inventory write-down and obsolescence losses of NT$27,059 thousand and

NT$14,843 thousand due to inventory written down to net realizable value in 2023 and 2022,
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respectively. The amounts are included in the cost of sales primarily due to the provision of
obsolescence inventory losses by the Group.

The Group scrapped its inventories due to a fire accident in September 2022, and the
amount of NT$21,685 thousand was accounted for under non-operating income - other gains
and losses; for details, please refer to Note 6(24).

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, none of the Group’s inventories was pledged as
collateral.

(VII) Investments accounted for using the equity method
A summary of the Group’s financial information for investments accounted for using

the equity method at the reporting date is as follows:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Associates $ 51,357 49,747
Joint venture 776 2,011
$ 52.133 51,758

1. Associates
Investments in associates accounted for using the equity method are individually
insignificant, and the summary of their financial information is as follows (the financial

information is the amount included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group):

2023.12.31 2022.12.31

Total carrying amount of individually insignificant ~ $ 51,357 49,747

associates’ equity

2023 2022

Share attributable to the Group:

Net profits for the period from continuing $ 684 522

operations
Other comprehensive income 958 (4.361)
Total comprehensive income $ 1,642 (3.839)

2. Joint ventures
Investments in joint ventures accounted for using the equity method are individually
insignificant; the financial information is the amount included in the consolidated financial

statements of the Group:
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2023.12.31 2022.12.31

Total carrying amount of individually insignificant $ 776 2,011

joint ventures’ equity

2023 2022

Share attributable to the Group:

Net profits for the period from continuing $ (1,217) (1,684)

operations
Other comprehensive income (36) (279)
Total comprehensive income S (1,253) (1,963)

3. Guarantee

The Group did not provide any investments accounted for using the equity method as
collateral.
(VIII) Property, Plant and Equipment
The breakdown of changes in the cost and depreciation of property, plant and equipment
of the Group is as follows:

Equipment
pending
inspection
Machinery Transportati and
and on Office Other construction
Land Buildings quif t i t i t quip t _in progress Total
Costs:
Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 2,425,201 2,251,931 3,050,580 111,754 485,092 914,654 22,067 9,261,279
Addition - 2,175 30,737 10,325 16,829 40,235 8,736 109,037
Disposal (152) (901,326) (712,890) (19,524) (171,185) (25,200) - (1,830,277)
Reclassification - 127,328 - - (33) (114,039) (13,349) (93)
Effects on changes in exchange rates 1,410 (2.530) 11.973 155 114 3,699 458 15,279
Balance on December 31, 2023 S 2,426,459 1,477,578 2,380,400 102,710 330,817 819,349 17,912 1,555,225
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 2,416,781 2,138,527 3,011,129 120,128 458,941 880,889 - 9,026,395
Addition - 102,141 34,741 8,966 24,761 47,300 21,886 239,795
Disposal (658) - (17,578) (17,723) (1,170) (16,930) - (54,059)
Effects on changes in exchange rates 9.078 11,263 22,288 383 2,560 3.395 181 49.148
Balance on December 31, 2022 $ 2,425,201 2,251,931 3,050,580 111,754 485,092 914,654 22,067 9,261,279
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Equipment
pending
inspection
Machinery and
and Transportati Office Other construction
Land Build i on equip quif quif in progress Total
Depreciation:

Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 1,615,736 2,794,328 89,018 411,422 755,805 5,666,309
Addition 51,708 48,650 7,496 21,005 39,914 168,773
Disposal (901,334) (650,453) (16,444) (156,000) (23,800) (1,748,031)
Reclassification 70,657 - - 9 (70,666)

Effects on changes in exchange rates (4.717) 11,570 162 148 3.440 10,603
Balance on December 31, 2023 $ 832,050 __2.204,095 ____ 80232 ___ 276,584 ___ 704.693 4,097,654
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 1,550,951 2,739,681 97,515 389,113 728,295 5,505,555
Depreciation this period 56,301 51,472 7,882 21,198 40,006 176,859
Disposal (17,578) (16,712) (1,130) (15,539) (50,959)
Effects on changes in exchange rates 8,484 20,753 333 2,241 3,043 34,854
Balance on December 31, 2022 $ 1,615,736 __ 2,794,328 89,018 411,422 755,805 __ 5,666,309

Carrying amount:

December 31, 2023 $ 2,426,459 645,528 176,305 22,478 54,233 114,656 17,912 3,457,571
January 1, 2022 $ 2416,781 _ 587,576 _ 271,448 _ 22,613 _ 69,828 152,594 3,520,840

December 31, 2022

22,736

73,670 158,849 _ 22,067 _3,594,970

Since the land of the Yingge factory and business premises of the Group is agricultural
land, it is not yet possible to transfer it to the name of the Group. As of December 31, 2023

and 2022 the key management personnel are registered in the name of the trust registrant.
Please refer to Note 7 for relevant information.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, regarding the execution of the deed of real estate
trust for the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the breakdown of those that have

been pledged as collateral for long-term and short-term borrowings and financing limits, please

refer to note 8.
(IX) Right-of-use assets

The breakdown of changes in costs and depreciation of lands, houses and buildings,

machinery equipment, and transportation equipment leased by the Group are as follows:

Costs of right-of-use assets:
Balance on January 1, 2023
Addition
Decrease
Reclassification
Effects on changes in exchange

rates
Balance on December 31, 2023
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Transport
ation
Land Buildings equipment Others Total

Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 61,601 145,245 14,051 4,906 225,803
Addition - 21,090 7,831 - 28,921
Decrease - (17,797) (6,335) - (24,132)
Effects on changes in exchange 892 278 - - 1,170

rates
Balance on December 31,2022 § 62,493 148,816 15,547 4,906 _ 231,762

Depreciation of right-of-use assets:

Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 34,827 77,991 7,228 2,166 122,212
Depreciation this period 790 33,328 4,197 536 38,851
Other decreases - (2,078) (2,097) - (4,175)
Reclassification 147 (190) - 43 -
Effects on changes in exchange (636) (448) - - (1,084)

rates
Balance on December 31,2023 § 35,128 _ 108,603 9,328 2,745 _ 155,804
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 32,954 63,173 9,651 1,674 107,452
Depreciation this period 1,399 26,159 3,865 492 31,915
Other decreases - (11,544) (6,288) - (17,832)
Effects on changes in exchange 474 203 - - 677

rates
Balance on December 31,2022 § 34,827 77,991 7,228 2,166 _ 122,212

Carrying amount:

December 31, 2023 $ 26723 78,087 7,514 2,265 _ 114,589
January 1, 2022 $ 28647 _  82.072 4,400 3,232 _ 118,351
December 31, 2022 $ 27,666 70,825 8.319 2,740 _ 109,550

Please refer to Note 8 for the breakdown of right-of-use assets pledged as collateral for

long-term and short-term borrowings and financing limits as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.

(X) Investment property

Investment property comprises land and office buildings that are leased to third parties

under operating leases as well as properties that are owned by the Group. The leases of

investment properties contain an initial non-cancellable lease term of one to ten years. Some

leases provide the lessees with options to extend at the end of the term.

For all investment property leases, the rental income is fixed, but some leases require the

lessee to reimburse the insurance costs of the Group. In this case, the amounts of insurance

costs are determined annually.
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The breakdown of the Group’s investment properties is as follows:

Land Buildings Total
Cost:
Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 466,138 580,231 1,046,369
Effects on changes in exchange rates - (5.848) (5.848)
Balance on December 31, 2023 $ 466,138 574,383 1.040.521
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 466,138 575,611 1,041,749
Effects on changes in exchange rates - 4,620 4,620
Balance on December 31, 2022 S 466,138 580,231 1,046,369
Depreciation:
Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 5,285 369,362 374,647
Depreciation during the year - 19,493 19,493
Effects on changes in exchange rates - (2,547) (2,547)
Balance on December 31, 2023 $ 5,285 386,308 391.593
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 5,285 355,024 360,309
Depreciation during the year - 12,602 12,602
Effects on changes in exchange rates - 1,736 1,736
Balance on December 31, 2022 $ 5,285 369.362 374,647
Carrying amount:
December 31, 2023 $ 460,853 188.075 648,928
January 1, 2022 S 460,853 220,587 681,440
December 31, 2022 $ 460,853 210,869 671,722
Fair value:
December 31, 2023 S 1.687.104
December 31, 2022 $ 1,626,593
January 1, 2022 $  1.313.297

Investment properties include multiple commercial properties leased to others. For details
of relevant information (including rental income and direct operating expenses occurred),
please refer to Note 6(17).

The fair value of investment property is based on the valuation of the market value.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, for the breakdown of investment properties of the
Group that had been pledged as collateral for long-term and short-term borrowings and

financing limits, please refer to Note 8.
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(XTI) Short-term borrowings

The breakdown of the Group’s short-term borrowings is as follows:

Borrowings on unsecured letters of credit
Unsecured bank borrowings

Secured bank borrowings

Total

Outstanding limits

Interest rates

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
$ - 19,050
319,693 343,322
146,270 565,043
$ 465.963 927.415

2315804 _ 2.369.333
1.72%~7.55% 1.45%~6.50%

For details of collateral for short-term borrowings on the pledge of assets as collateral,

please refer to note 8.
(XII) Short-term notes and bills payable

The breakdown of short-term notes and bills payable by the Group is as follows:

2023.12.31
Guarantee or

acceptance

institution Interest rates Amount
Commercial papers payable Bills finance - $ -

company
Outstanding limits $ 430,000
2022.12.31
Guarantee or

acceptance

institution Interest rates Amount
Commercial papers payable Bills finance 2.02%~2.10% $ 105,000

company
Outstanding limits $ 325,000
(XIII) Other current liabilities
The Group's other current liabilities are detailed as follows:
2023.12.31 2022.12.31

Contract liabilities $ 86,845 77,034
Compensation received in advance (Note) 1,060,698 -
Others 53.515 34,015
Total $ 1,201,058 111,049

Note: Please refer to Note 9 (2) for details of compensation received in advance for the

right-of-use houses and land relocated and acquired.
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(XIV) Long-term borrowings

The breakdown, conditions, and terms of the Group’s long-term borrowings are as

follows:

Secured bank borrowings
Secured bank borrowings

Less: Portion due within one
year
Total

Outstanding limits

Secured bank borrowings
Secured bank borrowings

Less: Portion due within one
year
Total

Outstanding limits

2023.12.31

Maturity

Currency Interest rates date Amount

TWD 2.37%
PESO 6.70%

113.10.19 § 440,000
115.07.17 91.493
531,493

(459.061)

$ 72432

$ 129.810
2022.12.31

Maturity

Currency Interest rates date Amount

TWD 2.24%
RMB 5.15%

113.10.19 § 520,000
113.1.24 76,716
596,716

(92.113)

$ 504.603
$ 37.891

For information on the Group’s interest risk, currency risk and liquidity risk, please

refer to Note 6(25).

For details of collateral for short-term borrowings on the pledge of assets as collateral,

please refer to note 8.
(XV) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities of the Group is as follows:

Current

Non-current

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
$ 39.214 30,788
h 51,797 54,012
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For details of the maturity analysis, please refer to Note 6(25) financial instruments.

The amount recognized in profit or loss is as follows:

2023 2022
Interest expenses on lease liabilities h) 2,252 1,521
Expenses relating to short-term leases S 8,460 4.224
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets $ 822 772
(excluding short-term leases of low-value assets)
COVID-19-related rent concessions (recognized as a S - 50

deduction of rent expenses)

The amount recognized in the statements of cash flows is as follows:
2023 2022
Total cash used in leases S 48.889 38.301

1. Land, house and building leases
As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group leases land and houses and buildings
for its office space and factories. The leases of office space typically run for one to five
years.
2. Other leases
The Group leases transportation equipment and other equipment, with lease terms of

two to five years.

(XVI) Debt allowance
Debt allowance
for discount

Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 19,089
Debt allowance increased during the period 8,399
Debt allowance used during the period (9,808)
Debt allowance reversed during the period (1,634)
Balance on December 31, 2023 S 16,046
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 20,867
Debt allowance increased during the period 15,826
Debt allowance used during the period (17,604)

Debt allowance reversed during the period -
Balance on December 31, 2022 S 19.089
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For debt allowance for discounts, the Group assesses potential product discounts based
on historical experience, the management’s judgment and other known reasons. Such
allowances are recognized as a deduction item for the operating revenue of the year in which
relevant products are sold.

(XVII) Operating lease

The Group leases out investment properties. The Group has classified these leases as
operating leases because it does not substantially transfer all of the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of the assets. Please refer to Note 6(10) for details of investment properties.

The maturity analysis of the lease payment based on the total undiscounted lease payment

to be collected after the reporting date is set out in the following table:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Less than 1 year $ 27,332 54,180
1 to 5 years 47,920 161,991
> 5 years 4,784 173,155
Total undiscounted lease payment $ 80,036 389.326

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the rental revenue from investment
properties amounted to NT$34,711 thousand and NT$45,859 thousand, respectively.
(XVII) Employee benefits
1. Defined benefit plans
The reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value

of plan assets is as follows:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Defined benefit obligation $ 704,311 790,897
Fair value of plan assets (822.494) (863.576)
Net defined benefit liabilities (assets) h) (118.183) (72,679)

The Group makes contributions to the labor pension fund account with the Bank of
Taiwan that is under the defined benefit plan. If the Labor Standard Act applies to an
employee, the retirement payment shall be calculated based on the base points obtained in
accordance with the seniority and the average salaries six months before retirement.

(1) Composition of plan
The Group set aside pension funds in accordance with the “Regulations for Revenues,
Expenditures, Safeguard, and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund,” and such funds
are managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor. Under these regulations,
the minimum earnings from these pension funds shall be no less than the earnings from

two-year time deposits with the interest rates offered by local banks.
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As of the reporting date, the Group’s labor pension reserve account balance
amounted to NT$822,494 thousand. The information for the utilization of the labor
pension fund assets included the asset allocation and yield of the fund.

(2) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the movements in the present

value of the defined benefit obligations of the Group are as follows:

2023 2022

Defined benefit obligations as at January 1 § 790,897 843,374
Current service costs and interest 17,641 13,503
Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability

- Actuarial gains or losses arising from 980 (3,431)
demographic assumptions

- Actuarial gains or losses arising from financial 10,141 (31,237)
assumptions

- Adjustments based on experiences (7,365) 12,859
Prior service costs 2,765 2,061
Exchange differences from overseas plans 867 828
Benefits paid under the plan (64,286) (47,060)
Assets acquired in a business combination (47,329) -
Defined benefit obligations as at December 31 $ 704,311 790,897

(3) Movements in the fair value of plan assets
The movements in the fair value of the defined benefit plan assets for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

2023 2022

Fair value of plan assets as at January 1 $ 863,576 816,390
Interest income 12,556 6,443
Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability

- Return on plan assets (excluding interest income 8,938 59,434
of the current period)
Contributions appropriated to the plan 32,415 27,948
Exchange differences from overseas plans 389 421
Benefits paid under the plan (64,286) (47,060)
Assets acquired in a business combination (31,094) -
Fair value of plan assets as at December 31 $ 822.494 863,576
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(4) Expenses recognized as profit or loss

The breakdown of expenses recognized by the Group as of December 31, 2023 and

2022 is as follows:

Current period service costs

Prior service costs

Net interest of net defined benefit liabilities
Interest income from plan assets

Net effect of merger and acquisition

Operating cost
Sales and marketing expenses
General and administrative expenses

Research and development expenses

(5) Actuarial assumptions

2023 2022
4,266 1,257
2,765 3,464

10,093 5,804

(9,274) -
(16.530) -

(8,680) 10,525

2023 2022

(1,032) 4,101
(4,354) 899
(1,824) 5,319
(1,470) 206
(8,680) 10,525

The principal actuarial assumptions used by the Group to determine the present value

of defined benefit obligations on the reporting date are as follows:

Discount rate

Future salary increase

2023.12.31

2022.12.31

1.13%~6.07%
1.25%~5.00%

1.38%~7.16%
1.25%~5.00%

The expected allocation payment to be made by the Group to the defined benefit

plan within one year after the reporting date of 2023 is NT$32,523 thousand.

The weighted average lifetime of the defined benefits plans is 6.3~10.5 years.

(6) Sensitivity analysis

When calculating the present value of the defined benefit obligations, the Group uses

judgments and estimates to determine the actuarial assumptions on the balance sheet date,

including the discount rates and future salary changes. Any changes in the actuarial

assumptions may significantly impact the amount of the defined benefit obligations.

If the actuarial assumptions had changed, the impact on the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 shall be as follows:
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Influences on defined benefit

obligations
Increased by Decreased by
0.25%~1.00% 0.25%~1.00%
December 31, 2023
Discount rate $ 46,686 76,540
Future salary increase 76,650 48,410
Influences on defined benefit
obligations
Increased by Decreased by
0.25%~1.00% 0.25%~1.00%
December 31, 2022
Discount rate $ (15,748) 16,537
Future salary increase 16,605 (15,902)

The sensitivity analysis above analyzed the effects of changes in a single assumption,
and other assumptions remained unchanged. In practice, multiple assumptions may be
correlated. The method used in the sensitivity analysis is consistent with the calculation
of the net defined benefit liabilities on the balance sheets.

There is no change in the method and assumptions used in the preparation of the
sensitivity analysis for 2022 and 2021.

2. Defined contribution plans

The Group allocates 6% of each employee’s monthly wages to the labor pension
personal account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions of the
Labor Pension Act under the defined contribution plan. Under the plan, the Group is
exempted from the legal or constructive obligations for additional payments after
appropriating a fixed amount to the Bureau of Labor Insurance.

The Group confirmed that the pension expenses to the Bureau of Labor Insurance under
the defined pension contribution plan for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
amounted to NT$26,634 thousand and NT$26,162 thousand, respectively, have been
appropriated to the Bureau of Labor Insurance. Except for the above, pension expenses of
other foreign subsidiaries recognized by the Group according to relevant local laws and
regulations were NT$7,978 thousand and NT$8,142 thousand for the years ended December
31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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(XIX) Income taxes
1. Income tax expenses

The breakdown of the income tax expenses of the Group is as follows:

2023 2022
Current income tax expense
Arising during the period $ 176,892 88,106
Current income tax with adjustments to the prior
period (2,675) 520
174,217 88,626
Deferred income tax expense
Occurrence and reversal of temporary differences (130.,111) 3.472
Income tax expenses for continuing operations A 44,106 92,098

The breakdown of income tax expenses recognized in other comprehensive income

by the Group for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

2023 2022
Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans $ (869) 16,398

Reconciliation of income tax and profit before tax of the Group for 2023 and 2022 is

as follows:
2023 2022

Net profits before tax S 66,183 250,230
Income tax calculated at the domestic tax rate at the  $ 13,249 50,046

place where the Company locates
Effect of tax rate differences in foreign jurisdictions (38,976) (24,609)
Non-temporary differences (16) (17,508)
Tax-exempted income (2,651) (3,790)
Tax incentives (7,674) (6,767)
Current tax losses of unrecognized deferred income tax 42,960 -

asset
Changes in unrecognized temporary differences 31,842 47,470
Previous (over) under-estimation (2,675) 520
Additional tax on undistributed earnings 7,859 46,736
Others 188 -
Total S 44,106 92,098
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2. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
(1) Unrecognized deferred income tax liabilities
As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the temporary differences related to investments
in subsidiaries were not recognized as deferred income tax liabilities as the Group has the
ability to control the reversal of these temporary differences, which are not expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
(2) Unrecognized deferred income tax assets

Items of deferred income tax assets not recognized by the Group are as follows:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Deductible temporary differences $ 57,285 211,292
Aggregate amount of temporary differences related 349,173 321,084
to investments in subsidiaries
$ 406,458 532,376

For taxation losses, losses of the Group for the preceding five to ten years accessed
by the taxation agency shall be deducted from the net profits of the year before accessing
income tax according to the requirements of the Income Tax Act. Such items are not
recognized as deferred income tax assets as the Group is not likely to have abundant
taxable income in the future for such temporary differences.

As of December 31, 2023, for taxation losses of the Group (domestic subsidiaries)

not recognized and recognized as deferred income tax assets, the deduction period is as

follows:
Unrecognized losses not Last year available for
Years of loss deducted deduction
2015 28,664 2025
2016 33,828 2026
2017 35,248 2027
2018 27,168 2028
2019 51,067 2029
2020 31,174 2030
2021 1,459 2031
2022 8,087 2032
$ 216,695
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As of December 31, 2023, for taxation losses of the Group (foreign subsidiaries) not

recognized as deferred income tax assets, the deduction period is as follows:

Unrecognized losses not Last year available for
Years of loss deducted deduction
2021 $ 9,284 2026
2022 24,287 2027
2023 22,213 2028
$ 55,784

(3) Recognized deferred income tax assets and liabilities

Changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Reserve
for land
Defined value
benefit increment
plans tax Others Total
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 7,075 276,574 12,016 295,665
Debit (credit) on the income 58,835 - 7,891 66,726
statement
Debit (credit) on other (192) - - (192)
comprehensive income
Effects of changes in foreign - - (123) (123)

exchange rates
Balance on December 31, 2023 $ 65,718 276,574 19,784 362.076

Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 4,454 276,574 11,788 292,816

Debit (credit) on the income 638 - 228 866
statement

Debit (credit) on other 1,983 - - 1,983

comprehensive income
Balance on December 31,2022  § 7,075 276,574 12,016 295,665
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Defined
benefit Loss
plans deduction  Others Total
Deferred income tax assets:
Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 2,644 9,306 19,417 31,367
(Debit) credit on the income 47,462 150,011 (636) 196,837
statement
(Debit) credit on other (1,061) - - (1,061)
comprehensive income
Effects of changes in foreign (122) (2,334) 488 (1,968)

exchange rates
Balance on December 31,2023 § 48,923 156,983 19,269

225,175

Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 16,382 9,306 22,653 48,341

(Debit) credit on the income 345 - (2,951) (2,606)
statement

(Debit) credit on other (14,415) - - (14,415)
comprehensive income

Effects of changes in foreign 332 - (285) 47

exchange rates
Balance on December 31,2022  § 2.644 9.306 19.417 31.367

3. Assessment of tax

Hohong Co., Ltd.’s income tax returns for the years through 2020 were assessed by the
taxation agency.

The tax returns of the Company and Hoceng Service Co., Ltd., Hostan Corporation,
and Bao Long Interior Crafts Co., Ltd. through 2021 have been examined and approved by
the taxation agency.

(XX) Capital and other equity
As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the total authorized capital of the Company was
NT$5,700,000 thousand, divided into 570,000 thousand shares with a par value of NT$10 per
share. The total authorized capital above comprises ordinary shares, and the issued shares were
302,304 thousand shares and 303,280 thousand shares. All issued shares were paid up upon
issuance.
The reconciliation of the Company’s outstanding shares for the years ended December

31, 2023 and 2022 is set out in the following table:
(presented in thousand shares)
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Common shares

2023 2022
Opening balance on January 1 303,280 369,854
Retirement of treasury stock (976) -
Capital reduction - (66.574)
Closing balance on December 31 302,304 303,280

1. Share capital

Note 1: Based on the benefits of integrated resource utilization, the Company's board
of directors resolved to conduct a short-form merger with its subsidiary Hostan Corporation
on June 27, 2023. The record date of the merger was July 28, 2023, and the Company
became the surviving entity after the merger. The subsidiary Hostan was the merging entity.
The Company has not issued new shares for the merger, and at the same time canceled the
976 thousand shares of the Company held by Hostan.

To optimize the Company’s capital structure, the Board approved the proposal for a
capital reduction in cash through the repayment of contributions to shareholders on May 10,
2022. The amount of capital reduction in cash was NT$665,736 thousand, 66,574 thousand
issued shares were canceled, and the rate of capital reduction in cash was 18%; the base date
of the capital reduction was August 19, 2022, and the alteration registration had been made
with the Department of Commerce, Ministry of Economic Affairs.

2. Capital reserve

The content of the capital reserve balance of the Company is as follows:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Treasury share transactions $ 12,862 11,495
Changes in net equity of subsidiaries recognized by 1,919 1,921
using the equity method
Consolidation premium 1,275 1,275
Others 531 532
h 16,587 15,223

According to the Company Act, the capital reserve shall be used to offset deficits first,
and the realized capital reserve may be used to distribute new shares or cash based on the
initial shareholding of shareholders. The aforementioned realized capital reserve includes
the premium on the issuance of shares above par and income received. According to the
Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers, capital
reserve that may be appropriate to the capital shall not exceed 10% of the paid-in capital in

aggregate each year.
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3. Retained earnings

The Company is in the traditional industry. The life cycle of the Company is in the
growing stage. To consider the need of the Company for future capital, long-term financial
planning, and the need for cash inflows for shareholders, the distribution of the Company’s
earnings shall consider the net earnings of the current year as the priority. If the Company
records earnings after the final account, apart from paying profit-seeking business income
tax and compensating losses from prior years according to the law, it shall appropriate a
10% legal reserve and appropriate special reserve based on the actual requirements of the
Company. If there are remaining earnings, the Board shall prepare a proposal for earning
distribution and submit it to the shareholders’ meeting for the resolution of distribution.

The distribution of shareholders’ dividends may be distributed after the Board has
formulated the proposal and submitted it to the shareholders’ meeting for approval based on
the Company’s operating status and capital requirements. The distribution of cash dividends
shall be prioritized. When cash dividends and share dividends are distributed at the same
time, the ratio of cash dividends therein shall not be less than 10% of total dividends.

When the amount of legal reserve has reached the total capital, the shareholders’
meeting may resolve to cease the appropriation.

For the distribution of dividends and bonuses from legal reserve and capital reserve,
the distribution shall be made after the Board has formulated the proposal and submitted it
to the shareholders’ meeting for approval according to the requirements of relevant laws
and regulations.

(1) Legal reserve
When the Company has no losses, it may, based on the resolution of the shareholders’
meeting, distribute new shares or cash from the legal reserve; however, the portion
distributable shall be the portion of the reserve that exceeds 25% of the paid-in capital.
(2) Special reserve
For the initial application of IFRS that is approved by the FSC, the Company chose
to adopt the exemptions in IFRS1 “First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards.” Therefore, for the unrealized revaluation increment under the
shareholder’s equity, retained earnings increased by NT$658,175 thousand according to
the requirements. Pursuant to the Order Jin-Guan-Zheng-Fa-Zi No.1010012865 of the
FSC dated April 6, 2012, the same amount of special reserves should be appropriated,
and when relevant assets are used, disposed of, or reclassified, the special reserve
appropriated initially shall be reversed as distributable earnings proportionately. As of

December 31, 2023 and 2022, the carrying amount of the special reserve amounted to
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NT$458,116 thousand.
(3) Earnings distribution
The proposal for earning distribution for 2022 and 2021 was approved as a resolution
at the shareholders’ meeting on June 21, 2023 and June 27, 2022. The amount of

dividends distributed to the owners is as follows:

2022 2021
Payout
Payout ratio Amount ratio Amount
Dividends distributed to owners
of ordinary shares:
Cash $ 0.20 60,656 0.20 73,971

4. Treasury shares

The breakdown of shares of the Company held by the Company’s subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Number Number
of shares of shares
Company name of the (thousand Market (thousand Market
shareholding Accounting item shares) Costs price shares) Costs price
Hostan Corporation Financial assets at fair value through profit - $ - - 976 8,680 18,060
or loss - Current

Hohong Co., Ltd. Financial assets at fair value through other 445 4,781 8,086 445 4,781 8,241

comprehensive income - Non-current

The board of directors of the Company resolved on June 27, 2023 to carry out a
short-form merger with the subsidiary Hostan Corporation, which eliminated the number
and cost of shares of the Company held by the subsidiary.

Due to the capital reduction in cash through repayment of contributions to
shareholders performed by the Company in August 2022, the number of shares of the
Company held by subsidiaries and costs was reduced based on the rate of capital reduction

in cash.
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5. Other equity (net of tax)

Exchange
differences on

Unrealized
profit and
loss on the
financial
assets
measured at
fair value

translation of  through other Non-
foreign comprehensiv controlling
operations e income interests

Balance on January 1, 2023 $ (1,184) 377,823 60,663
Exchange differences arising from the translation of net

assets of foreign operations 17,922 - 532
Unrealized (losses) gains of financial assets at fair

value through other comprehensive income - 240,007 346
Disposal of equity instruments measured at fair value

through other comprehensive income - (17,144) -
Others - - (4.350)
Balance on December 31, 2023 $ 16,738 600,686 57,191
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ (59,247) 737,180 104,234
Exchange differences arising from the translation of net

assets of foreign operations 58,063 - 472
Unrealized (losses) gains of financial assets at fair

value through other comprehensive income - (350,009) (296)
Disposal of equity instruments measured at fair value

through other comprehensive income - (9,348) -
Others - - (43.747)
Balance on December 31, 2022 $ (1,184) 377,823 60,663
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(XTI) Earnings per share
1. Basic earnings per share

(1) Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company

2023 2022
Net profit of the period attributable to the Company $ 19.347 157,290
(2) Weighted average number of issued ordinary shares (thousand shares)
2023 2022
Issued ordinary shares as at January 1 303,280 369,854
Effect of treasury shares (1,001) (1,619)
Effect of capital reduction in cash - (24.508)
Weighted average number of issued ordinary shares 302,279 343,727
as at December 31
2. Diluted earnings per share
(1) Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company (diluted)
2023 2022
Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of  $ 19,347 157,290
the Company
(2) Weighted average number of issued ordinary shares (diluted) (thousand shares)
2023 2022
Weighted average number of issued ordinary shares 302,279 343,727
(basic)
Effect of employee share bonus 409 3.024
Weighted average number of issued ordinary shares 302,688 346,751
as at December 31
(diluted)
3. Earnings per share are as follows:
2023 2022
Basic earnings per share A 0.06 0.46
Diluted earnings per share h 0.06 0.45

In 2023, it was a net loss after tax. The impact of stock-based compensation of the

Company's employees has an anti-dilution effect, so diluted loss per share was not calculated.
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(XXII) Revenue from contracts with customers

1. Breakdown of revenue

2023
Taiwan China Philippine
business business business Other
department  department department departments Total
Primary geographical
markets:
Taiwan $ 3,717,871 - - - 3,717,871
China - 272,959 - 3,779 276,738
Philippines - - 860,519 - 860,519
Other countries 13,561 - - 2,098 15,659
Total $  3.,731.432 272,959 860,519 5,877 4,870,787
Major products/service
lines:
Porcelain $ 1,241,002 151,077 532,052 4,372 1,928,503
Copper ware 704,592 35,818 114,964 964 856,338
Toilet seat cover 553,108 5,062 42,061 92 600,323
Fine pottery 117,994 - - - 117,994
Others 1,114,736 81,002 171,442 449 1,367,629
Total $ 3,731.432 272,959 860,519 5.877 4.870,787
2022
Taiwan China Philippine
business business business Other
department  department department departments Total
Primary geographical
markets:
Taiwan $ 3,823,126 - - - 3,823,126
China - 309,387 - 2,017 311,404
Philippines - - 842,924 42 842,966
Other countries 11,442 554 - 14,952 26,948
Total $ 3,834,568 309,941 842,924 17,011 5,004.444
Major products/service
lines:
Porcelain $ 1,226,578 184,244 312,507 4,353 1,727,682
Copper ware 709,909 80,933 221,825 6,172 1,018,839
Toilet seat cover 581,231 3,699 35,418 254 620,602
Fine pottery 235,688 - - - 235,688
Others 1,081,162 41,065 273,174 6,232 1.401.633
Total $ 3.834,568 309,941 842,924 17,011 5,004.444
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(XXIIT) Remuneration of employees and remuneration of Directors and supervisors

According to the requirements of the Articles of Incorporation, if the Company records
any profits, it shall appropriate 5%~8% as the annual profits. The appropriation ratio for the
remuneration of employees and remuneration of Directors and supervisors shall be up to 3%
of the annual profits. However, if the Company still has accumulated losses, an amount shall
be reserved in advance to make up for the losses.

For years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the estimated remuneration of employees
was NT$3,722 thousand and NT$14,920 thousand, and the remuneration of Directors was
NT$1,861 thousand and NT$7,460 thousand, respectively. The estimation basis is the net
profit of the Company in the respective period before the remuneration of employees and
remuneration of Directors and supervisors multiplied by the distribution ratio of the
remuneration of employees and remuneration of Directors and supervisors as stated in the
Articles of Incorporation, and the amounts were presented as operating costs or operating
expenses of the period. If there are differences between the actual distribution amount and the
estimated amount, they are treated as changes in accounting estimates, and such differences
are recognized as profit or loss in the following year. For the remuneration of employees and
remuneration of Directors and supervisors of the Company, the actual distribution amount and
the estimated amount in 2022 were equivalent; for relevant information, please visit MOPS
for inquiries.

(XXIV) Non-operating income and expenses
1. Interest income

The breakdown of interest income of the Group in 2023 and 2022 is as follows:
2023 2022

Interest from cash in the bank S 13.335 5,689

2. Other income
The breakdown of other income of the Group in 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

2023 2022
Rental income $ 39,693 50,529
Dividend income 49,947 161,554
Royalties and others 61.014 48.263
$ 150,654 260,346
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3. Other gains and losses

The breakdown of other gains and losses of the Group in 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

2023 2022
Losses from exchange (11,937) (20,886)
Net gain (loss) on financial assets at fair value through 2,934 (2,273)
profit or loss
Net gains (losses) from disposal and scrapping of 49 1,441
property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties (19,493) (12,602)
Disaster losses of inventory - (21,685)
Other gains and losses (9,395) (10,323)
S (37.842) (66,328)

4. Finance costs

The breakdown of finance costs of the Group in 2023 and 2022 is as follows:
2023 2022

Interest expenses S 51,893 50,848

(XXV) Financial instruments
1. Credit risks
(1) Credit risk exposure
The carrying amount of financial assets and contract assets represents the maximum
amount exposed to credit risk.
(2) Concentration of credit risk
The major customers of the Group are centralized in several distributors. In order to
reduce the credit risk, the Group continues to evaluate the financial status of these
customers and request collateral or guarantee when necessary. The Group regularly
assesses the likelihood of collectability of accounts receivable and sets aside an allowance
for bad debts, and the impairment losses generally fall within the expectations of the
management. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, 46% and 49% of notes receivable
balance and 17% and 16% of accounts receivable balance were concentrated on five

customers. Thus, the credit risk of the Group is significantly centralized.
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2. Liquidity risks
The following table shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including

estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements.

Carrying Cash flows Within 6 Over 5
amount of contract months 6-12 months _ 1-2 years 2-5 years years
December 31, 2023
Non-derivative financial
instruments
Secured bank $ 677,763 699,724 195,385 424,409 4,853 75,077 -
borrowings
Unsecured bank 319,693 321,753 321,302 451 - - -
borrowings
Notes payable 51,360 51,360 51,360 - - - -
Accounts payable 518,084 518,084 518,084 - - - -
Other payables 421,135 421,135 421,135 - - - -
Lease liabilities 91,011 94419 21,914 19.276 32,334 20,895 -
$ 2,079,046 2,106,475 1,529,180 444,136 37,187 95,972 -
December 31, 2022

Non-derivative financial

instruments

Secured bank $ 1,161,759 1,192,346 471,011 209,051 512,284 - -
borrowings

Unsecured bank 362,372 366,313 233,285 133,028 - - -
borrowings

Short-term notes payable 105,000 105,254 105,254 - - - -

Notes payable 123,366 123,366 123,366 - - - -

Accounts payable 476,817 476,817 476,817 - - - -

Other payables 537,907 537,907 537,907 - - - -

Lease liabilities 84,800 87,295 16.339 15,661 25,100 26.907 3.288

$ 2,852,021 2,889,298 1,963,979 357,740 537,384 26,907 3,288

The Group does not expect that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis would

occur significantly earlier or at significantly different amounts.
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3. Currency risks
(1) Exposure to foreign currency risk
Financial assets and liabilities of the Group that are exposed to significant currency

risk are as follows:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Foreign Exchange Foreign Exchange
currency rate NTD currency rate NTD
Financial assets
Monetary
items
USD $ 426 30.705 13,080 814 30.710 24,998
RMB 7,870 4.327 34,053 5,204 4.408 22,939
Financial
liabilities
Monetary
items
USD 543 30.705 16,673 4,565 30.710 140,191

(2) Sensitivity analysis
The Group’s exposure to currency risk arises from the exchange gains or losses
arising from the translation of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, other
receivables, borrowings, accounts payable, and other payables that are denominated in
foreign currencies. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, if an appreciation or depreciation
of 1% of the NTD against the USD and CNY occurs, the net profit after tax of 2023 and
2022 would have increased by NT$244 thousand and decreased by NT$738 thousand,
respectively.
(3) Exchange gains or losses of monetary items
Exchange gains or losses of monetary items of the Group (including those realized
and unrealized) in 2023 and 2022 were losses of NT$11,937 and NT$20,886 thousand,
respectively.
4. Interest rate analysis

The exposure of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are described in
the liquidity risk management of the note.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the risk exposure to the interest rates risk
of derivative and non-derivative instruments on the reporting date. Regarding liabilities with
variable interest rates, the analysis is based on the assumption that the amount of liabilities
outstanding on the reporting date was outstanding throughout the year. The rate of change
is expressed as the interest rate increases or decreases by 1% when reporting to the key
management internally, which also represents the management's assessment of the

reasonable and possible scope of change in interest rates.
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The Group’s interest rate risk arises from time deposits and borrowings bearing floating

interest rates. If the interest rate increases or decreases by 1%, the Group’s net profit (loss)
before tax will decrease or increase by NT$6,080 thousand and NT$7,306 thousand for the

years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, with all other variables remain

constant.

5. Information on fair value

(1) Types and fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured on a

recurring basis. The carrying amount and fair value of financial assets and liabilities

(including the information on fair value hierarchy; however, fair value information on

financial instruments not measured at fair value whose carrying amount is reasonably

close to the fair value, and lease liabilities is not required to be disclosed) are set out as

follows:

2023.12.31
Fair value measurement
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial asset measured at fair
value through profit or loss
Financial assets mandatorily
measured at fair value through
profit or loss $ 149.673 149.673 - - 149,673
Financial assets measured at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
Domestic and foreign listed stocks 1,161,975 1,161,975 - - 1,161,975
Domestic non-listed stocks 2,941 - - 2.941 2.941
Subtotal 1,164916 1,161,975 - 2,941 1,164,916
Financial assets measured at
amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents 1,372,939 - - - -
Notes and accounts receivable 1,186,794 - - - -
Other receivables 74,317 - - - -
Refundable deposits 43,206 - - - -
Subtotal 2.677.256 - - - -
Total $ 3,991,845 1,311,648 - 2,941 1,314,589
2023.12.31
Fair value measurement
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Notes and accounts payable $ 569,444 - - - -
Other payables 421,135 - - - -
Lease liabilities 91,011 - - - -
Guarantee deposits 19,057 - - - -
Total $ 1,100,647 - - - -
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2022.12.31
Fair value measurement
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial asset measured at fair
value through profit or loss
Financial assets mandatorily
measured at fair value through
profit or loss $ 317,790 317.790 - - 317,790
Financial assets measured at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

Domestic and foreign listed stocks 957,467 957,467 - - 957,467
Domestic non-listed stocks 3,147 - - 3,147 3,147
Subtotal 960,614 957,467 - 3,147 960,614

Financial assets measured at
amortized cost

Cash and cash equivalents 665,867 - - - -
Notes and accounts receivable 1,160,475 - - - -
Other receivables 69,549 - - - -
Refundable deposits 62.061 - - - -
Subtotal 1,957.952 - - - -
Total $ 3,236,356 1,275,257 - 3,147 __ 1,278,404
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Notes and accounts payable $ 600,183 - - - -
Other payables 537,907 - - - -
Lease liabilities 84,800 - - - -
Guarantee deposits 19.164 - - - -
Total $ 1,242,054 - - - -

(2) Fair value valuation techniques for financial instruments measured at fair value
Non-derivative financial instruments

If a financial instrument has a quoted price in an active market, the quoted price is
used as fair value. The quotation, which is published by the main exchange or that which
was deemed to be a public bond by the Treasury Bureau of Central Bank, is included in
the fair value of the listed securities instruments and the debt instruments in active markets
with an open bid.

If quoted prices of financial instruments can be obtained in time and often from
exchanges, brokers, underwriters, industrial unions, pricing institutes, or authorities, and
such prices can reflect those actual trading and frequently happen in the market, the
financial instruments are considered to have quoted prices in an active market. The market
shall be deemed inactive when not fulfilling the abovementioned conditions. In general,
significant gaps in trading prices, significant increases in gaps in trading prices, or minor
trading volume are deemed as indicators of an inactive market.

Shares of companies listed on TWSE (TPEX) are financial assets and financial
liabilities traded in active markets that fulfill the standard terms and conditions; their fair

value shall be based on the market quotations.
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(3) Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
There was no significant transfer of financial assets from Level 1 to Level 2 in 2023
and 2022.

(4) Statement of changes in Level 3
Measured at

fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
Equity
instruments
with no open
quotation
January 1, 2023 $ 3,147
Total gains or losses
Deferred tax income (expense) recognized in other comprehensive (206)
income
December 31, 2023 S 2.941
January 1, 2022 $ 89,565
Total gains or losses
Deferred tax income (expense) recognized in other comprehensive (86,418)
income
December 31, 2022 S 3.147

The abovementioned total gains or losses are presented as “unrealized gains of losses

b

from investments in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income.’

Those related to assets held in 2023 and 2022 are as follows:
2023 2022

Total gains or losses
Recognized in other comprehensive income $ (206) (86.418)

(presented as “unrealized gains of losses from
investments in equity instruments at fair value

through other comprehensive income™)
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(5) Quantified information for significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) used in fair value
measurement

The Group’s financial instruments that are classified for fair value measurement by
using Level 3 inputs include financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — securities
investments and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income —
securities investments.

Most of the Group’s financial assets in Level 3 have only single significant
unobservable input, while investments in equity instruments without an active market
have multiple significant unobservable inputs. The significant unobservable inputs of
investments in equity instruments without an active market are individually independent,
and there is no correlation between them.

The quantitative information of significant unobservable inputs is set out as follows:
Interrelationship
between
significant
unobservable
inputs and fair
Valuation Significant value
Item technique unobservable inputs measurement

Financial assets Net asset value  -Net asset value Not applicable
measured at fair method

value through

other

comprehensive

income

(XXV]) Financial risk management
1. Overview
The Group is exposed to the following risks from its financial instruments:
(1) Credit risk
(2) Liquidity risk
(3) Market risk
The note presents the Group’s exposure information, objectives, policies and
procedures for measuring and managing the abovementioned risks. For further quantitative

disclosures, please refer to the respective notes in the consolidated financial statements.
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2. Risk management framework

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and supervision of the risk
management framework of the Group.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks
faced by the Group, set appropriate risk limits and controls, and monitor risks and
compliance with limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through training,
management standards, and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Group’s Board oversees how the management monitors compliance with risk
management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to risks faced by the Group. Internal auditors assist the Board of the
Group in supervising. Such personnel undertakes regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management control and procedures, and the results are reported to the Board.

3. Credit risk

Credit risk means the potential loss of the Group if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the
Group’s accounts receivables from customers and investments in securities.

(1) Accounts and other receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. However, the management also considers the basic
statistics of the Group’s customers, including the default risks of the industries and
countries of customers, as such factors may affect credit risks.

The Group has the allowance account set up to reflect the estimated losses of the
accounts and other receivables and investments. The allowance account mainly includes
specific losses related to individually significant exposure and the combined losses of
similar asset groups that have incurred but not been identified. The allowance account for
combined losses is determined in accordance with the historical payment statistics of
similar financial assets.

(2) Investment

The credit risk exposure of bank deposits and other financial instruments is measured
and monitored by the Group’s Finance Department. As the Group deals with banks and
counterparties with good credit standing and financial institutions, corporate
organizations and government agencies, which are graded above the investment level,

there is no significant performance suspicion; therefore, there is no significant credit risk.
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(3) Guarantee

The Group’s endorsement/guarantee policy is limited to subsidiaries or associates
with business dealings. Please refer to Note 13 for details of endorsements and guarantees
provided by the Group to subsidiaries as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.

2. Liquidity risks

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group has difficulty fulfilling the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
always has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s
reputation.

In general, the Group ensures that it possesses sufficient cash to meet expected
operating expenditure requirements, including the performance of financial obligations, but
excluding potential effects that cannot be reasonably estimated under extreme
circumstances (i.e., natural disasters).

3. Market risk

Market risk is the risk of changes in market prices, such as exchange rates, interest
rates, and equity instrument prices, that will affect the Group’s revenue or the value of
financial instruments we hold. The objective of market risk management is to control the
market risk exposure within the tolerable range and to optimize the investment return.

(1) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales and purchases that are denominated
in the respective functional currencies of the Group’s entities. The functional currency of
the Group’s entities is primarily the NTD, CNY and Philippine Peso (PHP). The
currencies used in these transactions are NTD, CNY, and PHP.

The interest is denominated in the same currency as borrowings. Generally,
borrowings are denominated in currencies that match the cash flows generated by the
underlying operations of the Group, primarily NTD, CNY, and PHP.

(2) Interest rate risk
The Group manages the interest rates risk by maintaining an adequate portfolio of

fixed and variable interest rates.
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(XXVII) Capital management
The objectives of the Board’s policy are to maintain an optimal capital structure to keep
the faith of investors, creditors, and the market and support future operations. Capital consists
of share capital, capital reserve, retained earnings, other equity and non-controlling interests
of the Group. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of
dividends for ordinary shares.

The Group’s debt-to-equity ratio on the reporting date is as follows:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Total liabilities $ 3,868,126 3,355,496
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (1,372.939) (665.867)
Net liabilities h) 2,495,187 2,689.629
Total capital $ 6,726,663 6.508.692
Debt-to-equity ratio 37.09% 41.329

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had not changed its capital management method.
(XXVIII) Investing and financing activities of non-cash transactions
Investing and financing activities of non-cash transactions performed by the Group in
2023 and 2022.

The reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities is set out in the following table:
Non-cash change

Changes in
exchange
2023.1.1 Cash flow Addition Decrease rate 2023.12.31
Short-term borrowings $ 927,415 (461,988) - - 536 465,963
Long-term borrowings 596,716 (64,126) - - (1,097) 531,493
Lease liabilities 84,800 (37,355) - - 43,566 91,011
Short-term notes payable 105,000 (105,000) - - - -
Guarantee deposits 19.164 (107) - - - 19.057
Total liabilities from $ 1,733,095 (668,576) - - 43,005 1,107,524
financing activities
Non-cash change
Changes in
exchange
2022.1.1 Cash flow Addition Decrease rate 2022.12.31

Short-term borrowings $ 1,419,164 (492,514) - - 765 927,415
Long-term borrowings 705,773 (110,386) - - 1,329 596,716
Lease liabilities 93,177 (31,784) - - 23,407 84,800
Short-term notes payable 105,000 - - - - 105,000
Guarantee deposits 19.214 (50) - - - 19,164
Total liabilities from $ 2342328 (634,734) - - 25,501 1,733,095

financing activities
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VII. Related party transactions
(I) Parent company and ultimate controlling party
The Company is the ultimate controlling party of the Group.
(IT) Names and relationships with related parties
Related parties that have transactions with the Group during the periods covered in the

consolidated financial statements are as follows:
Name of the related parties Relationship with the Group

Triple S Holdings Corporation An investee accounted for by using the equity
method by Hocheng Group Holding Corp.
(associate)

Hecheng Jianlang (Shamghai) Kitchen and  An investee accounted for by using the equity

Bathroom Co., Ltd. method by Hocheng (China) Corporation
Yuhong Co., Ltd. Substantial related party (other related
parties)
Yuhong (SuZhou) Co., Ltd. Substantial related party (other related
parties)

Hoceng Cultural & Educational Foundation The chairman of the foundation is the same as
the Group (other related parties)
New Swift Enterprises Co., Ltd. The chairman of the foundation is the same as
the Group (other related parties)
Hochun Industry Co., Ltd. The chairman of the foundation is the same as
the Group (other related parties)
Fu Wang Investment Co., Ltd. The chairman of the foundation is the same as
the Group (other related parties)
All Directors and the key management of ~ The key management of the Group

the Group

(IIT) Significant transactions with related parties
1. Operating revenue

The amounts of significant sales by the Group to related parties are as follows:

2023 2022
Other related parties $ 445 65
Associates 38.395 30,460
$ 38.840 30,525

The selling price of the Group to other related parties is based on the transfer price.

The credit term is not significantly different from general transactions.
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2. Purchases

The amounts of purchases by the Group from related parties are as follows:
2023 2022

Other related parties h 136,072 150,927

The purchasing price of the Group to other related parties is paid at the transfer price.
There is no general transaction that is comparable in price and payment terms.
3. Amounts receivable from related parties

The breakdown of the Group’s amounts receivable from related parties is as follows:

Type of related
Accounting item parties 2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Notes receivable Other related parties $ - 7
Accounts receivable Associates 7,705 5,844
Accounts receivable Other related parties 38 -
Other receivables Associates - 5,046
Other receivables Other related parties 335 608

$ 8,078 11,505

4. Amounts payable to related parties

The breakdown of the Group’s amounts payable to related parties is as follows:

Type of related
Accounting item parties 2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Notes payable Other related parties $ 38,373 39,127
Accounts payable Other related parties 14,173 15,915
Other payables Other related parties - 68

h 52,546 55,110

5. Others

(1) As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group’s real estate of Yingge factory and
office amounted to NT$94,678 thousand and NT$95,184 thousand, respectively. The
real estate has not yet transferred the account in the name of the Group as it is a piece
of agricultural land. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the real estate
had temporarily registered under Patrick Chiu and Chiu Hong Yu with trust. The
Group signed a deed of real estate trust with the registrants, setting out their rights
obligations and having pledged their trust assets to the Group.

(2) In January 2023, the company purchased the outstanding equity of He-Hong Co., Ltd.
from key management personnel, and the amount of transaction was NT$ 620

thousand.
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(3) On August 9, 2022, the Board approved the resolution to acquire 30.7% of the
outstanding equity of subsidiary- Bao Long Interior Crafts Co., Ltd. from the key
management and other related parties of the Group on September 26, 2022, and the
transaction amount was NT$782 thousand and NT$3,612 thousand.

(4) In response to the public welfare and cultural education activities organized by Hoceng
Cultural & Educational Foundation, the Company made a donation of NT$5,000
thousand in 2022, which is accounted for under operating expenses - general and
administrative expenses.

(IV) Key management transaction

The compensation of the key management includes:

2023 2022
Short-term employee benefits $ 63,953 73,265
Post-employment benefits 2,718 3,518
$ 66,671 76.783

The Group provided 10 and 11 company cars with a cost of NT$16,107 thousand and
NT$19,942 thousand, respectively, for the key management’s use in 2023 and 2022.

VIII. Pledged assets
The breakdown of the carrying amount of assets provided by the Group for pledge and security

is as follows:

Asset Target 2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Property, plant and Long-term and short-term $ 332,485 1,881,237
equipment - Land and borrowings
houses
Property, plant and Long-term and short-term 31,494 -

equipment - Machinery  borrowings

and equipment

Investment property - Long-term and short-term 402,730 414,012
Land and houses borrowings

Right-of-use asset - Land Short-term borrowings - 26,102
Refundable deposits House lease and deposits for 43.206 62,061

construction and sales
S 809.915 2,383,412
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IX. Significant contingencies and unrecognized contractual commitments
(I) Promissory notes issued by the Group for engineering and product warranty and subject

guarantee:
2023.12.31

47,742

2022.12.31
33,133

Promissory notes for engineering and product warranty $

and subject guarantee

(IT) In order to meet the economic development and construction needs of Luzhi Town, Wuzhong
District, Suzhou City, the Group's , Hocheng (China) Co., Ltd., signed an agreement for the
right-of-use of relocated and purchased houses and land with Suzhou Runsong Development
and Construction Co., Ltd. on April 14, 2023. The compensation to the Group is appropriated
in installments according to the progress of the contract, and the total amount of compensation
is RMB 404,260 thousand. As of December 31, 2023, the relocation has not yet been
completed. According to the contract, the Company received a compensation amounting to

RMB 282,982 thousand in advance (recognized in other current liabilities).
X. Losses due to major disasters: None.
XI. Significant events after the period: None.

XII. Others

(D) A summary of employee benefits, depreciation, and amortization, by function is as follows:

By function 2023 2022
Operating | Operating Total Operating |Operating Total
By nature costs expenses costs expenses
[Employee benefits expense
Salary expenses 470,247 492,641 962,888 498,743 490,370 989,113
Labor and health insurance 46,397 45,972 92,369 46,872 46,009 92,881
Pension 11,014 14,918 25,932 16,492 28,337 44,829
Other employee benefits 38,859 32,471 71,330 21,015 19,425 40,440
expense
IDepreciation expenses (Note) 94,843 112,781 207,624 91,049 117,725 208,774
JAmortization expense 2,241 8,049 10,290 1,596 7,905 9,501

(Note): The depreciation expenses, excluding the depreciation of investment properties, in 2023 and 2022
amounted to NT$19,493 thousand and NT$12,602 thousand, respectively.
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XIII. Other disclosures
(I) Information on significant transactions
Information on significant transactions required to be disclosed by the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers for the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2023 is as follows:

1. Loans to others:
Unit: NT$ thousand

3 E g = ;‘.'2; EA " Z | Assets pledged | g _ =3
38z | Sz | .F | £ |gEF| gz |efs| £ |2EfTel| TEF |3&f ifgf| ZE
SEs gs FE 32 |83z | g2 |23 g 2clcaze| 878 |22=2| =z 2 gEZ2z2| 27T

Nl BEE | g% | B2 | E |EsE| ZF |EEE : |2Z2E5=z2| £5Z |Ef=| § | E [2Efzz| &%
SRS RS E | 3| g5 "% |FET| 5 |TEf#Te|®2F |BRg| 5 | 5 F3EFE| I
< ) & ¢ il 2 =< ~a
0 |Hocheng [Hocheng  [Amounts Yes 64,850 61,410 - 2 Working 1,333,894 2,667,788
(Corporation |(China) receivable capital
(Corporation [from
related
parties
1 |Ritiboon [Hocheng 4 Yes 128,360 - - - 2 - Working - - 130,541 261,083
International |(China) lcapital
ILimited (Corporation
2 |[Hocheng [Hocheng 4 Yes 22,296 - - - 2 - Working - - 70,857 141,713
Group (China) lcapital
[Holding (Corporation
ICorp.
3 |HOCHENG ([Triples 7 Yes 5,621 - - - 2 - Working - - 14,923 29,845
IPHILS. [Holdings capital
IPROPERTY |Corp.
IHOLDING,
INC.

Note 1: 1. A business associate.
2. A company that needs short-term financing.
Note 2: The limit of loans to a single enterprise shall not exceed 20% of the net worth of the lender.
Note 3: The total limit of loans shall not exceed 40% of the net worth of the lender.
Note 4: The intragroup transactions were written off in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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Guarantees and endorsements for others:

Unit: NT$ thousand

Party bein, =] e © ]
y being S s ] g z ® El= - ® S & s = 2
endorsed/guaranteed S a2 & - 2 <3 = s 6 & 5] = SS = 22 |22
= ze S22 | 58 £ 2 ESoS =2 az |[E2a|55a|c8
No. 2 [ » 8 ° = ® Z 2 6 & @ S S = 2 8 eSS | 2=
=5 o @ o X o & - == = - 0 o -1& S 25 |5 8% = v
s o 2|35 |28¢g = |oFgp| 225232 _8:2 282 |E2f|fs7
173 o ;;1"\-.55?‘ e = &z I c'cEE « S e 52 AEE ‘<p_5 v-:c'a %Ec
g S ~2|Z585| 228 |28F E =32E5|, 83288 | Z28¢ |23 |82 8|88 ¢2
= = Ze (= = =, =1 o LS S| EZE S =B <8 |~® 35 |22
(] ® @ o oS o o - ~ 0 ~ ® - 15 < B o
g ] 28 |mgwe| 258 |28 E S8@3| E2E€28| ueE 258w |[SEw | 5w S
g 2 E|“fSs|g85 |fE8c | 2 |Eafc| EZEc:|®EE |EET|EE%|E%:
g H Zz . E E B e m I 5= > =3 =] = F |28 8 |8 %58 g-g—a
g ] s 5§ g% |22 g 25 g2 E£| B¢ |E5E|EFE|EE
= £ £z i | &8 g z 2z% 2| z>|Egz|=3% |83
= =
34 g 5 2 ® g3z & ° |47e| 28| ¢
0 [Hocheng [Hoceng 3 6,669,472| 236,646 219,443 - - 3.29% | 6,669,472 Y
(Corporati|Philippines
on (Corporation
0 4 Hocheng 3 6,669,472| 184,500 - - - - % | 6,609,472 Y Y
(China)
(Corporation
1 [Hoceng [Hocheng 3 117,144 5,840 5,840 4,017 - 0.09% 117,144 Y
Service [Corporation
Co., Ltd.

Note 1: The relationship between the endorser/guarantor and the counterparties is as follows:

1. A Company with business relationships.

2. A company in which the Company, directly and indirectly, holds over 50% of shares with voting rights.

3. A company, directly and indirectly, holds over 50% of shares with voting rights in the Company.

4. A company in which the Company, directly and indirectly, holds over 90% of shares with voting rights.

5. Companies within the industry provide mutual guarantees according to contracts due to the requirement of engineering contracting.
Note 2: The endorsement and guarantee limit made by the Company and Hoceng Service Co., Ltd. shall not exceed 100% of the net value of their financial

statements.
Note 3: The cap of endorsements and guarantees is the net worth of the financial statements.
Note 4: For non-public companies, the ratio is calculated based on the net worth of the parent company.
Note 5: The intragroup transactions were written off in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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3. Securities held at the end of the period (excluding investments in the equity of subsidiaries,

associates, and joint ventures):

Unit: NT$ thousand/share

At the end of the period Highest
shareholding
or capital
Relationship contribution
Names of |Category and name of with the Accounting Carrying  |Shareholding| Fair value during the
companies held securities securities issuer item Shares amount percentage (Note 2) period IRemarks|
The Company |Cathay Financial - Financial assets 651,834 29,821 - % 29,821 - %
Holdings Limited lat fair value
through other
comprehensive
lincome -- Non-
current
(China Development - " 452,067 5,674 - % 5,674 - %
Financial Holdings
ILimited
Taishin Financial - " 557,860 10,097 - % 10,097 - %
Holding Co., Ltd.
|United Microelectronics - " 800,000 42,080 0.01% 42,080 0.01%
(Corporation
Taiwan PCB Techvest - ” 6,575,315 284,711 2.42% 284,711 2.42%
Co., Ltd.
Capital Securities - ” 8,551,000 139,809 0.39% 139,809 0.39%
(Corporation
Pegatron Corporation - ” 75,000 6,548 - % 6,548 - %
Taishin Financial - ” 16,280 832 - % 832 - %
Holding Co., Ltd.
Preferred Stock E
Cathay Financial - ” 14,808 883 - % 883 - %
Holding Co., Ltd.
Preferred Stock A
Mega Financial Holding - ” 1,343,160 52,652 0.01% 52,652 0.01%
ICompany Ltd.
(Cathay Financial - ” 12,284 733 - % 733 - %
Holding Co., Ltd. Stock
B
Taishin Financial - ” 9,753 445 - % 445 - %
Holding Co., Ltd.
Preferred Stock E 11
ICTBC Financial - ” 2,498,000 70,818 0.01% 70,818 0.01%
Holding Co., Ltd.
Core Pacific City Co., - ” 49,205 429 0.49% 429 0.49%
Ltd.
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At the end of the period Highest
shareholding
or capital
Relationship Fair value | contribution
Names of |Category and name of with the Accounting Carrying |Shareholding|measurement| during the
companies held securities securities issuer item Shares amount percentage (Note 2) period IRemarks|
The Company [Union Securities - Financial assets 98,869 1,396 0.32% 1,396 0.32%
Investment Trust Co., lat fair value
ILtd. through other
comprehensive
lincome -- Non-
current
IPower Chip Technology - " 27,816 353 - % 353 - %
(Corporation
IPower Chip - ” 50,336 1,482 - % 1,482 - %
Semiconductor
Manufacturing Corp.
Taishin 1699 Money - [Financial assets 1,890,737 26,362 - % 26,362 - %
Market Fund lat fair value
through profit or
loss -- Current
[Yuanta Wan Tai Money - " 981,110 15,259 - % 15,259 - %
Market Fund
Sinopac TWD Money - ” 1,612,066 23,054 - % 23,054 - %
Market Fund
(Capital Money Market - ” 1,821,545 30,214 - % 30,214 - %
Fund
I[Hua Nan Phoenix - ” 1,088,967 18,213 - % 18,213 - %
Money Market Fund
Hua Nan Kirin Money - ” 338,550 4,164 - % 4,164 - %
Market Fund
Hohong Co., GREAT WALL - Financial assets 10,000 585 - % 585 - %
ILtd. IENTERPRISE CO., lat fair value
LTD. through other
comprehensive
lincome -- Non-
current
IFormosa Plastics - ” 30,000 2,376 - % 2,376 - %
(Corporation
Zeng Hsing Industrial - ” 10,743 1,144 0.02% 1,144 0.02%
Co., Ltd.
Standard Chemical & - ” 20,000 1,318 0.01% 1,318 0.01%
Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.
Hocheng Corporation | Is its subsidiary ” 445,484 8,086 0.15% 8,086 0.15%| Notel
ILongchen Paper & ” 268,152 3,969 0.02% 3,969 0.02%
Packaging Co., Ltd.
Sheh Kai Precision Co., - ” 75,000 4,125 0.15% 4,125 0.15%
Ltd.
Iron Force Industrial - ” 38,000 3,477 0.05% 3,477 0.05%
Co., Ltd.
Turvo International - ” 70,000 9,730 0.12% 9,730 0.12%
Co.,Ltd.
ICompeq Manufacturing - ” 40,000 2,828 - % 2,828 - %
Co., Ltd.
Hong Hai Precision - ” 58,480 6,111 - % 6,111 - %
Industrial Co., Ltd.
[Yageo Corporation - ” 3,979 2,374 - % 2,374 - %
Taiwan Semiconductor - ” 31,365 18,598 - % 18,598 - %
Manufacturing
ICompany Limited
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At the end of the period Highest
shareholding
or capital
Relationship Fair value | contribution
Names of |Category and name of with the Accounting Carrying |Shareholding|measurement| during the
companies held securities securities issuer item Shares amount percentage (Note 2) period IRemarks|
[Foxconn Technology - ” 10,000 531 - % 531 - %
Co., Ltd.
[Elite Material Co., Ltd. - " 20,000 7,640 0.01% 7,640 0.01%
(Walsin Technology - " 10,000 1,230 - % 1,230 - %
(Corporation
[Evergreen International - " 160,000 5,072 0.01% 5,072 0.01%
Storage and Transport
(Corporation
|Aerospace Industrial - ” 100,000 5,360 0.01% 5,360 0.01%
IDevelopment Corp.
Cathay Financial - " 151,426 6,928 - % 6,928 - %
Holdings Limited
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At the end of the period Highest
shareholding
or capital
Relationship contribution
Names of |Category and name of with the Accounting Carrying  |Shareholding| Fair value during the
companies held securities securities issuer item Shares amount percentage (Note 2) period IRemarks|
Hohong Co., (China Development - Financial assets 132,288 1,660 - % 1,660 - %
Ltd. Financial Holdings lat fair value
Limited through other
comprehensive
lincome -- Non-
current
Taishin Financial - " 369,477 6,687 - % 6,687 - %
Holding Co., Ltd.
INational Aerospace - ” 22,000 2,041 0.04% 2,041 0.04%
Fasteners Corporation
Getac Technology - " 80,000 8,880 0.06% 8,880 0.06%
(Corporation
'TXC Corporation - ” 20,000 1,972 0.01% 1,972 0.01%
Tripod Technology - ” 80,000 15,600 0.02% 15,600 0.02%
(Corporation
|Ardentec Corporation - " 130,205 9,635 0.03% 9,635 0.03%
[Xintec Inc. - ” 20,000 2,550 0.01% 2,550 0.01%
Shin Zu Shing Co., Ltd. - ” 10,000 1,235 0.01% 1,235 0.01%
Topco Technologies - ” 8,538 602 0.01% 602 0.01%
Corp.
[Foxsemicon Integrated - ” 15,000 3,158 0.02% 3,158 0.02%
Technology Inc.
|Avalue Technology Inc. - ” 52,000 6,214 0.07% 6,214 0.07%
'Well Shin Technology - ” 26,000 1,344 0.02% 1,344 0.02%
Co., Ltd.
[FORMOSA SUMCO - ” 35,000 5,898 0.01% 5,898 0.01%
TECHNOLOGY
ICORPORATION
Shih Her Technologies - ” 120,000 10,152 0.21% 10,152 0.21%
Inc.
Materials Analysis - " 14,725 3,424 0.02% 3,424 0.02%
Technology Inc.
|Arcadyan Technology - ” 45,000 7,673 0.02% 7,673 0.02%
(Corporation
TSC Auto ID - ” 16,496 3,984 0.04% 3,984 0.04%
Technology Co., Ltd.
Bizlink Holding Inc. - ” 10,354 2,765 0.01% 2,765 0.01%
IASE Technology - ” 80,000 10,800 - % 10,800 - %
Holding Co., Ltd.
IWELLELL INC. - ” 15,000 434 0.01% 434 0.01%
Global Tek Fabrication - ” 35,000 1,876 0.04% 1,876 0.04%
Co., Ltd.
'Wistron Information - ” 74,619 9,850 0.10% 9,850 0.10%
Technology & Services
(Corporation
Zhen Ding Technology - ” 120,000 13,080 0.01% 13,080 0.01%
Holding Limited
KMC (Kuei Meng) - ” 15,100 1,986 0.01% 1,986 0.01%
International Inc.
Sino American Silicon - ” 50,000 9,800 0.01% 9,800 0.01%
Products Inc.
Chailease Holding - ” 38,894 7,507 - % 7,507 - %
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At the end of the period Highest
shareholding
or capital
Relationship contribution
Names of |Category and name of with the Accounting Carrying  |Shareholding| Fair value during the
companies held securities securities issuer item Shares amount percentage (Note 2) period IRemarks|
ICompany Limited
(Chipbond Technology - ” 30,000 2,169 - % 2,169 - %
(Corporation
Powertech Technology - " 65,000 9,165 0.01% 9,165 0.01%
Inc.
ILanner Electronics Inc. - ” 80,700 9,079 0.06% 9,079 0.06%
IGEM Services, Inc. - ” 54,450 3,724 0.04% 3,724 0.04%
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At the end of the period Highest
shareholding
or capital
Relationship Shareholdi contribution
Names of |Category and name of with the Accounting Carrying ng Fair value during the
companies held securities securities issuer item Shares amount | percentage | (Note 2) period IRemarks|
Hohong Co., Crystalvue Medical - Financial assets 6,300 546 0.02% 546 0.02%
Ltd. (Corporation lat fair value
through other
comprehensive
lincome -- Non-
current
IAMPAK Technology, - " 5,000 600 0.01% 600 0.01%
Inc.
Takizawa Taiwan - " 30,000 942 0.04% 942 0.04%
Technology Co., Ltd.
[Nova Technology Corp. - ” 26,000 3,653 0.04% 3,653 0.04%
KEYSTONE - ” 10,000 3,120 0.04% 3,120 0.04%
IMICROTECH CO.
|Acer Cyber Security - " 10,000 1,925 0.05% 1,925 0.05%
Inc.
Sensortek Technology - ” 10,000 4,335 0.02% 4,335 0.02%
Corp.
[Unictron Technologies - " 10,000 880 0.02% 880 0.02%
(Corporation
IAcer E-Enabling - ” 7,000 2,065 0.02% 2,065 0.02%
Service Business Inc.
|Allied Circuit Co., Ltd. - ” 30,000 4,650 0.06% 4,650 0.06%
(Chenbro Micom Co., - ” 10,000 2,715 0.01% 2,715 0.01%
ILtd.
Taiwan PCB Techvest - ” 2,067,000 89,501 0.76% 89,501 0.76%
Co., Ltd.
Sunny Friend - ” 22,488 2,586 0.02% 2,586 0.02%
[Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd.
Cleanaway Company - ” 10,000 1,800 0.01% 1,800 0.01%
Limited
IPou Chen Corporation - ” 140,000 4,326 - % 4,326 - %
IMacauto Industrial Co., - ” 40,000 3,028 0.05% 3,028 0.05%
Ltd.
IPower Chip Technology - ” 66,404 763 - % 763 - %
(Corporation
Power Chip - ” 50,000 1,473 - % 1,473 - %
Semiconductor
Manufacturing Corp.
ID NET International - [Financial assets 10,025 - - % - - %
(Corporation lat fair value
through profit or
loss -- Current
Syntronix Corporation - ” 1,150 - - % - - %
JAbGenomics - ” 20,000 - - % - - %
International,Inc.
UPAMC James Bond - ” 277,849 4,764 - % 4,764 - %
Money Market Fund
Franklin Templeton - ” 197,891 2,103 - % 2,103 - %

Sinoam Money Market
Fund
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

At the end of the period Highest
shareholding
or capital
Relationship Shareholdi contribution
Names of |Category and name of with the Accounting Carrying ng Fair value during the
companies held securities securities issuer item Shares amount | percentage | (Note 2) period IRemarks|
'Yunata De-Li Money - ” 122,436 2,053 - % 2,053 - %
Market Fund
Capital Money Market - " 308,585 5,118 - % 5,118 - %
Fund
Hua Nan Phoenix - " 241,557 4,040 - % 4,040 - %
Money Market Fund
Taishin 1699 Money - " 325,532 4,539 - % 4,539 - %
Market Fund
IRitiboon UPMorgan Funds— - ” 5,616 9,677 - % 9,677 - %
International  |China Fund—JPM
ILimited
PYXIS - ” 65,000,000 - - % - - %
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

At the end of the period Highest
shareholding
or capital
Relationship contribution
Names of |Category and name of with the Accounting Carrying  |Shareholding| Fair value during the
companies held securities securities issuer item Shares amount percentage (Note 2) period IRemarks|
Ritiboon |Asia Technology - Financial assets 1,400 - - % - - %
International lat fair value
ILimited through profit or
loss -- Current
Bao Long TCI Co., Ltd. - " 50 9 - % 9 - %
Interior Crafts
Co., Ltd.
Hong Hai Precision - " 1,000 104 - % 104 - %
Industrial Co., Ltd.
Swatton IPFBC - IFinancial assets 50,000 112,150 - % 112,150 - %
International lat fair value
Corp. through other
comprehensive
lincome -- Non-
current
INEXTEER - ” 50,000 969 - % 969 - %
IAUTOMOTIVE
IGROUP LTD
HKT TRUST AND - " 100,000 3,665 - % 3,665 - %
HKT LTD
ICK HUTCHISON - ” 20,000 3,291 - % 3,291 - %
HOLDINGS LTD
FOXCONN - ” 95,000 442 - % 442 - %
INTERCONNECT
TECHNOLOGY LTD.
MINTH GROUP LTD - ” 60,000 3,723 - % 3,723 - %
IAMAZON - ” 1,000 4,665 - % 4,665 - %

Note 1: The Company’s shares possessed by subsidiaries have been deducted from the carrying amount. The shares are treated as treasury shares.

Note 2: The securities quoted in an active market are presented at the closing price on the last day of the accounting period. The securities without public
quotes used the net value per share of the investee.

Note 3: The intragroup transactions were written off in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

4. Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding NT$300
million or 20% of the paid-in capital: None.

5. Acquisition of a property with an amount exceeding NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in
capital: None.

6. Disposal of a property with an amount exceeding NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in

capital: None.
7. Purchases or sales with a related party with an amount exceeding NT$100 million or 20%
of the paid-in capital:
Unit: NTS$ thousand

Differences between
transaction conditions and
general transactions and Notes and accounts
Transaction status the reason therefor receivable (payable)
Ratio to total
Ratio to notes and
total accounts
Company of Purchases purchases| Credit receivable
purchase (sales) | Counterparty [Relationship (sales) Amount (sales) period  [Unit price| Credit period Balance (payable) |Remarks
Hocheng  [Bao Long Subsidiary | Purchases 215,280 12.62% [Three - INo general (63,220)| (25.88)%
(Corporation Interior imonths transaction is
(Crafts Co., icomparable
ILtd.

Note: The intragroup transactions were written off in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

8. Amount receivable from related parties exceeding NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in

capital: None.
9. Derivative transaction: None.
10. Business relationships and significant intragroup transactions:

Status of transaction
Relationship Ratio to the
with the consolidated total
No. Company Counter-party | counterparty Account Amount Term operating revenue
0 [Hocheng Corporation [Hoceng Service Co., 1 Sales income 64,588 At the transfer price 1.33%
ILtd.
0 7 [Bao Long Interior 1 Sales income 38,735 At the transfer price 0.80%
(Crafts Co., Ltd.

Note 1: The numbering is as follows:
1. 0 represents the parent company.
2. Subsidiaries are numbered starting from 1.
Note 2: Relationship with counterparties is classified into three types as follows:
1. Parent company to subsidiary.
2. Subsidiary to parent company.

3. Subsidiary to subsidiary.
Note 3: Transaction amounts that are less than 1% of the total assets or total operating revenue were not disclosed.

Note 4: The intragroup transactions were written off in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

(IT) Information on investees:

Information on the investees of the Group in 2023 is as follows:

Unit: NT$ thousand

Original / investment Highest
amount Held at the end of the period shareholding Investment
or capital (Losses) |(losses) gains,
Ending contribution gains of recognized
Name of the (Name of the Main business | balance of | At the end Carrying during the | investee of | during the
investors investees | Location line the period | of last year Shares Percentage| amount period the period period  |Remarks
Hocheng IHostan Taiwan  (Oil excretes - 1,605,702 - - % - - % (184) (1,685) [Note 2,
Corporation  |Corporation lgas stoves and INote 6
ater heaters
Ritiboon British V [Holding 2,410,366 2,410,366 78,646,373| 100.00% 650,374 100.00% (160,280) (158,364) [Note2
International
ILimited
IHohong Co., [Taiwan [Invested in 198,620 198,000 34,713,522| 99.60% 687,319 99.60% 16,127 15,971 [Notel
ILtd. [production and
trading business
IHoceng Taiwan [Interior design, 6,000 6,000 1,050,000( 70.00% 62,008 70.00% 5,735 2,833 [Note2
Service Co., trading,
ILtd. installment, and
[repair of
[bathroom and
stove
lequipment and
its components
IBao Long  [Taiwan [Manufacturing, 804,761 654,761 21,001,000| 100.00% 219,275 100.00% 2,105 (499)
Interior [processing, and
(Crafts Co., trading of
ILtd. [porcelain,
lceramic boards,
land tiles
ILazuli Taiwan [Furniture, 1,000 1,000 100,000 100.00% - 100.00% - - Note 3
International [bedding,
ICo., Ltd. [kitchen utensils,
fixtures and
iwholesale trade
O+ Design  |Cayman [Investment 31,848 31,848 - - % - - % - - Note 5
International [Islands
(Corporation
Ritiboon [Hocheng Philippine[Land lease 29,040 29,040| 13,974,571| 40.00% 57,787 40.00% 3,744 2,808
International |Philippines s
Limited IProperty
IHolding, Inc.
[Hocheng Cayman [Holding 1,392,323 1,392,323| 49,389,182 100.00% 433,496 100.00% (165,429) (165,429)
IGroup Islands
[Holding
(Corp.
IHCG North [The U.S. [Sale of 14,230 14,230 - 49.00% - 49.00% - -
American, [bathroom
ILLC lequipment
Hohong Co., [Swatton British V [Holding 41,590 41,590 13,004 | 100.00% 199,236 100.00% 6,032 6,032
ILtd. International
(Corp.
Hocheng [Hoceng Philippine [Production and 395,155 395,155 507,843,879 100.00% 571,522 100.00% 9,440 9,440
Group [Philippines |s sale of
Holding Corp. |[Corporation Iplumbing
[products
[Triple S Philippine [Holding 46,086 46,086 8,040,000 40.00% 512,357 40.00% 777 684 [Note 4
[Holdings s
(Corp.
Hoceng IPT HCG Indonesia [Sale of 12,400 12,400 420,000 35.00% - 35.00% - -
Philippines  |Indonesia [bathroom
Corporation lequipment
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

Note 1:

Note 2:
Note 3:

Note 4:
Note 5:
Note 6:
Note 7:

The Company's shares held by subsidiaries are deemed as treasury shares; therefore, gains or losses from investments in subsidiaries recognized by
the Company exclude the gains or losses of subsidiaries generated from holding the shares of the Company.

The difference between recognized gains or losses from investment and investee is unrealized gains or losses or difference of equity net worth.
Lazuli International Co., Ltd. is still in the process of dissolution; the Company has written down the balance of long-term investments in its equity
to nil.

The Company is entitled to 88% of the rights to allocation regarding the earnings of the company.

The Company was liquidated in February 2023.

The Company has completed a short-form merger with the subsidiary Hostan Corporation, please refer to Note 4(3).

The intragroup transactions were written off in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

(IIT) Information on investment in Mainland China:

1. Information on investment in businesses in Mainland China:

Unit: NT$ thousand

= = = Investment ® I =3 5
E E ;E% flows _]B% E'z %: E(é; 5 ga’q%
2 2 28 Eg 8 = Z 5EQw =0 S 2 20 ER-R]
z = g sE¢& ZEE 22 2e = E= 352 s E5E
g £ T g 5535 £33 2g | F5& =2 oS8 g3 | 223
=3 2 = = SE2E e SE &3 2T e = £E8%8 2= 23E
= : - e~ = R = - S5 % 22z 2os s%5 w358
= £ 5 5 |<ESed = 2 €oc?d €= 5<= = 2.8 wESS | Exn |€SET
B e, - <y 2®5a e & - 5o g &g -y =2 |2g3=
= H 8 = =T=E5 X S SexE 273 2 el 5= s =3 258 (&8 &g
5 2 =2 2 2@ E = 3 e 582 a2 o5 gz S A% ° 2 =
g = g by EZ2 | & | & =2 gz | g% ) 208 28 | 282
o g ¢ | E:is | iz | 5% R 528 | 2= | =78
E g eI g 535 = = = 25 2 > | 8%
g = SE" Eh " 22~ g g "
Hocheng Production| 953,760| (II) 894,627| - - 894,627| (172,633)| 100.00% 100.00%|  (172,633)| (333,488) -
(China) land sale of]
(Corporation [plumbing
products
[UPEX Sale of 29,805 (II) 5961 - - 5,961 (2,885)|  100.00% 100.00% (2,885) 15,272 -
[bathroom
lequipment
Hocheng
((China
(Corporation
Hocheng Sale of 4,581 (1) - - - - (22,213)|  100.00% 100.00% (22,213)|  (96,029) -
Shanghai [bathroom
(Corporation lequipment
Hecheng Sale of 4,300( (II) - - - - (2,434) 50.00% 50.00% (1,217) 776 -
Jianlang [bathroom
(Shamghai) lequipment
Kitchen and
IBathroom Co.,
ILtd.

2. Limit on investment in Mainland China:

Company name

Investment amounts
authorized by Investment

Accumulated investment amount
of remittance from Taiwan to

Ceiling on investments in China
imposed by the Investment

China at the end of the period Commission, MOEA Commission of MOEA (Note 3)
The Company 900,588 928,336 4,001,683
Note 1: There are three types of investment methods; please mark the type:

Note 2:
Note 3:
Note 4:
Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:
Note 8:

(I) Direct investment in Mainland China.

(I) Investing in Mainland China through companies in a third-party region (the investing company in the third-party region is Ritiboon
International Limited).

(IIT) Others methods.

Based on the financial statements of investees audited by CPAs.

The limit is 60% of the net worth.

Relevant figures in the table are presented in NTD.

The difference between the paid-in capital and the amount remitted from Taiwan is due to the capital increase from earnings in the amount of

US$2,000 thousand performed by Hocheng (China) Corporation in 2009.

The difference between the paid-in capital and the amount remitted from Taiwan is due to the direct investment and indirect investment of Ritiboon

International Limited in Hocheng Group Holding Corp. and UPEX, respectively, in the amount of US$800 thousand.

The difference between recognized gains or losses from investment and investee is unrealized gains or losses.

The intragroup transactions were written off in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

3. Significant transactions:

For details of the significant transactions between the Group and investees in China in

2023, please refer to “Information on significant transactions.”
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

(IV) Major shareholders:
Unit: Share

Shares Number of
shares held Ownership
Name of major shareholder (Note)
Dorkay Investment Company Ltd. 15,774,048 5.21%

The information on major shareholders in the table is based on the data by Taiwan
Depository and Clearing Corporation on the last business day in December 2023. The total
number of ordinary shares and preference shares (including treasury shares) held by
shareholders with ownership of 5% or greater that have completed the non-physical
registration and delivery or above. The share capital in the financial statements of the Company
may differ from the actual number of shares delivered with non-physical registration

completed due to different preparation or calculation basis.
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

XIV. Segment information
(D) General information

The Group has four reportable departments: the Taiwan business department, the
investment department, the China business department, and the Philippine business
department. The Taiwan business department is engaged in the manufacture and sale of
domestic equipment such as bathtubs, toilets, kitchen equipment, and copper pipe equipment.
The investment department is engaged in investment in production, securities, construction,
tourism and trading. The China business department is engaged in the production of sanitary
ware, metal, plastic accessories, and other building and decorative ceramics in China. The
Philippine business department is engaged in producing and selling products such as plumbing
products in the Philippines.

The Group’s reportable segments consist of strategic business units which provide
essentially different products and services. Strategic business units are managed separately as
they require different technological and marketing strategies. Most of the business units were
acquired, and the original management teams are still operating.

Other operating segments of the Group are primarily engaged in the business of land
leasing and trading overseas. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the above
departments did not meet the quantitative thresholds.

(IT) Information on the profit or loss, assets, liabilities, and of reportable segments and their
measurement and reconciliations.

The reportable amount is the same as that used by the chief operating decision-maker of
the Group. Operating segments’ accounting policies are equivalent to those described in note
2 “summary of significant accounting policies.” Operating segments’ profit or loss is based on
operating profit or loss before tax and used as the basis of performance evaluation.

The Group uses the internal management report that the chief operating decision maker
reviews as the basis to determine resource allocation and make a performance evaluation.

The operating segments’ accounting policies are equivalent to those described in note 4
“description of the summary of significant accounting policies,” except for the recognition and
measurement of pension cost, which is on a cash basis.

The Group treated intersegment sales and transfers as third-party transactions. They are

measured at market price.
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

Information on the Group’s operating segments and the reconciliations are as follows:

Taiwan Philippine China
business Investment business business Other Adjustment
2023 department department department department  departments _and write-off Total
Revenue:
External customer $ 3,731,432 - 860,519 272,959 5,877 - 4,870,787
Inter-segment 566.331 - 10 29,150 17,589 (613.080) -
Total revenue $ 4,297,763 - 860,529 302,109 23,466 (613,080) _ 4,870,787
Interest expenses $ 22,685 - 14,581 17,156 - (2,529) 51,893
Depreciation and 183,330 813 50,914 38,138 691 (36,485) 237,401
amortization
Share of profit or loss of (140,025) 6,032 - (1,217) (324,876) 459,553 (533)

associates and joint

ventures accounted for

using the equity method

Profit or loss of $ 209,821 17,339 12,576 (172,898) 5,017 (5,672) 66,183

reportable departments

Taiwan Philippine China
business Investment business business Other Adjustment
2022 department department department department _ departments and write-off Total
Revenue:
External customer $ 3,834,568 - 842,924 309,941 17,011 - 5,004,444
Inter-segment 302,153 - - 54,703 13,805 (370.661) -
Total revenue $ 4,136,721 - 842,924 364,644 30,816 (370,661) __5,004,444
Interest expenses $ 21,788 1 6,597 25,839 - (3,377) 50,848
Depreciation and 194,648 932 47,563 36,013 736 (49,015) 230,877
amortization
Share of profit or loss of (87,121) 3,412 (49) (44,769) (104,994) 232,359 (1,162)

associates and joint

ventures accounted for

using the equity method

Profit or loss of $ 232,935 24,569 57,406 (147,556) (207,107) 289,983 250,230
reportable departments

(III) Geographic information
The geographic information of the Group is as follows; revenue is classified based on the
geographical location of customers, and non-current assets are classified based on the

geographical location of assets.

Region 2023 2022
Revenue from external customers
Taiwan $ 3,731,432 3,834,568
Mainland China 278,836 326911
Philippines 860,519 842,965
Total S 4,870,787 5.004.444
Region 112.12.31 111.12.31
Non-current assets:
Taiwan $ 3,545,906 3,630,958
Mainland China 354,815 408,882
Philippines 406,458 400,530
Total $ 4.307.179 4.440,370
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Hocheng Corporation and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment
property, intangible assets, and other assets, but exclude financial instruments, deferred
income tax assets, and other financial assets.

(IV) Major customers
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, none of the revenue from a single

customer exceeds 10% of the Group’s consolidated operating revenue.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of Hocheng Corporation:

Audit opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hocheng Corporation, which comprise
the balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the statements of comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of another auditor (please refer to paragraph Other
Matters), the accompanying parent company only financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Hocheng Corporation and its subsidiaries as of December
31,2022 and 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation
of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Parent-Only Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Certified
Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in the Republic of China (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. Based on our audits and the report
of another auditor, we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. Based on our audits and the reports of other auditors, we believe that the

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of the most significance
in our audit of the parent company only financial statements of the current period for the Company. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the parent company only financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these issues. We
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report:
I. Valuation of inventories

Refer to Note 4(7) and Note 5 for the accounting policy of inventory valuation, as well as the
estimation and assumption uncertainty of the valuation of inventory, respectively. Information on
the estimation of the valuation of inventory is disclosed in Note 6(6) of the parent company only
financial statements.

Description of key audit matters:

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value in the financial statements.
The Company’s products are mainly sold to consumers through distributors and big box stores. The
Company faces competition from its competitors with homogeneous products and low-price
strategies. The risk of inventory costing might exceed its net realizable value due to obsolete
products or inconsistency with consumers' preferences.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our audit procedures for the above key audit matters included understanding the accounting
policies of the Company for impairment loss provision, examining whether inventory write-down
or obsolescence allowance had been provided for inventories according to the Company’s existing
accounting policies (including implementing sampling procedures, verifying relevant forms and
certificates to verify and accuracy of its calculation), and evaluating the adequacy of the Company’s
disclosures related to inventory write-down or obsolescence allowance.

II. Investments accounted for using the equity method

Refer to Notes 4(8) and (9) for the accounting policy of investment accounted for using the
equity method. Information on investment accounted for using the equity method and the share of
gains from associates and joint ventures recognized by using the equity method is disclosed in Note
6(7) of the parent company only financial statements.

Description of key audit matters:

The amount of investments accounted for using the equity method of Hocheng Corporation
amounted to NT$1,618,976 thousand, accounting for 19% of the total assets of Hocheng
Corporation; therefore, investments accounted for using the equity method are included as a matter

that requires close attention.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit:

The audit process we perform for the above key audit matter includes providing audit
instructions to and communicating with the audit staff of other component entities, acquiring the
financial statements of the component entities, performing a check calculation for the correctness
of the recognized investment amount under the equity method and attributable period, and assessing
whether the management has properly disclosed the investment under the equity method.

Other Matters

For investment accounted for by using the equity method included in the Company’s financial
statements, we did not audit the financial statements of certain companies. Those financial statements
were audited by other auditors. Therefore, our opinion expressed for the abovementioned financial
statements, insofar as they relate to the financial statements of such companies, is based solely on the
reports of other CPAs. Investment accounted for by using the equity method of the abovementioned
investees accounted for 7% and 6% of total assets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively; the
share of gains or losses from subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures accounted for (284)% and (59)%
of net profit before tax for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent-Only
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only
financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports
by the Securities Issuers and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of parent company only financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) of the Company are responsible
for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent-Only Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether or not the parent company only
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error and
to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists in the parent company only financial statements. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent-

only financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China, we exercised professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
1. Identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error, designed and performed audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the parent company only financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the parent company only financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of investees
accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on the parent company only financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Company’s audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion of the Company.

The planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, where applicable, related

safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the 2023 parent company only financial statements of the
Group and are, therefore, key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

KPMG Taiwan

Accountants:

No. of approval and Jin-Guan-Zheng-Liu-Zi

certification from the ° N0~0940100754 '
competent authority of ~ Jin-Guan-Zheng-Shen-Zi No.

securities 1070304941
March 12, 2024

- 230 -



071 SurX-yon X :3ununoddy 2 dueulJ-pedy

00T TtCLLt8 00T FPSSS0S8 S
IL 6008V 8L CL¥6999
= T9rED - (8L%)
S 6£9°9L€ L YTrLT9
9¢  878'9¢0°C  S€  SOT'LIOE
- €TTSI - L8S91
9¢  008°TE0E 9 LEO'ETO'E
€ T0T6C6T  TC  C809E8T
T %0196S S €LY E6¢E
= TS8ST8I = TLSO6T
4 0€1eTl - 869°LT
- 68EYI S 81L°9¥€E
S 000°0t¥ - -
9T "860°€EET LT  609ChPT
T 700008 S T0000%F
I #08°601 I 90%°L0T
I €99°LS - 995%61
- €€0°01 - SErL
- €9L81 - 60€°S
v pEL'TOE € 81T
I 1€1°96 I 080°6L
€ €7€°L0T 4 Y0T'S91
- LE0'6E - €8T'8¢
- 019°L1 - 08ITl
I 000°S01 - -
¥ 000°0€€ S 000'0S€  $
% junowry % junowry
1€T1°T20T IETIET0T

puesnoy) $IN un

Aymba reyo],

}00)s AInsear],
Aynbo 10n0
sSuruIed paurejoy
snjdans [eyde)
30038 [ede)
:((00)9 0N) Aynby

SIDIIqEN] [B10],

syisodop oojuerens)

((S1)9 210N) JUSLINO-UON - SALI[IGEI] SED]
((61)9 210N) sonI[IqeI] XE) SWooul PALIJO
(($1)9 s10N) sSurmoiroq uLd}-Suo|

:SIDIIQEI] JUILINI-UON

((#1)9 SAION) 1824 dUO UIYIM dNP SAVI[IQRI] ULI)-SU0]
SONI[IRI] JUALINO IO
((ST)9 210N Ju2LIY) - SANITIGRI] 5L
((91)9 210N) U2LINY) - doUBMO][E 19T
(L 90u) sanued paje[ay - sojqeded 10yO
so[qeded 10410
(L 910u) saned paje[ay - 9jqeAed syunodoy
d1qeked s)unoody
(L 9ou) saned paje[ay - o[qeled sajoN
d1qeked sojoN
((£1)9 sa10N) 21qeAed s[[1q pue $210U ULI)-}I0YS
((Z1)9 s90N) SSUIMO0110q ULII-1IOYS

SapIIqel] Jud.LIny

&mba pue sapIqel [eURUL]

uYD YAYD-YIYS :13ILJO [BLIOTEUL]A]
(syudurdye)s [erdoueuy Ajuo Auedwod jud.aed 03 sdjou SuiLueduwrodde Iy} 03 13J3.1 ISLI[J)

00s¢
00t€
00€€
00c€
00T¢€

S¥9T
085T
0LST
(U144

0T€T
00€T
08¢CC
0sce
0cee
00CT
081¢
IL1T
091¢
0s1¢
orle
001¢

0L

o

0¢

.—“

Sl

o

%

770T PUE €707 ‘1€ 1qudddq

199YS dueeyg

uoneaod.aio) 3uayroy

YPTLEG'S 69 6IFOL8'S
P86l T Iseee
085°6S I TS8%01
YLY'9€E - I¥9eT
190°9 I €6T°1S
76561 - 68961
SSYLTY S IbKery
8EEGLT I p6S‘Sh
69L°T8I'T  +E  €I8F68T
806°€8Y'E 61  9L6'8IY]
€29 8  €9L°8Y9
[86°6EV°C 1€ SEISE9T
€8T VL T 16899
Y8LTCTT €1 T€9°9PT°T
0T6'7C - P9p9T
¥9C°61 - TI80¢
6S1°€9% 9 LTl6Y
8T6°L0Y S 685°S8¢
vLYLS I 99T°LIL
SLTOv1 S 6v0'0LE
junowry % junowry
1€T1°T20C IETIET0T

YD YL JurwLIey)

$)ISSY [8)0],

(8 @10N) SISO - SIASSE JUOLINO-UOU IO

((81)9 910N) JUSLIND-UON] - SIISSE J1JoUSQ PIULIP JON
((8) 20N pred sysodop sojuerenny

((61)9 10N S19sSE XB) QWOOUI PALIJO

((11)9 210N) s1asse d[qiSueiuy

(8 pue (01)9 210N) 1ou ‘Aj1odoid jusurysaaug

((6)9 210N) s19s5€ 9SN-JO-1YSIY

(8 pue (8)9 sajoN) Juswdinba pue jueld ‘Ayadoig

((£)9 210N) 10U “poyjawr A}nba ayy uIsn 10 PAIUNOIIL SYUIWISIAU]

((£)9 310N)

QuI0dUT SATSUAYRIdWOD IS0 YINOIY) dN[LA ITE] JE SIOSSE [RIOUBUIJ JULINO-UON

$S)ISSE JUILINI-UON

S)9SSE JUALIND IO
(L pue (9)9 9J0N) 12U ‘SLIOJUIAU]

(L pue ()9 sajou) sanaed paje[ay - SA[qBAIdIAI IO
((9)9 sa10U) 10U ‘SA[qBAIIIAI IO

(L pue (1)9 SOI0N) 19U 9[qBAIOOI SJUNOIOY

(L pue (4)9 SAON)) 9[qRAIIAIL SAON

((2)9 210N) ss0] 10 j1j01d YSnoiy) anjea Iejy je S}OSSe [RIOUBUL JUALIND)

((1)9 210N syudreAIba yseos pue yse)
:§)9SSE JULIND)

$)asSy

0661
SLel
0col
0v81
08LI
09L1
SSLT
0091
0SS

LIST

(7341
X0¢€T
o1cI
00¢I
OLTT
IST1
OrTtL
0011

-231-



4000
5000
5900
5910
5920
5950

6100
6200
6300
6450
6300
6900

7100
7010
7020
7050
7070

7900
7950

8300
8310
8311
8316
8330
8349
8360

8361
8380

8399

8300
8500

9750
9850

Chairman: Patrick Chiu

Hocheng Corporation

Statement of Comprehensive income
January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022

Operating revenue (Note 6(22) and 7)
Operating costs (Note 6(6) and 7)
Gross profit before adjustment
Less: Unrealized sales gains or losses
Add: Realized sales gains or losses
Operating gross profit
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing expenses
General and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Expected credit impairment losses
Subtotal
Operating profit
Non-operating income and expenses:
Interest income (Note 6(24))
Other income (Note 6(24) and 7)
Other gains and losses (Note 6(24))
Finance costs (Note 6(24))
Profit and loss of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures recognized by
using equity method
(Note 6(7))
Subtotal
Net profits before tax
Less: Income tax expenses (Note 6(19))
Net profits for the period
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Share of gains of subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures recognized
by using the equity method - Items not reclassified to profit or loss
Less: Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified
Total amount of items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss subsequently
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Share of gains of subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures recognized
by using the equity method - Items that may be reclassified to profit
or loss
Less: Income tax related to items that may be reclassified
Total amount of items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently
Other comprehensive income or loss of the period (net after taxes)
Total comprehensive income for the period
Earnings per share (NT$) (Note 6(21))
Basic earnings per share (NTS$)
Diluted earnings per share (NTS)

statements)
Managerial officer:
Shih-Chieh Chen

- 232 -

Unit: NTS thousand

2023 2022
Amount % Amount %
$ 3,255,265 100 3,400,227 100
2411916 74 2,462,573 72
843,349 26 937,654 28
8,632 - 7,060 -
7,060 - 5.541 -
841,777 26 936,135 28
462,226 14 508,883 15
154,133 5 164,018 5
109,406 3 100,792 3
224 - 221 -
725,989 22 773,914 23
115,788 4 162,221 5
1,678 y 2,142 -
109,837 3 207,207 6
(7,117 - (35274) (1)
(21,987) (1) 21,384) (1)
(141,745)  (4) (88,620)  (2)
(59.334) (2) 64,071 2
56,454 2 226,292 7
37,107 1 69,002 2
19.347 1 157,290 5
9,486 - 67,206 2
144,015 4 (282,268)  (9)
91,973 3 (56,679)  (2)
925 - 15,803 -
244,549 7 (287.544) 9
17,922 1 58,063 2
R (1) R R
17.922 - 58.063 2
262.471 7 (229.481) (7)
$ 281,818 8 (72,191) 2)
$ 0.06 0.46
$ 0.06 0.45

Head-Finance & Accounting:

Yueh-Ying Lo

(Please refer to the accompanying notes to parent company only financial
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Hocheng Corporation
Statement of Cash Flows

January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022

Unit: NT$ thousand

2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before tax from continuing operations $ 56,454 226,292
Net income before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Depreciation 149,793 153,505
Amortization expense 4,853 5,140
Expected credit impairment losses 224 221
Net gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (3,572) (460)
Interest expenses 21,987 21,384
Interest income (1,678) (2,142)
Dividend income (28,658) (135,020)
Share of the profit or loss of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for 141,745 88,620
using the equity method
Losses (gains) from disposal and scrapping of property, plant and equipment (886) 344
Losses (gains) on disposal of right-of-use assets 209 (118)
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 558 -
Unrealized gains between associates 1,572 1,519
Reversal of allowance for sales returns and discounts (4.258) (2.832)
Total items of income and expenses 281,889 130.161
Changes in assets/liabilities related to operating activities:
Net changes in assets related to operating activities:
Notes receivable 45,489 (29,319)
Accounts receivable 160,770 174,619
Other receivables (8,052) (10,502)
Inventory 96,129 (213,368)
Other current assets 11,243 16,360
Total net changes in assets related to operating activities 305.579 (62.210)
Net changes in liabilities related to operating activities
Notes payable (64,110) (13,215)
Accounts payable (28,945) 820
Other payables (106,929) (72,888)
Other current liabilities (8,482) (4,642)
Net confirmed benefit debt (35.786) (17.941)
Total net changes in liabilities related to operating activities (244.252) (107.866)
Total net changes in assets and liabilities related to operating activities 61.327 (170.,076)
Total item of adjustments 343,216 (39.915)
Cash inflows generated from operations 399,670 186,377
Interest received 1,678 2,142
Dividends received 61,965 262,591
Interest paid (21,900) (18,763)
Income tax paid (15.803) (18.142)
Net cash inflows from operating activities 425.610 414.205

(Please refer to the accompanying notes to parent company only financial statements)
Head-Finance & Accounting:

Chairman: Patrick Chiu Managerial officer:
Shih-Chieh Chen
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Hocheng Corporation
Statement of Cash Flows (cont’d)
January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022

Unit: NTS$ thousand

2023 2022
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (23,434) (1,793)
Disposal of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 47,330 4,730
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (52,900) (27,000)
Disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 24,259 -
Acquisition of investments accounted for under the equity method (150,620) (65,332)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (51,543) (78,445)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 6,140 1,962
Increase in refundable deposits 18,057 28,931
Acquisition of intangible assets (1,863) (1,210)
Disposal of intangible assets 356 -
Cash inflow from merger 257,434 -
Decrease in other non-current assets (1.144) 90)
Net cash inflows (outflows) from investing activities 72,072 (138,247)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Decrease in short-term borrowings 20,000 (620,877)
Decrease in short-term notes payable (105,000) -
Decrease in long-term loans (80,000) (98,234)
Decrease in guarantee deposits received - (30)
Repayment of principal of lease liabilities (42,447) (58,844)
Cash dividends paid (60,461) (73,971)
Capital reduction in cash - (665.,736)
Net cash outflows from financing activities (267.908) (1,517.692)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the period 229,774 (1,241,734)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 140,275 1,382,009
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 370,049 140,275
(Please refer to the accompanying notes to parent company only financial statements)
Chairman: Patrick Chiu Managerial officer: Head-Finance & Accounting:

Shih-Chieh Chen Yueh-Ying Lo
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Hocheng Corporation Parent Company Only Financial Statements (cont’d)

Hocheng Corporation
Notes to the Parent-Only Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in NTS$ thousand, unless otherwise specified)

I. Company History
Hocheng Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated in 1961 under the approval of the
Ministry of Economic Affairs. The address of its registered office is 1F, No0.398, Xingshan Rd.,
Neihu District, Taipei City 114, Taiwan. The Company primarily engages in the manufacturing and
trading of residential equipment (i.e., bathtubs, toilets), kitchen equipment, copper pipe equipment

and construction of national housing.

I1. Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements:
The accompanying parent-only financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) on March 12, 2024.

ITI. New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:
() The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) endorsed by the
Financial Supervisory Commission, which have already been adopted.
The Company has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have a
significant impact on its parent company only financial statements, from January 1, 2023.
+ Amendments to IAS1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
« Amendments to IAS8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”
« Amendments to [IAS 12 “Deferred Income Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising
from A Single Transaction”
The Company has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have a
significant impact on its parent-only financial statements, from May 23, 2023.
Amendment to IAS 12 “International Tax Reform - -Pillar Two Model Rules”
(IT) The impact of IFRS endorsed by the FSC but not adopted
The Company assesses that the adoption of the following new amendments, effective for
the annual period beginning on January 1, 2024, would not have a significant impact on its
parent company only financial statements.
« Amendment to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current”
+ Amendments to IAS1 “Non-current Liabilities with Contractual Terms”

+ Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 “Supplier Financing Arrangements”
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Hocheng Corporation Parent Company Only Financial Statements (cont’d)

« Amendments to IFRS 16 “Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback”
(IIT) The impact of IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC
The Company assesses that the following IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by
the FSC will not have significant effects on the consolidated financial statements.
‘Amendments to IFRS10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets between An Investor and
Its Associate or Joint Venture”
Amendment to IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” and IFRS 17
Amendment to IAS 21 -- “Lack of Exchangeability”

IV. Summary of significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies presented in the parent company only financial statements
are summarized below. Except for the explanation of Note 3, the following accounting policies
were applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the parent company only financial
statements.
(D) Statement of compliance
These parent company only financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.”
(IT) Basis of preparation
1. Basis of measurement
The parent company only financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis, except for the following material items in the balance sheet:
(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value;
(2) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair
value;
(3) The net defined benefit liabilities (assets) are recognized as the fair value of the plan
assets less the present value of the defined obligation, which is limited, as explained in
Note 4(17).
2. Functional and presentation currency
The Company has its functional currency as the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates. The parent-only financial statements are presented in New
Taiwan dollars, which is the Company's functional currency. All financial information
presented in NTD has been rounded to the nearest thousand.
(IIT) Foreign currency
1. Foreign currency transaction
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional

currencies of Group entities at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end
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Hocheng Corporation Parent Company Only Financial Statements (cont’d)

of each subsequent reporting period (“the reporting date”), monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into functional currencies using the exchange rate at that
date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value
are translated into functional currencies using the exchange rate at the date that the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured
based on historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for those
differences relating to the following, which are recognized in other comprehensive income:
(1) an investment in equity securities designated as at fair value through other

comprehensive income;
(2) a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to
the extent that the hedge is effective; or
(3) qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent the hedge are effective.
2. Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising from acquisitions, are translated into the presentation currency at the
exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency at the average exchange rate. Exchange differences
are recognized in other comprehensive income.

When a foreign operation is disposed of, such control, joint control, or significant
influence is lost, and the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign
operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the
Company disposes of any part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation
while retaining control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is re-attributed to
non-controlling interests. When the Company disposes of only part of its investment in an
associate or joint venture that includes a foreign operation while retaining significant
influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified
to profit or loss.

When the settlement of a monetary receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, exchange differences arising
from such a monetary item that is considered part of the net investment in the foreign

operation are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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Hocheng Corporation Parent Company Only Financial Statements (cont’d)

(IV) Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities
An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets
are classified as non-current.
1. It is expected to be realized, or intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating
cycle;
2. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
4. The asset is cash or a cash equivalent (as defined in IAS 7) unless the asset is restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other
liabilities are classified as non-current.
1. It is expected to be settled in its normal operating cycle;
2. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or
4. The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by issuing equity instruments do not affect its
classification.
(V) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits that meet the above definition and
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment
or other purposes should be recognized as cash equivalents. Time deposits with maturities
within a year or less that meet the above definition and are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes should be
recognized as cash equivalents.
(VD) Financial assets
Trade receivables are initially recognized when they originated. All other financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (excluding accounts receivable
without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly

attributable to its acquisition or issue. An accounts receivable without a significant financing
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Hocheng Corporation Parent Company Only Financial Statements (cont’d)

component is initially measured at the transaction price.
1. Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets classified in the same category
are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.

On initial recognition, financial assets are classified as financial assets at amortized
cost, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequently to their initial recognition unless the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all
affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period
following the change in the business model.

(1) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

-it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

-its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized costs add/less cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method and adjusted for any loss allowance.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses, and impairment loss, are recognized
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

(2) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income described above are measured at fair value through
profit or loss, including derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, as at fair value
through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses (including
any interest or dividend income) are recognized in profit or loss.

(3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Some trade receivables are held within a business model whose objective is achieved

by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling by the Company; therefore, those
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receivables are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income; however,
they are reported under accounts receivable.

On initial recognition, the Company is able to make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading in other comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are
subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in profit or loss
(unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment).
Other net gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income and are never
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s
right to receive payment is established (generally, ex-dividend date).

(4) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on
financial assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, notes
and accounts receivable, other receivables, guarantee deposits paid and other financial
assets), and contract assets.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for
the following, which are measured as 12-month ECL.:

+ debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

+ other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e., the risk of a default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowance for accounts receivable and contract assets are always measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based
on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment, as well as
forward-looking information.

Lifetime ECL is the ECL that results from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are
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possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected
life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 365 days past due.

ECLs are probability-weighted estimates of credit losses over the expected life of
financial assets. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e.,
the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). ECL is discounted at the
effective interest rate of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortized cost and debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income are
credit impaired. A financial asset is “credit impaired” when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

« significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

« a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 365 days past due;

« The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

« it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;
or

+ the disappearance of an active market for security because of financial difficulties.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from
the gross carrying amount of assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has
no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. For corporate accounts, the Company individually makes an assessment with
respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable
expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of

the amount due.
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(5) Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains all
of the risks and rewards of ownership substantially, and it does not retain control of the
financial asset.

2. Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(1) Classification of debt or equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as financial
liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(2) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognized at the amount after deducting direct issuance costs from the
obtained proceeds.

(3) Treasury shares

When shares recognized as equity are repurchased, the amount of the consideration
paid, including directly attributable costs, is recognized as a deduction from equity.
Repurchased shares are classified as treasury stock. When treasury shares are sold or
reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an increase in equity, and the
resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is recognized in capital reserve or retained
earnings (if the capital reserve is not sufficient to be written down).

(4) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or at fair value
through profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit
or loss.

(5) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are

discharged or canceled, or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability

when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
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different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized

at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

(6) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in
the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(VII) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost of
inventories is calculated based on the weighted average method and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs, and other costs incurred
in bringing them to the location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and
work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal
operating capacity.

The net realizable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less all estimated costs of completion and necessary selling expenses.

(VIII) Investment in associates

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence over their
financial and operating policies but not control or joint control.

Investments in the equity of associates are accounted for using the equity method. Under
the equity method, the costs were recognized upon initial acquisition. The cost of the
investment includes transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in associates
includes goodwill identified on the acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment losses.

The parent company only financial statements include the Company’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of those associates, after adjustments to align the
accounting policies with those of the Company, from the date on which significant influence
commences until the date on which significant influence ceases. When an associate’s equity
changes due to reasons other than profit and loss or comprehensive income, which did not
result in changes in the Company’s shareholding percentage in the associate, the Company
recognizes equity changes attributable to the Company by its shareholding percentage as

capital reserve.
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Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and an associate are
recognized in the financial statements only to the extent of a non-related investor’s equity in
the associate.

When the Company’s share of losses exceeds its interests in an associate, the carrying
amount of the investment, including any long-term interests that form a part thereof, is reduced
to zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent the Company
has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of its associates.

(IX) Investments in subsidiaries

When preparing the parent company only financial statements, the Company assesses
investees under its control by using the equity method. Under the equity method, the profit or
loss during the period and other comprehensive income presented in the parent company only
financial statements shall be the same as the allocations of profit or loss during the period and
of other comprehensive income attributable to the owners of the parent company presented in
the financial statements prepared on a consolidated basis and the owners' equity presented in
the parent company only financial reports shall be the same as the equity attributable to owners
of the parent presented in the financial reports prepared on a consolidated basis.

Changes in the Company's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in loss of
control are treated as equity transactions with owners.

(X) Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation, or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes. Investment property
1s measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation expense is calculated based on
the depreciation method, useful life, and residual value, which are the same as those adopted
for property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount) is recognized in profit or
loss.

Rental income from investment property is recognized as other revenue on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognized as an integral part of

the total rental income over the term of the lease.
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(XTI) Property, Plant and Equipment
1. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized
in profit or loss.

2. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic

benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
3. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset, less its residual value, and is
recognized as profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
component of an item of property, plant and equipment.

Lands are not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for the current and

comparative years are as follows:

(1) Houses and buildings 3~60 years
(2) Machinery and equipment 2~20 years
(3) Transportation equipment 2~8 years

(4) Office equipment 2~15 years
(5) Other equipment 2~35 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at the reporting
date each year and adjusted if appropriate.
4. Reclassification to investment property
A property is reclassified to investment property at its carrying amount when the use
of the property changes from owner-occupied to investment property.
(XII) Lease
At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
1. As a lesee
The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
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commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset
or the end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be reliably determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing
rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the
following:

(1) fixed payments, including in substance fixed payments;
(2) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;
(3) amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
(4) payments for purchase or termination options that are reasonably certain to be exercised.
The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. It is remeasured when:
(1) there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in c;
(2) there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee;
(3) there is a change in the lease term resulting from a change of its assessment on whether
it will exercise an option to purchase the underlying asset;
(4) there is a change in its assessment of the lease period on whether it will exercise an
extension or termination option;
(5) there is a lease modification

When the lease liability is remeasured, when are changes in an index or rate to
determine lease payments, changes in the amount of residual value guarantee, or changes in
the assessment of purchase, extension, or termination options above, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if

the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the
lease for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Group accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognize the difference in
profit or loss for any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
and lease liabilities as separate line items, respectively, in the balance sheets.

The Company has elected not to recognize the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for short-term leases of computer equipment and other equipment and asset lease of low-
value assets. The Company recognizes relevant lease payments as expenses on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

As a practical expedient, the Company elects not to assess whether all rent concessions
that meet all the following conditions are lease modifications or not:

(1) the rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic;

(2) the change in lease payments that resulted in revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

(3) any reduction in lease payments that affects only those payments originally due on or
before December 31, 2022; and

(4) there is no substantive change in other terms and conditions of the lease.

In accordance with the practical expedient, the effect of the change in the lease liability
is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
rent concession occurs.

2. As a lessor

When the Company is the lessor in the transactions, it classifies lease contracts based
on whether substantially all risks and compensations from the ownership of target assets are
transferred; if yes, the contracts are classified as financing leases, and if no, operating leases.
As part of this assessment, the Company considers certain indicators, such as whether the
lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head
lease and the sublease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sublease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. If a head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the

sublease as an operating lease.
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If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies
IFRS15 to allocate the consideration in the contract.
(XII) Intangible assets
1. Recognition and measurement
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost, less
accumulated impairment losses.
Expenditure on research activities is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
Development expenditure is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured
reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic
benefits are probable, and the Company intends to, and has sufficient resources to, complete
the development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognized in profit or loss as
incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, development expenditure is measured at cost,
less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and have useful lives that are
measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
2. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures, including
expenditures on internally generated goodwill and brands, are recognized in profit or loss
as incurred.
3. Amortization
Apart from goodwill, amortization is calculated over the cost of the asset, less its
residual value, and is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use.
The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for the current and
comparative years are as follows:
Computer software cost 2~15 years
The Company reviews the amortization method, useful life and residual value of
intangible assets on the reporting date each year, and makes appropriate adjustments when
necessary.
(XIV) Impairment of non-derivative financial assets
At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial
assets (other than inventories, deferred income tax assets, and non-financial assets other than
assets arising from employee benefits) to determine whether there is any indication of

impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
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For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or cash-generating units (CGUs). Goodwill arising from a business
combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to reduce the carrying amounts
of the other assets in the CGU on a pro-rata basis.

(XV) Debt allowance

A debt allowance is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Debt allowances are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pretax rate that reflects the current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The amortization
of the discount is recognized as interest expenses.

A provision of debt allowance for sales is recognized when the underlying products or
services are sold based on historical allowance data and measurement of all possible outcomes
against their associated probabilities.

(XVI) Revenue recognition
1. Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Company
recognizes revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of
goods or services to a customer. Descriptions based on the major revenue items of the

Company are as follows:
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(1) Sale of goods
The Company recognizes revenue when the control over products is transferred. The
transfer of control over products refers to the delivery of products to customers, and
customers may fully determine the sales channels and prices, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that may affect the acceptance of products by customers. Delivery occurs when
products are delivered to a specified venue, the risks of obsolescence and losses are
transferred to the customers, and customers have accepted products according to sales
contracts, the acceptance terms have become invalid, or the Company has objective
evident recognizing that all acceptance conditions have been fulfilled.
The Company is obliged to refund due to defects for the standard warranty it
provides and has recognized warranty liability provision for such obligations.
The Company recognizes accounts receivable when delivering products as the
Company gains the rights to unconditionally receive considerations.
(2) Rental income
The rental income arising from investment property is recognized in accordance with
the straight-line method over the lease period; also, the given lease incentives are deemed
as part of the overall rent income, and it is credited to the rental income in accordance with
the straight-line method over the lease period. The revenues generated from the sub-lease
of the property are recognized as non-operating income and expenses under “lease rental
income.”
(3) Financing components
The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction
prices for the time value of money.
(XVII) Employee benefits
1. Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to the defined contribution plans are expensed as related
services are provided.
2. Defined benefit plans
The Company’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plans is calculated
separately for each of the plans by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair

value of any plan assets.
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The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential
asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration
is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprises actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling
(if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income, and
accumulated in retained earnings within equity. The Company determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the then net defined benefit liability (asset). Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting
change in benefit that relates to prior service costs or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

3. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(XVII) Income taxes

Income taxes comprise both current taxes and deferred income taxes. Except for expenses
related to business combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive
income, all current and deferred income taxes shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Current income tax includes estimated income tax payable or tax refund receivable
calculated based on the taxable income (losses) of the year and any adjustment made to the
income tax payable or tax refund receivable in prior years. The amount is the best estimate of
estimated amounts payable or receivable measured based on the tax rates enacted or

substantively enacted on the reporting date.
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Deferred income taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities on the financial reporting date and their respective tax bases. Deferred
income taxes are recognized except for the following:

1. Temporary differences in the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profits (losses)
at the time of the transaction, and no equivalent taxable and deductible temporary
differences is incurred at the time of the transaction.

2. temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future; and

3. taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred income tax asset is recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused
tax credits, and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized. Deferred income tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefits will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability
of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred income taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to
temporary differences when they reserve, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset if the following criteria are met:

1. the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

2. the deferred income tax assets and the deferred income tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either:

(1) The same taxable entity; or

(2) Different taxable entities which intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis or to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred income tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled

or recovered.
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(XIX) Earnings per share
The Company discloses the Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company. Basic earnings per share are calculated as the profit
attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding. The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company, divided by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. Potential ordinary shares of the Company include the remuneration
of employees.
(XX) Operating segments
The Company has disclosed the segment information in the consolidated financial
statements; therefore, the parent company only financial statements will not disclose segment

information.

V. Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation
uncertainty:

In preparing this parent-only financial report, the management must make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the adoption of accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The
management recognizes any changes in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of
those changes in accounting estimates in the following period.

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effects on the amounts recognized in the parent company only financial statements
causes no significant effects.

Information about assumptions or estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year is as follows:

Inventory valuation

As inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, the Company estimates
the net realizable value of inventories for obsolescence and unmarketable items at the end of the
reporting period and then writes down the cost of inventories to net realizable value. The net
realizable value of the inventory is mainly determined based on assumptions as to future demand
within a specific time horizon. Due to the effects of consumers’ preferences and technological
changes, there may be significant changes in the net realizable value of inventories. Please refer to

Note 6(6) for further description of the valuation of inventories.
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VI. Explanation of significant accounting items

(I) Cash
2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Cash and petty cash $ 3,328 3,439
Checking account deposits 2,392 1,674
Demand deposit 364,329 135,162
Cash and cash equivalents presented in the statement of $ 370,049 140,275
cash flows

Please refer to Note 6(25) for the exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, and sensitivity
analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the Company.
(IT) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The breakdown of financial assets is as follows:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss:
Beneficiary certificates - open-end fund S 117,266 87.474

1. For details of the remeasurement of fair values recognized in profit or loss, please refer to
Note 6(24).
2. The financial assets above had not been pledged as collateral.

(IIT) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Domestic and foreign listed stocks $ 646,585 523,873
Domestic non-listed stocks 2,178 2,350
Total $ 648,763 526,223

1. Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
The Company holds such equity instruments as long-term strategic investments, not
for transaction purposes; therefore, they are designated as measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income.
In 2023 and 2022, the Company recognized a dividend income of NT$28,658 thousand
and NTS$135,020 thousand, respectively, for the investments in equity instruments

designated as measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
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Due to changes in investment strategy in 2023 and 2022, the Company has disposed of
its financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income. The fair
value upon the disposals was NT$47,330 thousand and NT$4,730 thousand, and the
Company recorded cumulative disposal gains of NT$2,684 thousand and NT$1,354
thousand, respectively. The cumulative disposal gains have been transferred to retained
earnings.

2. For credit risk (including the impairment of debt investments) and market risk, please refer
to Note 6(25).
3. The financial assets above had not been pledged as collateral.

(IV) Notes and accounts receivables

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Notes receivable $ 385,589 407,928
Accounts receivable 494,129 465,458
Less: loss allowance (2,702) (2,299)
$ 877.016 871.087

The Company applies the simplified approach to provide for its ECL for all notes and
accounts receivable (i.e., the use of lifetime ECL provision for all receivables). Notes and
accounts receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics of
customers’ capacity in settling the amount past due according to the contractual terms, with
the inclusion of forward-looking information, macroeconomic, and relevant industry
information. The expected credit loss analysis of the Company's notes receivable and accounts

receivable is as follows:

2023.12.31
Book value of

notes and Weighted Loss

accounts average ECL  allowance for

receivable rate lifetime ECL
Current $ 863,116  0%~0.06% 491
1 to 30 days past due 2,716 0%~11.39% 309
31 to 120 days past due 13,883  0%~13.69% 1,901
121 to 365 days past due 3 0%~50.44% 1
More than one year past due - 0%~100% -

S 879,718 2702
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2022.12.31
Book value of

notes and Weighted Loss
accounts average ECL  allowance for
receivable rate lifetime ECL
Current $ 861,832  0%~0.06% 549
1 to 30 days past due 3,647  0%~13.00% 474
31 to 120 days past due 7,822 0%~15.74% 1,231
121 to 365 days past due 85  0%~53.39% 45

More than one year past due - 0%~100% -

$ 873.386 2.299

The movements in the loss allowance for notes and accounts receivables of the Company

are set out in the following table:

Beginning balance
Impairment losses recognized
Transferred in from consolidated financial statements

Ending balance

(V) Other receivables

Others

Less: loss allowance

(VD) Inventories

Raw material

Supplies

Work in progress
Finished goods
Merchandise

Raw materials in transit
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2023 2022
$ 2,299 2,078
224 221
179 -
h 2,702 2,299
2023.12.31 2022.12.31
$ 64,363 51,271
(7.087) (7,087)
h 57,276 44,184
2023.12.31 2022.12.31
$ 201,828 217,669
8,238 7,473
155,176 143,244
523,881 548,122
251,741 291,459
5.767 14,817
$ 1,146,631 1,222,784
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For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the cost of goods sold and expenses
amounted to NT$2,411,916 thousand and NT$2,462,573 thousand, respectively. This includes
the 2023 and 2022 gains on inventory recovery and losses from depreciation, which were a
profit of NTD 5,689 thousand and loss of NTD 6,335 thousand, respectively, mainly due to
the fact that the inventory was obsolete or unusable, causing the net realizable value of the
inventory lower than the cost recognized as operating costs.

The Company scrapped its inventories due to a fire accident in September 2022, and the
amount of NT$21,685 thousand was accounted for under non-operating income and expenses
- other gains and losses; for details, please refer to Note 6(24)

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, none of the Company’s inventories was pledged as
collateral.

(VII) Investments accounted for using the equity method

The investments accounted for using the equity method at the end of the reporting period

are set out as follows:
2023.12.31 2022.12.31

Subsidiary $ 1,618,976 3.483,908

Please refer to the 2023 consolidated financial statements.

Based on the benefits of integrated resource utilization, the Company's board of directors
resolved to conduct a short-form merger with its subsidiary Hostan Corporation on June 27,
2023. The record date of the merger was July 28, 2023, and the Company became the surviving
company after the merger.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, none of the Company’s investments accounted for

using the equity method was pledged as collateral.

(VII) Property, Plant and Equipment

The breakdown of changes in the cost and depreciation of property, plant and equipment
of the Company is as follows:

Machinery

and Transportatio Office Other
Land Buildi qui 1 equi quip quip Total

Costs:

Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 682,549 302,660 1,598,451 67,577 155,948 769,358 3,576,543

Addition - 2,074 16,077 3,162 3,005 25,147 49,465

Transferred in from consolidated financial statements 1,573,963 192,392 - 236 3,489 1,770,080

Disposal (153) (138) (22,741) (3,825) (7,346) (13,477) (47,680)

Reclassification - 125,267 - - 9 (125.276)

Balance on December 31, 2023 $ 2,256,359 622,255 1,591,787 66,914 _ 151,852 __ 659,241

Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 682,549 302,168 1,582,097 76,493 152,386 738,553 3,534,246

Addition - 492 30,034 6,075 4,382 47,735 88,718

Disposal - - (13.680) (14,991) (820) (16,930) (46.421)

Balance on December 31, 2022 $ 682,549 302,660 1,598,451 67,577 155,948 __ 769,358 _ 3,576,543
Depreciation:

Balance on January 1, 2023 $ - 166,119 1,434,626 51,801 136,149 605,079 2,393,774

Depreciation this period - 22,639 34,559 4,837 6,655 33,557 102,247

Disposal - (128) (18,564) (3,544) (7,121) (13,069) (42,426)

Reclassification - 70,657 - - 9 (70.666)

Balance on December 31, 2023 $ - 259,287 _ 1,450,621 53,094 135,692 __ 554,901 _2,453,595
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Machinery

and Transportatio Office Other
Land Buildi quip ' equi quip quip Total
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ - 157,143 1,412,857 60,742 130,136 585,506 2,346,384
Depreciation this period - 8,976 35,449 5,135 6,833 35,112 91,505
Disposal = - (13.680) (14,076) (820) (15.539) (44.115)
Balance on December 31, 2022 $ - 166,119 1,434,626 51,801 136,149 605,079 2,393,774
Carrying amount:
December 31, 2023 $ 2,256,359 362,968 141,166 13,820 16,160 104,340 _2,894,813
January 1, 2022 $ 682,549 145,025 169,240 15,751 22,250 _ 153,047 _1,187,862
December 31, 2022 $ 682,549 136,541 163,825 15,776 19,799 164,279 1,182,769

Since the land of the Yingge factory and business premises of the Company is agricultural
land, it is not yet possible to transfer it to the name of the Company. As of December 31, 2023
and 2022 the key management personnel are registered in the name of the trust registrant.
Please refer to Note 7 for relevant information.

Please refer to Note 8 for the breakdown of property, plant, and equipment pledged as
collateral for long-term and short-term borrowings and financing limits as of December 31,
2023 and 2022.

(IX) Right-of-use assets
The breakdown of changes in costs and depreciation of lands, houses and buildings,

machinery equipment, and transportation equipment leased by the Company are as follows:

Transportation
Land Buildings equipment Others Total
Costs of right-of-use assets:
Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 1,011 372,539 6,488 4,873 384,911
Acquired through business 488 2,242 2,549 104 5,383
combination
Decrease - (260,341) - - (260.341)
Balance on December 31, 2023 S 1,499 114,440 9,037 4,977 129,953
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 1,011 377,688 2,063 4,873 385,635
Addition - 7,726 4,425 - 12,151
Decrease - (12.875) - - (12.875)
Balance on December 31, 2022 S 1,011 372,539 6,488 4,873 384,911
Depreciation of right-of-use assets:
Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 674 203,951 2,782 2,166 209,573
Acquired through business 147 810 2,159 43 3,159
combination
Depreciation this period 201 39,210 1,483 536 41,430
Decrease - (169.803) - - (169.803)
Balance on December 31, 2023 S 1,022 74,168 6,424 2,745 84,359
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Transportation
Land Buildings equipment Others Total

Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 506 157,798 2,063 1,674 162,041

Depreciation this period 168 54,416 719 492 55,795

Decrease (8,263) - - (8,263)

Balance on December 31, 2022 S 674 203.951 2,782 2,166 209.573
Carrying amount:

December 31, 2023 $ 477 40,272 2,613 2,232 45,594

December 31, 2022 $ 337 168,588 3,706 2,707 175,338

January 1, 2022 $ 505 219,890 - 3,199 223,594

(X) Investment property
Land Buildings Total

Costs:

Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 408,284 258,712 666,996

Acquired through business 27,387 - 27,387
combination

Balance on December 31, 2023 S 435.671 258.712 694.383

Balance (i.e. beginning balance) on $ 408.284 258,712 666,996

December 31, 2022

Depreciation and impairment losses:

Balance on January 1, 2023 $ - 239,541 239,541

Depreciation during the year - 6,116 6,116

Acquired through business 5,285 - 5,285
combination

Balance on December 31, 2023 S 5.285 245,657 250,942

Balance at January 1, 2022 $ - 233,336 233,336

Depreciation during the year - 6.205 6,205

Balance on December 31, 2022 S - 239,541 239,541
Carrying amount:

December 31, 2023 $ 430,386 13,055 443,441

January 1, 2022 $ 408.284 25,376 433.660

December 31, 2022 $ 408,284 19,171 427,455
Fair value:

December 31, 2023 $ 1,687.104

December 31, 2022 h) 1,251,127

Investment properties include multiple commercial properties leased to others. For details

of relevant information (including rental income and direct operating expenses occurred),

please refer to Note 6(17).

The fair value of investment property is based on the valuation of the market value.
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As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, for the breakdown of investment properties of the
Group that had been pledged as collateral for long-term and short-term borrowings and
financing limits, please refer to Note 8.
(XI) Intangible assets
The breakdown of costs and amortization of intangible assets of the Company in 2023
and 2022 is as follows:

Computer
software cost
Costs:
Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 71,354
Addition 1,863
Decrease (2.878)
Balance on December 31, 2023 $ 70,339
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 70,644
Addition 1,210
Decrease (500)
Balance on December 31, 2022 $ 71,354
Amortization:
Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 51,760
Amortization during the period 4,853
Decrease this period (1,963)
Balance on December 31, 2023 S 54.650
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 47,120
Amortization during the period 5,140
(500)
Balance on December 31, 2022 S 51,760
Carrying amount:
Balance on December 31, 2023 S 15,689
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 23,524
Balance on December 31, 2022 $ 19.594

1. Amortization expenses
Amortization expenses of intangible assets were presented in the following items of

the statement of comprehensive income in 2023 and 2022:
2023 2022

Operating cost $ 106 202

Operating expenses $ 4,747 4,938
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(XII) Short-term borrowings

The breakdown of the Company’s short-term borrowings is as follows:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Borrowings on unsecured letters of credit $ 250,000 150,000
Secured bank borrowings 100,000 180,000
Total $ 350,000 330,000

Outstanding limits

Interest rates

1.72%~1.88%

b 1,650,000 1,560,000
1.54%~1.84%

For details of collateral for short-term borrowings on the pledge of assets as collateral,

please refer to note 8.
(XTIII) Short-term notes and bills payable

The breakdown of short-term notes and bills payable by the Company is as follows:

2023.12.31
Guarantee or
acceptance
institution Interest rates Amount
Commercial papers payable Bills finance - -
company
Outstanding limits 430,000
2022.12.31
Guarantee or
acceptance
institution Interest rates Amount
Commercial papers payable Bills finance 2.02%~2.10% 105,000
company
Outstanding limits $ 325.000

(XIV) Long-term borrowings

The breakdown, conditions, and terms of the Company’s long-term borrowings are as

follows:
2023.12.31
Maturity
Currency Interest rates date Amount
Secured bank borrowings TWD 2.37% 113.10.19 $ 440,000
Less: Portion due within one year (440,000)

Total

Outstanding limits
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2022.12.31
Maturity
Currency Interest rates date Amount
Secured bank borrowings TWD 2.24% 113.10.19 §$ 520,000
Less: Portion due within one year (80,000)
Total $ 440,000
Outstanding limits $ -

For information on the Company’s interest risk, currency risk and liquidity risk, please
refer to Note 6(25); for information on borrowings from related parties, please refer to Note 7.
For details of collateral for short-term borrowings on the pledge of assets as collateral,

please refer to note 8.

(XV) Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities of the Company is as follows:
2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Current $ 19,566 57,663
Non-current $ 27,698 123,130

For details of the maturity analysis, please refer to Note 6(25) financial instruments.

The amount recognized in profit or loss is as follows:

2023 2022
Interest expenses on lease liabilities $ 1,706 2,966
Expenses relating to short-term leases S 185 380
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets $ 822 772
(excluding short-term leases of low-value assets)
COVID-19-related rent concessions (recognized as a S - 34

deduction of rent expenses)

The amount recognized in the statements of cash flows is as follows:
2023 2022
Total cash used in leases $ 45,160 62,928

1. Land, house and building leases
As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company leases land and houses and buildings
for its office space and factories. The leases of office space typically run for one to five
years.
2. Other leases
In addition, the period of lease for leasing machinery equipment and other equipment
is two to five years; such leases are short-term and low-value target leases; the Company

opts to apply the recognition exemption requirements to no recognize the relevant right-of-
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use assets and lease liabilities.

(XVI) Debt allowance

Debt allowance
for discount

Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 10,033
Debt allowance increased during the period 4,868
Debt allowance used during the period (7,765)
Debt allowance reversed during the period -
Balance on December 31, 2023 S 7.136
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 12,865
Debt allowance increased during the period 6,768
Debt allowance used during the period (9,600)

Debt allowance reversed during the period -
Balance on December 31, 2022 S 10,033

For debt allowance for discounts, the Company assesses potential product discounts
based on historical experience, the management’s judgment and other known reasons. Such
allowances are recognized as a deduction item for thee operating revenue of the year in which
relevant products are sold.

(XVII) Operating lease
The Company leases out investment properties. The Company has classified these
leases as operating leases because it does not substantially transfer all of the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of the assets. Please refer to Note 6(10) for details of
investment properties.
The maturity analysis of the lease payment based on the total undiscounted lease

payment to be collected after the reporting date is set out in the following table:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Less than 1 year $ 19,517 14,365
1 to 5 years 35,804 31,073
> 5 years 4,784 3.992
Total undiscounted lease payment $ 60,105 49.430

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the rental revenue from investment
properties amounted to NT$10,812 thousand and NT$10,465 thousand, respectively.
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(XVIII) Employee benefits
1. Defined benefit plans
The reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value

of plan assets is as follows:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Defined benefit obligation $ 583,655 630,887
Fair value of plan assets (688.507) (690,467)
Net defined benefit assets $ (104,852) (59,580)

The Company makes contributions to the labor pension fund account with the Bank of
Taiwan that is under the defined benefit plan. If the Labor Standard Act applies to an
employee, the retirement payment shall be calculated based on the base points obtained in
accordance with the seniority and the average salaries six months before retirement.

(1) Composition of plan

The Company sets aside pension funds in accordance with the “Regulations for
Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard, and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund,” and
such funds are managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor. Under these
regulations, the minimum earnings from these pension funds shall be no less than the
earnings from two-year time deposits with the interest rates offered by local banks.

As of the reporting date, the Company’s labor pension reserve account balance with
the Bank of Taiwan amounted to NT$688,507 thousand. The information for the
utilization of the labor pension fund assets included the asset allocation and yield of the
fund. For details, please refer to the information announced on the website of the Bureau
of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor.

(2) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the movements in the present

value of the defined benefit obligations of the Company are as follows:

2023 2022

Defined benefit obligations as at January 1 $ 630,887 682,223
Current service costs and interest 9,776 6,106
Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability

- Adjustments based on experiences (8,360) 7,863

- Actuarial gains or losses arising from financial 4,528 (21,491)
assumptions
Prior service costs 2,765 -
Benefits paid under the plan (55.941) (43.814)
Defined benefit obligations as at December 31 $ 583,655 630,887
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(3) Movements in the fair value of plan assets
The movements in the fair value of the defined benefit plan assets for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

2023 2022

Fair value of plan assets as at January 1 $ 690,467 656,656
Interest income 9,274 4,152
Net defined benefit (liabilities) assets
remeasurement

- Return on plan assets (excluding interest income 5,654 53,578
of the current period)
Contributions appropriated to the plan 22,523 19,895
Benefits paid under the plan (55,941) (43,814)
Assets acquired in a business combination 16,530 -
Fair value of plan assets as at December 31 $ 688.507 690,467

(4) Expenses recognized as profit or loss
The breakdown of expenses recognized by the Company as of December 31, 2023
and 2022 is as follows:

2023 2022

Current period service costs $ 1,335 1,888
Prior service costs 2,765 -
Net interest of net defined benefit liabilities (assets) 8,441 66
Interest income from plan assets (9,274) -
Amount of net effect transferred in by the company (16,530) -
discontinued in the consolidation

$ (13.263) 1,954
Operating cost $ (5,863) 924
Sales and marketing expenses (4,354) 610
General and administrative expenses (1,576) 214
Research and development expenses (1.470) 206

$ (13.263) 1.954

(5) Actuarial assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions used by the Company to determine the present

value of defined benefit obligations on the reporting date are as follows:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Discount rate 1.250% 1.375%
Future salary increase 1.250% 1.250%
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The expected allocation payment to be made by the Company to the defined benefit
plan within one year after the reporting date of 2023 is NT$18,502 thousand.
The weighted average lifetime of the defined benefits plans is 6.3 years.
(6) Sensitivity analysis
If the actuarial assumptions had changed, the impact on the present value of the

defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 shall be as follows:
Influences on defined benefit

obligations
Increased by Decreased by
0.25% 0.25%

December 31, 2023
Discount rate (changes of 0.25%) (9,001) 9,219
Future salary increase (changes of 0.25%) 9,051 (8,881)
December 31, 2022
Discount rate (changes of 0.25%) (10,245) 10,506
Future salary increase (changes of 0.25%) 10,326 (10,119)

The sensitivity analysis above analyzed the effects of changes in a single assumption,
and other assumptions remained unchanged. In practice, multiple assumptions may be
correlated. The method used in the sensitivity analysis is consistent with the calculation
of the net defined benefit liabilities on the balance sheets.

There is no change in the method and assumptions used in the preparation of the
sensitivity analysis for 2022 and 2021.

2. Defined contribution plans

The Company allocates 6% of each employee’s monthly wages to the labor pension
personal account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions of the
Labor Pension Act under the defined contribution plan. Under the plan, the Company is
exempted from the legal or constructive obligations for additional payments after
appropriating a fixed amount to the Bureau of Labor Insurance.

The Company confirmed that the pension expenses to the Bureau of Labor Insurance
under the defined pension contribution plan for the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022 amounted to NT$18,284 thousand and NT$19,408 thousand, respectively, have been

appropriated to the Bureau of Labor Insurance.
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(XIX) Income taxes
1. Income tax expenses
The breakdown of income tax expenses of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and
2022 is as follows:

2023 2022

Current income tax expense

Arising during the period $ 27,061 64,973

Current income tax with adjustments to the prior (2,723) 763
period

24,338 65,736

Deferred income tax expense

Occurrence and reversal of temporary differences 12,769 3,266
Income tax expenses for continuing operations $ 37.107 69,002

The breakdown of income tax expenses recognized in other comprehensive income by

the Company for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

2023 2022
Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans $ 926 15,804

Reconciliation of income tax and profit before tax of the Company for 2023 and 2022

is as follows:

2023 2022
Net profits before tax $ 56,454 226,292
Income tax calculated at the domestic tax rate at the  $ 11,291 45,258
place where the Company locates

Additional tax on undistributed earnings 7,277 45919

Effect of tax rate differences in foreign jurisdictions 53 695

Adjustments to non-temporary differences (3,147) (25,978)
Tax incentives (7,674) (6,767)
Changes in unrecognized temporary differences 31,842 9,112

Previous (over) under-estimation (2,723) 763

Others 188 -

Income tax expense h 37,107 69,002
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2. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

(1) Unrecognized deferred income tax assets

Items of deferred income tax assets not recognized by the Company are as follows:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Deductible temporary differences § 12,321 12,153
Aggregate amount of temporary differences related 349.173 321,084
to investments in subsidiaries
$ 361,494 333,237
(2) Recognized deferred income tax assets and liabilities
Changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
Provision
for land
Unrealized value Defined
revaluation increment benefit
appreciation tax plans Others Total

Deferred income tax
liabilities:
Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 13,868 448 - 73 14,389
Debit (credit) on the income - - 58,129 - 58,129

statement
Consolidated debit (credit) - 273,972 - 228 274,200

income statement
Balance on December 31,  § 13,868 274,420 58,129 301 346,718
2023
Balance (i.e. beginning b 13,868 448 - 73 14,389

balance) on December 31,

2022

Defined benefit
plans Others Total

Deferred income tax assets:
Balance on January 1, 2023 $ (11,913) 17,974 6,061
(Debit) credit on the income statement 47,665 (2,305) 45,360
(Debit) credit on other comprehensive (1,897) - (1,897)

income
Consolidated credit (debit) income - 3,009 3,009

statement
Consolidated (debit) credit other (1,240) - (1,240)

comprehensive income
Balance on December 31, 2023 $ 32,615 18.678 51,293
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 5,116 17,935 23,051
(Debit) credit on the income statement (3,588) 39 (3,549)
(Debit) credit on other comprehensive (13.441) - (13.441)

income
Balance on December 31, 2022 $ (11,913) 17,974 6,061
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3. Assessment of tax
The Company’s income tax returns for the years through 2021 were assessed by the
taxation agency.
(XX) Capital and other equity
As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the total authorized capital of the Company was
NT$5,700,000 thousand, divided into 570,000 thousand shares with a par value of NT$10 per
share. The total authorized capital above comprises ordinary shares, and the issued shares were
302,304 thousand shares and 303,280 thousand shares. All issued shares were paid up upon
issuance.
The reconciliation of the Company’s outstanding shares for the years ended December

31, 2023 and 2022 is set out in the following table:
(presented in thousand shares)

Common shares

2023 2022
Opening balance on January 1 303,280 369,854
Retirement of treasury stock (976) -
Capital reduction - (66,574)
Closing balance on December 31 302,304 303,280

1. Share capital

Based on the benefits of integrated resource utilization, the Company's board of
directors resolved to conduct a short-form merger with its subsidiary Hostan Corporation
on June 27, 2023. The record date of the merger was July 28, 2023, and the Company
became the surviving entity after the merger. The subsidiary Hostan was the merging entity.
The Company has not issued new shares for the merger, and at the same time canceled the
976 thousand shares of the Company held by Hostan.

To optimize the Company’s capital structure, the Board approved the proposal for a
capital reduction in cash through the repayment of contributions to shareholders on May 10,
2022. The amount of capital reduction in cash was NT$665,736 thousand, 66,574 thousand
issued shares were canceled, and the rate of capital reduction in cash was 18%; the base date
of the capital reduction was August 19, 2022, and the alteration registration had been made

with the Department of Commerce, Ministry of Economic Affairs.
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2. Capital reserve

The content of the capital reserve balance of the Company is as follows:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Treasury share transactions $ 12,862 11,495
Changes in net equity of subsidiaries recognized by 1,919 1,921
using the equity method
Consolidation premium 1,275 1,275
Others 531 532
S 16,587 15,223

According to the Company Act, the capital reserve shall be used to offset deficits first,
and the realized capital reserve may be used to distribute new shares or cash based on the
initial shareholding of shareholders. The aforementioned realized capital reserve includes
the premium on the issuance of shares above par and income received. According to the
Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers, capital
reserve that may be appropriate to the capital shall not exceed 10% of the paid-in capital in
aggregate each year.

3. Retained earnings

The Company is in the traditional industry. The life cycle of the Company is in the
growing stage. To consider the need of the Company for future capital, long-term financial
planning, and the need for cash inflows for shareholders, the distribution of the Company’s
earnings shall consider the net earnings of the current year as the priority. If the Company
records earnings after the final account, apart from paying profit-seeking business income
tax and compensating losses from prior years according to the law, it shall appropriate a
10% legal reserve and appropriate special reserve based on the actual requirements of the
Company. If there are remaining earnings, such earnings shall be combined with the
undistributed earnings at the beginning of the period, and the Board shall prepare a proposal
for earning distribution and submit it to the shareholders’ meeting for the resolution of
distribution.

The distribution of shareholders’ dividends may be distributed after the Board has
formulated the proposal and submitted it to the shareholders’ meeting for approval based on
the Company’s operating status and capital requirements. The distribution of cash dividends
shall be prioritized. When cash dividends and share dividends are distributed at the same
time, the ratio of cash dividends therein shall not be less than 10% of total dividends.

When the amount of legal reserve has reached the total capital, the shareholders’

meeting may resolve to cease the appropriation.
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For the distribution of dividends and bonuses from legal reserve and capital reserve,
the distribution shall be made after the Board has formulated the proposal and submitted it
to the shareholders’ meeting for approval according to the requirements of relevant laws
and regulations.

(1) Legal reserve
When the Company has no losses, it may, based on the resolution of the shareholders’
meeting, distribute new shares or cash from the legal reserve; however, the portion
distributable shall be the portion of the reserve that exceeds 25% of the paid-in capital.
(2) Special reserve
For the initial application of IFRS that is approved by the FSC, the Company chose
to adopt the exemptions in IFRS1 “First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards.” Therefore, for the unrealized revaluation increment under the
shareholder’s equity, retained earnings increased by NT$658,175 thousand according to
the requirements. Pursuant to the Order Jin-Guan-Zheng-Fa-Zi No.1010012865 of the
FSC dated April 6, 2012, the same amount of special reserves should be appropriated,
and when relevant assets are used, disposed of, or reclassified, the special reserve
appropriated initially shall be reversed as distributable earnings proportionately. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the carrying amount of the special reserve amounted to
NT$458,116 thousand.
(3) Earnings distribution
The proposal for earning distribution for 2022 and 2021 was approved as a resolution
at the shareholders’ meeting on June 21, 2023 and June 27, 2022. The amount of

dividends distributed to the owners is as follows:

2022 2021
Payout
Payout ratio Amount ratio Amount
Dividends distributed to owners
of ordinary shares:
Cash $ 0.20 60,656 0.20 73,971
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4. Treasury shares
The breakdown of shares of the Company held by the Company’s subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31 (Note)
Number Number
Company of of
name of shares shares
the (thousa (thousa
sharehold nd Market nd Market
ing Accounting item shares) Costs price shares) Costs price
Hostan Financial assets at fair value - $ - - 976 8,680 18,060
Corporati through profit or loss - Current
on
Hohong Financial assets at fair value 445 4,781 8,086 445 4,781 8,241

Co., Ltd. through other comprehensive

income - Non-current

The board of directors of the Company resolved on June 27, 2023 to carry out a short-
form merger with the subsidiary Hostan Corporation, which eliminated the number and cost
of shares of the Company held by the subsidiary.

Due to the capital increase in cash through repayment of contributions to shareholders
performed by the Company in August 2022, the number of shares of the Company held by
subsidiaries and costs was reduced based on the rate of capital reduction in cash.

5. Other equity (net of tax)

Unrealized profit
and loss on the
financial assets

measured at fair

Exchange value through
differences on other
translation of comprehensive

foreign operations income
Balance on January 1, 2023 $ (1,184) 377,823
Exchange differences arising from the translation of net assets of 17,922 -
foreign operations
Unrealized (losses) gains of financial assets at fair value through - 144,015
other comprehensive income
Disposal of equity instruments measured at fair value through - (17,144)
other comprehensive income
Share of unrealized gains or losses of financial assets at fair value - 95,992
through other comprehensive income of subsidiaries accounted
for using the equity method
Balance on December 31, 2023 $ 16,738 600,686
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Balance at January 1, 2022 $ (59,247) 737,180
Exchange differences arising from the translation of net assets of 58,063 -
foreign operations
Unrealized (losses) gains of financial assets at fair value through (282,268)
other comprehensive income
Disposal of equity instruments measured at fair value through (9,348)
other comprehensive income
Share of unrealized gains or losses of financial assets at fair value (67,741)
through other comprehensive income of subsidiaries accounted
for using the equity method
Balance on December 31, 2022 $ (1.184) 377.823
(XTI) Earnings per share
1. Basic earnings per share
(1) Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
2023 2022
Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the$ 19,347 157,290
Company
(2) Weighted average number of issued ordinary shares (thousand shares)
2023 2022
Ordinary shares issued as of January 1 303,280 369,854
Effect of treasury shares (1,001) (1,619)
Effect of capital reduction in cash - (24.508)

Weighted average number of issued ordinary shares 302,279 343,727

as at December 31

2. Diluted earnings per share

(1) Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company (diluted)

2023 2022

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the$ 19,347 157,290
Company (diluted)
(2) Weighted average number of issued ordinary shares (diluted) (thousand shares)

2023 2022
Weighted average number of issued ordinary shares 302,279 343,727
(basic)
Effect of employees’ compensation on shares 409 3.024
Weighted average number of issued ordinary shares 302,688 346,751

(diluted) as of December 31
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3. Earnings per share are as follows:

2023 2022
Basic earnings per share h 0.06 0.46
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.06 0.45

(XXII) Revenue from contracts with customers
1. Breakdown of revenue
2023 2022
Primary geographical markets:

Taiwan $ 3,250,321 3,395,100
China 571 291
Philippines 4,373 4,836

b 3,255,265 3.400,227

Major products/service lines:

Porcelain $ 1,236,924 1,221,329
Copper ware 711,066 711,614
Toilet seat cover 534,048 570,901
Fine pottery 117,994 235,688
Others 655,233 660,695

A 3.255,265 3.400,227

(XXIII) Remuneration of employees and remuneration of Directors and supervisors

According to the requirements of the Articles of Incorporation, if the Company records
any profits, it shall appropriate 5%~8% of the annual profits. The appropriation ratio for the
remuneration of employees and remuneration of Directors and supervisors shall be up to 3%
of the annual profits. However, if the Company still has accumulated losses, an amount shall
be reserved in advance to make up for the losses.

For years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the estimated remuneration of employees
was NT$3,722 thousand and NT$14,920 thousand, and the remuneration of Directors was
NT$1,861 thousand and NT$7,460 thousand, respectively. The estimation basis is the net
profit of the Company in the respective period before the remuneration of employees and
remuneration of Directors and supervisors multiplied by the distribution ratio of the
remuneration of employees and remuneration of Directors and supervisors as stated in the
Articles of Incorporation, and the amounts were presented as operating costs or operating
expenses of the period. If there are differences between the actual distribution amount and the
estimated amount, they are treated as changes in accounting estimates, and such differences

are recognized as profit or loss in the following year. For the remuneration of employees and
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remuneration of Directors and supervisors of the Company, the actual distribution amount and
the estimated amount in 2022 were equivalent; for relevant information, please visit MOPS
for inquiries.
(XXIV) Non-operating income and expenses
1. Interest income

The breakdown of interest income of the Company in 2023 and 2022 is as follows:
2023 2022

Interest from cash in the bank S 1,678 2,142

2. Other income

The breakdown of other income of the Company in 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

2023 2022
Rental income $ 17,177 15,540
Dividend income 28,658 135,020
Royalties and others 64,002 56,647
$ 109.837 207,207

3. Other gains and losses

The breakdown of other gains and losses of the Company in 2023 and 2022 is as

follows:
2023 2022

Foreign exchange gains $ (1,857) (1,218)
Net gains from disposal and scrapping of property, 328 (344)
plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties (6,116) (6,205)
Net gains on financial assets at fair value through 3,572 460
profit or loss
Disaster losses of inventory - (21,685)
Others (3.044) (6,282)

$ (1,117) (35.274)

4. Finance costs

The breakdown of finance costs of the Company in 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

2023 2022
Interest expenses $ 21,987 21,384
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(XXV) Financial instruments
1. Credit risks
(1) Credit risk exposure
The carrying amount of financial assets and contract assets represents the maximum
amount exposed to credit risk.
(2) Concentration of credit risk
The major customers of the Company are centralized in several distributors. In order
to reduce the credit risk, the Company continues to evaluate the financial status of these
customers and request collateral or guarantee when necessary. The Company regularly
assesses the likelihood of collectability of accounts receivable and sets aside an allowance
for bad debts, and the impairment losses generally fall within the expectations of the
management. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, 46% and 48% of notes receivable
balance and 19% and 18% of accounts receivable balance were concentrated on three
customers. Thus, the credit risk of the Company is significantly centralized.
(3) Credit risk of amounts receivable
For information on the exposure to credit risks of notes and accounts receivable,
please refer to Note 6(4).
2. Liquidity risks
The following table shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including

estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements.

Carrying Cash flows ‘Within 6 Over 5
amount of contract months 6-12 months  1-2 years 2-5 years years
December 31, 2023
Non-derivative financial
instruments
Secured bank $ 540,000 548,348 145,484 402,864 - - -
borrowings
Unsecured bank 250,000 250,924 250,924 - - - -
borrowings
Notes payable 50,463 50,463 50,463 - - - -
Accounts payable 244284 244284 244,284 - - - -
Other payables 223,755 223,755 223,755 - - - -
Lease liabilities 47.264 48.435 10,494 9.620 10,840 17,481 -

$ 1355766 _ 1,366,209 925,404 412,484 10,840 17,481 -
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Carrying Cash flows ‘Within 6
amount of contract months 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5years  Qver 5 years
December 31, 2022
Non-derivative financial
instruments
Secured bank $ 700,000 718,778 226,118 45,197 447,463
borrowings
Unsecured bank 150,000 150,395 150,395
borrowings
Short-term notes payable 105,000 105,254 105,254
Notes payable 56,647 56,647 56,647
Accounts payable 263,454 263,454 263,454
Other payables 320,497 320,497 320,497 - - -
Lease liabilities 180,793 185.304 30,028 29.846 58,590 63,552 3,288
$ 1776391 1,800,329 _ 1,152,393 75,043 506,053 63,552 3,288

The Company does not expect that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis

would occur significantly earlier or at significantly different amounts.

3. Currency risks

(1) Exposure to foreign currency risk

Financial assets and liabilities of the Company that are exposed to significant

currency risk are as follows:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Foreign  Exchange Foreign Exchange
currency rate NTD currency rate NTD
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD $ 133 30.71 4,084 200 30.71 6,142
RMB 13,057 4.327 56,498 10,432 4.408 45,984
Financial
liabilities
Monetary items
USD 165 30.71 5,066 789 30.71 24,230

(2) Sensitivity analysis

The exposure of the Company’s monetary items to currency risk arises from the

exchange gains or losses arising from

the translation of cash and cash equivalents,

accounts receivable, other receivables, borrowings, accounts payable, and other payables

that are denominated in foreign currencies. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, if an

appreciation or depreciation of 1% of the NTD against the USD occurs, the net profit after
tax of 2023 and 2022 would have increased or decreased by NT$444 thousand and

NT$223 thousand, respectively.
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(3) Exchange gains or losses of monetary items
Exchange gains or losses of monetary items of the Company (including those
realized and unrealized) in 2023 and 2022 were losses of NT$1,857 and NT$1,218
thousand, respectively.
4. Interest rate analysis

The exposure of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities are described
in the liquidity risk management of the note.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the risk exposure to the interest rates risk
of derivative and non-derivative instruments on the reporting date. Regarding liabilities with
variable interest rates, the analysis is based on the assumption that the amount of liabilities
outstanding on the reporting date was outstanding throughout the year. The rate of change
is expressed as the interest rate increases or decreases by 1% when reporting to the key
management internally, which also represents the management's assessment of the
reasonable and possible scope of change in interest rates.

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings bearing floating interest rates.
If the interest rate increases or decreases by 1%, the Company’s net profit before tax will
decrease or increase by NT$4,800 thousand and NT$5,600 thousand for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and all other variables remained constant.

5. Information on fair value
(1) Types and fair value of financial instruments

Regarding the financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
financial assets and liabilities for hedging, and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (financial assets available for sales) of the Company, the carrying
amount and fair value of various financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair
value on a repetitive basis (including the information on the level of fair value; however,
for financial instruments not measured at fair value with their carrying amount being
reasonable approximates and investments in equity instruments with no active quote in
an active market and the fair value cannot reliably measures, the information on fair value

is not required to be disclosed according to the requirements) are set out as follows:
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2023.12.31
Fair value measurement
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets measured at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
Domestic and foreign listed stocks $ 646,585 646,585 - -
646,585
Domestic non-listed stocks 2,178 - - 2,178
2,178
Subtotal 648.763 646.585 - 2,178
648.763
Financial assets measured at
amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents 370,049 - - - -
Notes and accounts receivable 877,016 - - - -
Other receivables 57,276 - - - -
Refundable deposits 23.641 - - - -
Subtotal 1,327,982 - - - -
Total $ 1976745 646,585 - 2,178
648,763
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Bank loan $ 790,000 - - - -
Notes and accounts payable 294,747 - - - -
Other payables 223,755 - - - -
Guarantee deposits 19,057 - - - -
Total $ 1,327,559 - - - -
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2022.12.31
Fair value measurement
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair

value through other

comprehensive income

Domestic and foreign listed stocks $ 523,873 523,873 - - 523,873

Domestic non-listed stocks 2,350 - - 2,350 2,350

Subtotal 526,223 523.873 - 2,350 526,223

Financial assets measured at

amortized cost

Cash and cash equivalents 140,275 - - - -

Notes and accounts receivable 871,087 - - - -

Other receivables 44,184 - - - -

Refundable deposits 36.474 - - - -

Subtotal 1,092,020 - - - -

Total $  1,618243 523,873 - 2,350 526,223
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Bank loan $ 955,000 - - - -

Notes and accounts payable 320,101 - - - -

Other payables 320,497 - - - -

Guarantee deposits 18.585 - - - -

Total NT$1,614,183 - - - -

(2) Fair value valuation techniques for financial instruments measured at fair value

Non-derivative financial instruments

If a financial instrument has a quoted price in an active market, the quoted price
is used as fair value. The quotation, which is published by the main exchange or that
which was deemed to be a public bond by the Treasury Bureau of Central Bank, is
included in the fair value of the listed securities instruments and the debt instruments
in active markets with an open bid.

If quoted prices of financial instruments can be obtained in time and often from
exchanges, brokers, underwriters, industrial unions, pricing institutes, or authorities,
and such prices can reflect those actual trading and frequently happen in the market,
the financial instruments are considered to have quoted prices in an active market.
The market shall be deemed inactive when not fulfilling the abovementioned
conditions. In general, significant gaps in trading prices, significant increases in gaps
in trading prices, or minor trading volume are deemed as indicators of an inactive

market.
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If the financial instruments held by the Company have an active market, the fair
value, by category and attribute, is set out as follows:

Shares of companies listed on TWSE (TPEX) are financial assets and financial
liabilities traded in active markets that fulfill the standard terms and conditions; their
fair value shall be based on the market quotations.

Apart from the financial instruments with an active market above, the fair value
of the remaining financial instruments is determined based on the general recognition
pricing model that is used as the basis through cash flow discount analysis.

If the financial instruments held by the Company has no active market, the fair
value, by category and attribute, is set out as follows:

Equity instruments with no open quote: The Company adopts the net asset value
method, which primarily assumes that the measurement shall be made based on the
net worth per share of the investee.

(3) Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
There was no significant transfer of financial assets from Level 1 to Level 2 in 2023
and 2022.

(4) Statement of changes in Level 3
Measured at fair
value through
other
comprehensive
income
Equity
instruments with
no open quotation

January 1, 2023 $ 2,350
Total gains or losses

Deferred tax income (expense) recognized in other comprehensive (172)
income
December 31, 2023 $ 2,178
January 1, 2022 $ 87,795
Total gains or losses

Deferred tax income (expense) recognized in other comprehensive (85.445)
income
December 31, 2022 h) 2,350
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The abovementioned total gains or losses are presented as “unrealized gains of losses
from investments in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income.”

Those related to assets held in 2023 and 2022 are as follows:
2023 2022

Total gains or losses
Recognized in other comprehensive income $ a72) (85.445)
(presented as “unrealized gains of losses from
investments in equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income”)

(5) Quantified information for significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) used in fair value
measurement

The Company’s financial instruments that are classified for fair value measurement
by using Level 3 inputs include financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income - securities investments.

Most of the Company’s financial assets in Level 3 have only single significant
unobservable input, while investments in equity instruments without an active market
have multiple significant unobservable inputs. The significant unobservable inputs of
investments in equity instruments without an active market are individually independent,
and there is no correlation between them.

The quantitative information of significant unobservable inputs is set out as follows:

Interrelationship
between significant
Significant unobservable
Valuation unobservable inputs and fair
Item technique inputs value measurement
Financial assets Net asset value ‘Net asset value Not applicable
measured at fair method
value through other
comprehensive
income

(XXV]) Financial risk management
1. Overview
The Company is exposed to the following risks from its financial instruments:
(1) Credit risk
(2) Liquidity risk
(3) Market risk
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The note presents the Company’s exposure information, objectives, policies and
procedures for measuring and managing the abovementioned risks. For further quantitative
disclosures, please refer to the respective notes in the parent company only financial
statements.

2. Risk management framework

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and supervision of the risk
management framework of the Company.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the
risks faced by the Company, set appropriate risk limits and controls, and monitor risks and
compliance with limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through
training, management standards, and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

The Company’s Board oversees how the management monitors compliance with risk
management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to risks faced by the Company. Internal auditors assist the Board of
the Company in supervising. Such personnel undertakes regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management control and procedures, and the results are reported to the Board.

3. Credit risk

Credit risk means the potential loss of the Company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the
Company’s accounts receivables from customers and investments in securities.

(1) Accounts and other receivables
The Company has the allowance account set up to reflect the estimated losses of the
accounts and other receivables and investments. The allowance account mainly includes
specific losses related to individually significant exposure and the combined losses of
similar asset groups that have incurred but not been identified. The allowance account for
combined losses is determined in accordance with the historical payment statistics of

similar financial assets.
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(2) Investments
The credit risk exposure of bank deposits and other financial instruments is measured
and monitored by the Company’s Finance Department. As the Company deals with banks
and counterparties with good credit standing and financial institutions, corporate
organizations and government agencies, which are graded above the investment level,
there is no significant performance suspicion; therefore, there is no significant credit risk.
(3) Guarantees
The Company’s endorsement/guarantee policy is limited to subsidiaries or associates
with business dealings. Please refer to Note 7 for details of endorsements and guarantees
provided by the Company to subsidiaries as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.
4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company has difficulty fulfilling the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
always has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company’s reputation.

In general, the Company ensures that it possesses sufficient cash to meet expected
operating expenditure requirements, including the performance of financial obligations, but
excluding potential effects that cannot be reasonably estimated under extreme
circumstances (i.e., natural disasters).

5. Market risk

Market risk is the risk of changes in market prices, such as exchange rates, interest
rates, and equity instrument prices, that will affect the Company’s revenue or the value of
financial instruments we hold. The objective of market risk management is to control the
market risk exposure within the tolerable range and to optimize the investment return.

(1) Currency risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk on sales and purchases that are not
denominated in the functional currency. The major denomination currency of such

transactions is USD.

(XXVII) Capital management
The objectives of the Board’s policy are to maintain an optimal capital structure to keep
the faith of investors, creditors, and the market and support future operations. Capital consists
of share capital, capital reserve, retained earnings, and non-controlling interests of the

Company. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of
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dividends for ordinary shares.

The Company’s debt-to-equity ratio on the reporting date is as follows:

2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Total liabilities $ 1,836,082 1,929,202
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (370,049) (140,275)
Net liabilities S 1,466,033 1,788,927
Total equity $ 6,669,472 6,448,029
Debt-to-equity ratio 21.98% 27.74%

As of December 31, 2023, the Company had not changed its capital management method.
(XXVII) Investing and financing activities of non-cash transactions

Investing and financing activities of non-cash transactions performed by the Company in
2023 and 2022.

The reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities is set out in the following table:
Non-cash change

2023.1.1 Cash flow Addition Disposal  2023.12.31

Short-term borrowings $ 330,000 20,000 - - 350,000
Long-term borrowings 520,000 (80,000) - - 440,000
Lease liabilities 180,793 (42,447) - (91,082) 47,264
Short-term notes payable 105,000 (105,000) - - -
Guarantee deposits 18,585 - 472 - 19,057
Total liabilities from $ 1.154.378 (207.447) 472 (91,082) 856,321

financing activities

Non-cash change
2022.1.1 Cash flow Addition Disposal  2022.12.31

Short-term borrowings $ 950,877 (620,877) - - 330,000
Long-term borrowings 618,234 (98,234) - - 520,000
Lease liabilities 229,250 (58,844) 15,117 (4,730) 180,793
Short-term notes payable 105,000 - - - 105,000
Guarantee deposits 18,615 (30) - - 18,585
Total liabilities from 1,921 (771,985) 15,117 (4,730) _ 1,154,378

financing activities
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VII. Related party transactions
(I) Parent company and ultimate controlling party
The Company is the ultimate controlling party of the Company and the attributed Group.
(IT) Names and relationships with related parties
The subsidiary Hostan was merged into the Company on July 28, 2023, and the Company
succeeded to the relevant rights and obligations. The subsidiaries and other related parties that

have transactions with the Company are as follows within the period of the consolidated

financial report are as follows:
Name of the related parties

Relationship with the Company

Hohong Co., Ltd.
SWATTON INTERNATIONAL CORP.

Bao Long Interior Crafts Co., Ltd. (formerly known

as Holong Ceramic Co., Ltd.)
Hoceng Service Co., Ltd.

Ritiboon International Limited

Hocheng Philippines Property Holding, Inc.
HOCHENG GROUP HOLDING CORP.
Hocheng (China) Corporation

Hoceng Philippines Corporation
UPEX

Lazuli International Co., Ltd.

Hecheng Jianlang (Shamghai) Kitchen and
Bathroom Co., Ltd.
Yuhong Co., Ltd.

Yuhong (SuZhou) Co., Ltd.
Triple S Holdings Corporation

Hoceng Cultural & Educational Foundation

New Swift Enterprises Co., Ltd.
Hochun Industry Co., Ltd.
Fu Wang Investment Co., Ltd.

All Directors and the key management of the
Company
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(IIT) Significant transactions with related parties
1. Operating revenue

The amounts of significant sales by the Company to related parties are as follows:

2023 2022
Subsidiary $ 107,419 84,083
Other related parties 29 65
$ 107,448 84,148

The selling price of the Company to subsidiaries and other related parties is based on
the transfer price. The collection condition is settled by month with a grace period of three
months. The credit term is not significantly different from general transactions.

2. Purchases

The amounts of purchases by the Company from related parties are as follows:

2023 2022
Subsidiary
Bao Long Interior Crafts Co., Ltd. $ 215,280 145,486
Other subsidiaries 62,954 -
Other related parties 135,794 149,570
$ 414,028 295,056

The purchasing price of the Company to subsidiaries and other related parties is paid
at the transfer price. The payment condition is three months. There is no general transaction
that is comparable in price and payment terms.

3. Amounts receivable from related parties

The breakdown of the Company’s amounts receivable from related parties is as follows:

Accounting item Type of related parties 2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Notes receivable  Subsidiary $ 12,275 11,907
Notes receivable  Other related parties - 7
Accounts Subsidiary 8,603 12,301
receivable

Other related parties 21 -
Other Subsidiary

receivables -- Rent
and royalties

Hocheng (China) Corporation 22,443 23,047
Other subsidiaries 3,967 1,820
Other related parties 54 53
h) 47,363 49,135
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4. Amounts payable to related parties

The breakdown of the Company’s amounts payable to related parties is as follows:

Accounting item Type of related parties 2023.12.31 2022.12.31
Notes payable Other related parties
Yuhong Co., Ltd. $ 38,283 39,037
Accounts payable Subsidiary
Baolong International Co., Ltd. 63,220 36,143
Other subsidiaries 3,784 7,195
Other related parties
Yuhong Co., Ltd. 12,076 12,793
Other payables Subsidiary 5,309 18,695
Other related parties - 68
$ 122.672 113,931

5. Endorsement and guarantee
(1) Endorsement/guarantee provided by the Company to related parties

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company issued letters of credit for the
guarantee of bank borrowings for subsidiaries in the amount of US$2,000 thousand,
PHP285,000 thousand and US$10,800 thousand, and PHP150,000 thousand, respectively.

(2) Endorsement/guarantee provided by related parties to the Company

The subsidiaries of the Company provided joint and several guarantees for the
contracted projects of the Company in a total amount of NTD 5,840 thousand as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

As of December 2023 and 2022, a subsidiary provided land and investment
properties as the collateral for the secured borrowings of the Company from a bank in the
amount of NT$1,110,000 thousand, and the carrying amount was NT$1,682,766 thousand.

6. Royalty income
Subsidiaries of the Company made use of the trademark rights of the Company. In
2023 and 2022, royalties collected from related parties amounted to NT$21,353 thousand
and NT$21,118 thousand, respectively.
7. Rental income
Rent collected by the Company from other related parties is based on the price
negotiation between both parties and is charged on a monthly basis. In 2023 and 2022, rental
income collected from related parties amounted to NT$5,762 thousand and NT$4,897

thousand, respectively.
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8. Rent expense
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company rented an office
located in South District, Taichung City, from other related parties and recognized right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities of NT$57 thousand and NT$60 thousand, NT$115 thousand
and NT$118 thousand. In 2022, the Company rented a plant in Yingge District, New Taipei

City, from Hostan Corporation, and as of December 31, 2022, the Company recognized

right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of NT$110,614 thousand and NT$113,767 thousand.

9. Others

(1) As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s real estate of Yingge factory and
office amounted to NT$94,678 thousand and NT$95,184 thousand, respectively. The real
estate has not yet transferred the account in the name of the Company as it is a piece of
agricultural land. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the real estate had
temporarily registered under Patrick Chiu and Chiu Hong Yu with trust. The Company
signed a deed of real estate trust with the registrants, setting out their rights obligations
and having pledged their trust assets to the Company.

(2) In January 2023, the Company purchased the outstanding equity of He-Hong Co., Ltd.
from key management personnel, and the amount of transaction was NT$ 620 thousand.

(3) In August 2022, the Board approved the resolution to acquire 30.7% of the outstanding
equity of subsidiary Bao Long Interior Crafts Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Holong
Ceramic Co., Ltd.) from the key management and other related parties of the Company
in 2022, and the transaction amount was NT$782 thousand and NT$3,612 thousand.

(4) In response to the public welfare and cultural education activities organized by Hoceng
Cultural & Educational Foundation, the Company made a donation of NT$5,000 thousand
in 2022, which is accounted for under operating expenses - general and administrative
expenses.

10. Other expenses
The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into a repair contracting agreement; the
repair expenses (accounted for as other expenses) were NT$45,935 thousand and

NT$43,538 thousand in 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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(IV) Key management transaction

The compensation of the key management includes:

2023 2022
Short-term employee benefits $ 13,577 13,985
Post-employment benefits 222 224
$ 13,799 14.209

The Company provided 11 and 10 company cars with a cost of NT$16,107thousand and
NT$19,942 thousand, respectively, for the key management’s use in 2023 and 2022.

VIII. Pledged assets
The breakdown of the carrying amount of assets provided by the Company for pledge and

security is as follows:

Asset Target 2023.12.31 2022.12.31

Property, plant and equipment - Land Long-term and short-  $ 72,234 72,912
and houses term borrowings

Investment property - Land and Long-term and short- 400,972 414,013
houses term borrowings

Restricted assets (recognized as other Bid bond and 2,332 526
non-current assets - other) performance bond for

projects
Refundable deposits House lease and deposits 23.641 36.474

for construction
S 499,179 523,925

IX. Significant contingencies and unrecognized contractual commitments
(I) Material unrecognized contractual commitments:
1. Promissory notes issued by the Company for engineering and product warranty and subject

guarantee:
2023.12.31 2022.12.31

Promissory notes for engineering and product warranty $ 36,182 33,133

and subject guarantee
X. Losses due to major disasters: None.

XI. Significant events after the period: None.
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XII. Others
A summary of employee benefits, depreciation, and amortization, by function, is as follows:
By function 2023 2022
Operating |Operating Total Operating |Operating Total
By nature costs expenses costs expenses
Employee benefits expense
Salary expenses 315,510 281,997 597,507, 358,602 303,737 662,339
Labor and health 34,903 29,831 64,734 36,604 30,348 66,952
insurance
Pension 1,179 3,842 5,021 8,764 12,598 21,362
Directors’ remuneration - 2,769 2,769 - 8,338 8,338
Other employee benefits 11,839 13,692 25,531 13,399 14,250 27,649
expense
Depreciation expenses 85,932 57,745 143,677 88,285 59,015 147,300
(Note)
IAmortization expense 106 4,747 4,853 202 4,938 5,140

(Note): The abovementioned depreciation expenses exclude the depreciation expenses of
investment properties; in 2023 and 2022, the expenses amounted to NT$6,116 thousand

and NT$6,205 thousand (accounted for under other gains and losses).

Additional information on the number of employees and employee benefits of the Company
in 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

2023 2022
Number of employees 999 1,064
Number of employees who are not concurrently Directors 4 4
Average employee benefits expenses $ 696 734
Average employee salary expenses $ 601 625
Average adjustments to employee salary expenses (3.84)%

Remuneration of supervisors $ - -

Information on the Company’s remuneration policies (including Directors, managerial
officerial officers, and employees) is as follows:

The distribution of remuneration, salaries, incentives, and employee bonuses of the directors
and managerial officers are subject to the dividend policy in the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation, Remuneration Committee Charter, and other relevant requirements and are
determined based on the industrial characteristics and business nature of the Company.
Remuneration related to Directors and managerial officers is implemented after being reviewed by

the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.
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XIII. Other disclosures

(D) Information on significant transactions

Information on significant transactions required to be disclosed by the Regulations

Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers for the Company for the

year ended December 31, 2023 is as follows:

1. Loans to others:

Unit: NT$ thousand

= = § > Ez o E §z = p| mzm -cg> Assets pledged EE'-—r o =
N\ 3EE | 2E | zf |EE|vE:| EF |EZz| & |ZE|gEez| EE% |E:z: Z2225:| 288
25f | SF |BE (3% |2ff| EF |25E| 2 |ZifBEEIE|zzc |23E| £ | £ |FeEEiliss
= =3 -9 = (<] = B - =~ 5 = = - = = = w
- E= 7R |TgE| PR 8 |F=[%°c|R2F |qgc| B | B PRESZ TEE
' o
0 [Hocheng [Hocheng [Amount | Yes 64,850 61,410 - - 2 - Working - - 1,333,894 2,667,789
ICorporation [(China) s lcapital
(Corporation  [receivab
le from
related
[parties
1 [Ritiboon [Hocheng ” Yes 128,860 - - - 2 - Working - - 130,541 261,083
lInternational ((China) lcapital
ILimited (Corporation
2 |Hocheng IHocheng ” Yes 22,296 - - - 2 - Working - - 70,857 141,713
Group (China) lcapital
[Holding (Corporation
ICorp.
3 |HOCHENG (Triples ” Yes 5,621 - - - 2 - Working - - 14,923 29,845
IPHILS. [Holdings Corp. lcapital
IPROPERTY
IHOLDING,
IINC.

Note 1: 1. A business associate.

2. A company that needs short-term financing.
Note 2: The limit of loans to a single enterprise shall not exceed 20% of the net worth of the lender.
Note 3: The total limit of loans shall not exceed 40% of the net worth of the lender.

2. Guarantees and endorsements for others:

Unit:

z

T$ thousand

Party being e s g > E o = e = [
g 1Y [} 2.8 [} S= = a5 = =
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] e | MNBus o S0 D e E® = = =208 A bw Rgg "0 Wi = » S P =0 S
2 ] S |“Es™>| 258 | wEg s EgeEg | “EEESE ~£E £E8c | SEE ;gc
1 = - A = - - 5 =4 -] 15
= | ¢ |SE| 9f | GEF | EE | g5 | £% | g3E B | i |2ED|E:|Z:T
S = = 5 = 5 = a5 2 5
g g | z2 zs | EF E °3 8%2 2| §™ |Eg% |2ER |3
® E3 ] B El ] 2 8 a L < e < 6 e
0 [Hocheng [Hoceng 3 6,669,472  236,646| 219,443 - - 3.29% | 6,669,472 Y
(CorporatiPhilippines
on (Corporation
0 ” Hocheng 3 6,669,472 184,500 - - - - % | 6,609,472 Y Y
(China)
(Corporation
1 [Hoceng [Hocheng 3 117,144 5,840 5,840 4,017 - 0.09% 117,144 Y
Service [Corporation
Co., Ltd.

Note 1: The relationship between the endorser/guarantor and the counterparties is as follows:
1. A Company with business relationships.

2. A company in which the Company, directly and indirectly, holds over 50% of shares with voting rights.

3. A company, directly and indirectly, holds over 50% of shares with voting rights in the Company.

4. A company in which the Company, directly and indirectly, holds over 90% of shares with voting rights.
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Note 2: The endorsement and guarantee limit made by the Company and Hoceng Service Co., Ltd. shall not exceed 100% of the net value of their financial
statements.

Note 3: The cap of endorsements and guarantees is the net worth of the financial statements.

Note 4: For non-public companies, the ratio is calculated based on the net worth of the parent company.

3. Securities held at the end of the period (excluding investments in the equity of subsidiaries,
associates, and joint ventures):
Unit: NT$ thousand/share

At the end of the period
Relationship with Fair value
Names of Category and name| the securities Number of Carrying  [Shareholding| measurement
companies held of securities issuer Accounting item shares amount percentage (Note 2) Remarks
The Company (Cathay Financial - Financial assets at 651,834 29,821 - % 29,821
[Holdings Limited fair value through
other
comprehensive
lincome -- Non-
current
IChina Development - ” 452,067 5,674 - % 5,674
[Financial Holdings
ILimited
[Taishin Financial - ” 557,860 10,097 - % 10,097
[Holding Co., Ltd.
United - ” 800,000 42,080 0.01% 42,080
Microelectronics
(Corporation
[Taiwan PCB - " 6,575,315 284,711 2.42% 284,711
[Techvest Co., Ltd.
(Capital Securities - " 8,551,000 139,809 0.39% 139,809
(Corporation
[Pegatron Corporation| - ” 75,000 6,548 - % 6,548
[Taishin Financial - ” 16,280 832 - % 832
[Holding Co., Ltd.
[Preferred Stock E
(Cathay Financial - " 14,808 883 - % 883
[Holding Co., Ltd.
[Preferred Stock A
IMega Financial - ” 1,343,160 52,652 0.01% 52,652
[Holding Company
ILtd.
(Cathay Financial - ” 12,284 733 - % 733
[Holding Co., Ltd.
Stock B
[Taishin Financial - ” 9,753 445 - % 445
[Holding Co., Ltd.
[Preferred Stock E II
ICTBC Financial - ” 2,498,000 70,818 0.01% 70,818
[Holding Co., Ltd.
(Core Pacific City - ” 49,205 429 0.49% 429
ICo., Ltd.
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At the end of the period

(Corporation

Relationship with Fair value
Names of Category and name| the securities Number of Carrying [Shareholding| measurement
companies held of securities issuer Accounting item shares amount percentage (Note 2) Remarks
|Union Securities - " 98,869 1,396 0.32% 1,396
Investment Trust
ICo., Ltd.
[Power Chip - " 27,816 353 - % 353
[Technology
(Corporation
[Power Chip - ” 50,336 1,482 - % 1,482
Semiconductor
Manufacturing Corp.
[Taishin 1699 Money - Financial assets at 1,890,737 26,362 - % 26,362
Market Fund fair value through
profit or loss --
Current
[Yuanta Wan Tai - ” 981,110 15,259 - % 15,259
Money Market Fund
Sinopac TWD - ” 1,612,066 23,054 - % 23,054
Money Market Fund
(Capital Money - ” 1,821,545 30,214 - % 30,214
Market Fund
[Hua Nan Phoenix - ” 1,088,967 18,213 - % 18,213
Money Market Fund
[Hua Nan Kirin - " 338,550 4,164 - % 4,164
Money Market Fund
Hohong Co., Ltd. (GREAT WALL - Financial assets at 10,000 585 - % 585
IENTERPRISE CO., fair value through
ILTD. other
comprehensive
lincome -- Non-
current
[Formosa Plastics - ” 30,000 2,376 - % 2,376
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Relationship with

At the end of the period
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Names of Category and name| the securities Carrying |Shareholding| Fair value
companies held of securities issuer Accounting item Shares amount percentage (Note 2) Remarks
Hohong Co., Ltd. [Zeng Hsing - Financial assets at 10,743 1,144 0.02% 1,144

Industrial Co., Ltd. fair value through

other

comprehensive

lincome -- Non-

current
Standard Chemical & - ” 20,000 1,318 0.01% 1,318
[Pharmaceutical Co.
ILtd.
[Hocheng Is its subsidiary " 445,484 8,086 0.15% 8,086 xl
(Corporation
ILongchen Paper & ” 268,152 3,969 0.02% 3,969
[Packaging Co., Ltd.
Sheh Kai Precision - ” 75,000 4,125 0.15% 4,125
ICo., Ltd.
Iron Force Industrial - ” 38,000 3,477 0.05% 3,477
ICo., Ltd.
[Turvo International - ” 70,000 9,730 0.12% 9,730
(Co.,Ltd.
ICompeq - " 40,000 2,828 - % 2,828
Manufacturing Co.,
ILtd.
[Hong Hai Precision - ” 58,480 6,111 - % 6,111
Industrial Co., Ltd.
[Yageo Corporation - ” 3,979 2,374 - % 2,374
[Taiwan - " 31,365 18,598 - % 18,598
Semiconductor
Manufacturing
(Company Limited
[Foxconn Technology - " 10,000 531 - % 531
ICo., Ltd.
[Elite Material Co., - " 20,000 7,640 0.01% 7,640
ILtd.
Walsin Technology - ” 10,000 1,230 - % 1,230
(Corporation
[Evergreen - ” 160,000 5,072 0.01% 5,072
International Storage
land Transport
(Corporation
lAerospace Industrial - ” 100,000 5,360 0.01% 5,360
[Development Corp.
(Cathay Financial - ” 151,426 6,928 - % 6,928
[Holdings Limited
IChina Development - ” 132,288 1,660 - % 1,660
[Financial Holdings
ILimited
[Taishin Financial - ” 369,477 6,687 - % 6,687
[Holding Co., Ltd.
INational Aerospace - ” 22,000 2,041 0.04% 2,041
[Fasteners
(Corporation
(Getac Technology - ” 80,000 8,880 0.06% 8,880
(Corporation
[TXC Corporation - ” 20,000 1,972 0.01% 1,972
[Tripod Technology - ” 80,000 15,600 0.02% 15,600
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Relationship with

At the end of the period

[Technology Co., Ltd.

Names of Category and name| the securities Carrying |Shareholding| Fair value

companies held of securities issuer Accounting item Shares amount percentage (Note 2) Remarks
(Corporation
|Ardentec - " 130,205 9,635 0.03% 9,635
(Corporation
[Xintec Inc. - " 20,000 2,550 0.01% 2,550
Shin Zu Shing Co., - ” 10,000 1,235 0.01% 1,235
ILtd.
[Topco Technologies - ” 8,538 602 0.01% 602
(Corp.
[Foxsemicon - ” 15,000 3,158 0.02% 3,158
Integrated
[Technology Inc.
|Avalue Technology - " 52,000 6,214 0.07% 6,214
Inc.
Well Shin - ” 26,000 1,344 0.02% 1,344
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Relationship with

At the end of the period
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Names of Category and name| the securities Carrying |Shareholding| Fair value
companies held of securities issuer Accounting item Shares amount percentage (Note 2) Remarks
Hohong Co., Ltd. [FORMOSA SUMCO| - [Financial assets at 35,000 5,898 0.01% 5,898

TECHNOLOGY fair value through
ICORPORATION other

comprehensive

lincome -- Non-

current
Shih Her - ” 120,000 10,152 0.21% 10,152
[Technologies Inc.
Materials Analysis - ” 14,725 3,424 0.02% 3,424
[Technology Inc.
|Arcadyan - ” 45,000 7,673 0.02% 7,673
[Technology
(Corporation
[TSC Auto ID - ” 16,496 3,984 0.04% 3,984
[Technology Co., Ltd.
[Bizlink Holding Inc. - ” 10,354 2,765 0.01% 2,765
IASE Technology - " 80,000 10,800 - % 10,800
[Holding Co., Ltd.
WELLELL INC. - " 15,000 434 0.01% 434
(Global Tek - " 35,000 1,876 0.04% 1,876
[Fabrication Co., Ltd.
'Wistron Information - ” 74,619 9,850 0.10% 9,850
Technology &
Services Corporation
IZhen Ding - " 120,000 13,080 0.01% 13,080
[Technology Holding
ILimited
[KMC (Kuei Meng) - " 15,100 1,986 0.01% 1,986
International Inc.
Sino American - ” 50,000 9,800 0.01% 9,800
Silicon Products Inc.
(Chailease Holding - ” 38,894 7,507 - % 7,507
(Company Limited
IChipbond - ” 30,000 2,169 - % 2,169
[Technology
(Corporation
[Powertech - ” 65,000 9,165 0.01% 9,165
[Technology Inc.
ILanner Electronics - ” 80,700 9,079 0.06% 9,079
Inc.
IGEM Services, Inc. - ” 54,450 3,724 0.04% 3,724
(Crystalvue Medical - ” 6,300 546 0.02% 546
(Corporation
IAMPAK - ” 5,000 600 0.01% 600
[Technology, Inc.
[Takizawa Taiwan - ” 30,000 942 0.04% 942
[Technology Co., Ltd.
[Nova Technology - ” 26,000 3,653 0.04% 3,653
ICorp.
IKEYSTONE - " 10,000 3,120 0.04% 3,120
IMICROTECH CO.
|Acer Cyber Security - ” 10,000 1,925 0.05% 1,925
Inc.
Sensortek - ” 10,000 4,335 0.02% 4,335
[Technology Corp.
[Unictron - " 10,000 880 0.02% 880
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Relationship with At the end of the period
Names of Category and name| the securities Carrying |Shareholding| Fair value
companies held of securities issuer Accounting item Shares amount percentage (Note 2) Remarks
[Technologies
(Corporation
|Acer E-Enabling - " 7,000 2,065 0.02% 2,065
Service Business Inc.
|Allied Circuit Co., - " 30,000 4,650 0.06% 4,650
ILtd.
(Chenbro Micom Co., - ” 10,000 2,715 0.01% 2,715
ILtd.
[Taiwan PCB - " 2,067,000 89,501 0.76% 89,501
[Techvest Co., Ltd.
Sunny Friend - " 22,488 2,586 0.02% 2,586
IEnvironmental
[Technology Co., Ltd.
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Relationship with

At the end of the period
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Names of Category and name| the securities Carrying |Shareholding| Fair value
companies held of securities issuer Accounting item Shares amount percentage (Note 2) Remarks
Hohong Co., Ltd. |Cleanaway Company - Financial assets at 10,000 1,800 0.01% 1,800
ILimited fair value through
other
comprehensive
lincome -- Non-
current
[Pou Chen - ” 140,000 4,326 - % 4,326
(Corporation
Macauto Industrial - " 40,000 3,028 0.05% 3,028
ICo., Ltd.
[Power Chip - " 66,404 763 - % 763
[Technology
(Corporation
[Power Chip - " 50,000 1,473 - % 1,473
Semiconductor
Manufacturing Corp.
ID NET International - Financial assets at 10,025 - - % -
(Corporation fair value through
profit or loss --
Current
Syntronix - ” 1,150 - - % -
(Corporation
[AbGenomics - ” 20,000 - - % -
[nternational,Inc.
|[UPAMC James Bond| - " 277,849 4,764 - % 4,764
Money Market Fund
[Franklin Templeton - ” 197,891 2,103 - % 2,103
Sinoam Money
Market Fund
'Yunata De-Li Money - ” 122,436 2,053 - % 2,053
Market Fund
(Capital Money - " 308,585 5,118 - % 5,118
Market Fund
[Hua Nan Phoenix - ” 241,557 4,040 - % 4,040
Money Market Fund
[Taishin 1699 Money - ” 325,532 4,539 - % 4,539
Market Fund
IRitiboon UPMorgan Funds— - ” 5,616 9,677 - % 9,677
[nternational (China Fund—JPM
Limited
IPYXIS - " 65,000,000 - - % -
Asia Technology - ” 1,400 - - % -
Bao Long Interior [TCI Co., Ltd. - " 50 9 - % 9
Crafts Co., Ltd.
[Hong Hai Precision - ” 1,000 104 - % 104
Industrial Co., Ltd.
Swatton [PFBC - Financial assets at 50,000 112,150 - % 112,150
[nternational fair value through
Corp. other
comprehensive
lincome -- Non-
current
INEXTEER - " 50,000 969 - % 969
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Relationship with At the end of the period
Names of Category and name| the securities Carrying |Shareholding| Fair value
companies held of securities issuer Accounting item Shares amount percentage (Note 2) Remarks
IAUTOMOTIVE
IGROUP LTD
[HKT TRUST AND - ” 100,000 3,665 - % 3,665
HKT LTD
ICK HUTCHISON - " 20,000 3,291 - % 3,291
[HOLDINGS LTD
[FOXCONN - " 95,000 442 - % 442
INTERCONNECT
TECHNOLOGY
ILTD.
IMINTH GROUP - ” 60,000 3,723 - % 3,723
ILTD
IAMAZON - ” 1,000 4,665 - % 4,665

Note 1: The Company’s shares possessed by subsidiaries have been deducted from the carrying amount. The shares are treated as treasury shares.
Note 2: The securities quoted in an active market are presented at the closing price on the last day of the accounting period. The securities without public
quotes used the net value per share of the investee.

- 301 -



Hocheng Corporation Parent Company Only Financial Statements (cont’d)

4. Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding NT$300

million or 20% of the paid-in capital: None.

5. Acquisition of a property with an amount exceeding NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in

capital: None.

6. Disposal of a property with an amount exceeding NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in

capital: None.

7. Purchases or sales with a related party with an amount exceeding NT$100 million or 20%

of the paid-in capital:

Unit: NT$ thousand

Differences between
transaction conditions and
general transactions and

Transaction status

the reason therefor

Notes and accounts
receivable (payable)

Ratio to total

Ratio to notes and
total accounts
Company of purchase Purchases purchases| Credit receivable
(sales) Counterparty |Relationship (sales) Amount (sales) period Unit price| Credit period Balance (payable)
Hocheng Bao Long  [Subsidiary | Purchases 215,280| 12.62% [Three - INo general (63,220)| (25.88)%
(Corporation Interior imonths transaction is
Crafts Co., comparable
ILtd.

Remarks

8. Amount receivable from related parties exceeding NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in

capital: None.

9. Derivative transaction: None.

(IT) Information on investees:

Information on the investees of the Company in 2023 is as follows:
Unit: NT$ thousand/share

Original / investment
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. Investment
amount Held at the end of the period (losses) gains
Ending (Losses) gains| recognized
Name of the | Name of the Main business |balance of the| At the end of Carrying | of investee of | during the |Remar
investors investees | Location line period last year Shares Percentage amount the period period ks
Hocheng IHostan [Taiwan Oil excretes ~ - 1,605,702 - - % - (184) (1,685) [Note 2,
(Corporation (Corporation gas stoves and INote 6
[water heaters
Ritiboon [British V  [Holding 2,410,366 2,410,366 78,646,373 | 100.00% 650,374 (160,280) (158,364) [Note2
International
ILimited
[Hohong Co., [Taiwan [Invested in 198,620 198,000 34,713,522  99.60% 687,319 16,127 15,971 Notel
ILtd. [production and
trading business
[Hoceng Taiwan Interior design, 6,000 6,000 1,050,000| 70.00% 62,008 5,735 2,832 [Note2
Service Co., trading,
ILtd. installment, and
repair of
lbathroom and
stove equipment
land its
components
IBao Long Taiwan Manufacturing, 804,761 654,761 21,001,000| 100.00% 219,275 2,105 (499)
Interior Crafts [processing, and
ICo., Ltd. trading of
[porcelain,
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Original / investment Investment
amount Held at the end of the period (losses) gains
Ending (Losses) gains| recognized
Name of the | Name of the Main business |balance of the| At the end of Carrying | of investee of | during the |Remar
investors investees | Location line period last year Shares Percentage amount the period period ks
ceramic boards,
and tiles
ILazuli [Taiwan Furniture, 1,000 1,000 100,000 100.00% - - - INote 3
International bedding, kitchen
(Co., Ltd. lutensils, fixtures
and wholesale
trade
O+ Design (Cayman  |[nvestment 31,848 31,848 - - % - - - INote 5
International [Islands
(Corporation
IRitiboon IHocheng [Philippines |[Land lease 29,040 29,040 13,974,571 40.00% 57,7187 3,744 2,808
International  [Philippines
ILimited IProperty
IHolding, Inc.
[Hocheng (Cayman  [Holding 1,392,323 1,392,323 49,389,182 100.00% 433,496 (165,429) (165,429)
IGroup Islands
[Holding
(Corp.
IHCG North  [The U.S. [Sale of bathroom 14,230 14,230 - 49.00% - - -
lIAmerican, lequipment
ILLC
Hohong Co., [Swatton [British V  [Holding 41,590 41,590 13,004| 100.00% 199,236 6,032 6,032
ILtd. International
(Corp.
Hocheng Group[Hoceng [Philippines [Production and 395,155 395,155 507,843,879| 100.00% 571,522 9,440 9,440
Holding IPhilippines sale of plumbing
Corp. (Corporation [products
[Triple S IPhilippines [Holding 46,086 46,086 8,040,000 40.00% 51,357 777 684 [Note 4
[Holdings
ICorp.
Hoceng IPT HCG Indonesia [Sale of bathroom 12,400 12,400 420,000 35.00% - - -
Philippines Indonesia lequipment
(Corporation
Note 1: The Company's shares held by subsidiaries are deemed as treasury shares; therefore, gains or losses from investments in subsidiaries recognized by
the Company exclude the gains or losses of subsidiaries generated from holding the shares of the Company.
Note 2: The difference between recognized gains or losses from investment and investee is unrealized gains or losses or difference of equity net worth.
Note 3: Lazuli International Co., Ltd. is still in the process of dissolution; the Company has written down the balance of long-term investments in its equity
to nil.
Note 4: The Company is entitled to 88% of the rights to allocation regarding the earnings of the company.
Note 5: The Company was liquidated in February 2023.
Note 6: The Company has completed a short-form merger with the subsidiary Hostan Corporation, please refer to Note 4(3) of the consolidated financial

report.
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Hocheng Corporation Parent Company Only Financial Statements (cont’d)

(IIT) Information on investment in Mainland China:

1. Information on investment in businesses in Mainland China:

Unit: NT$ thousand

Investment flows = . a = =3
= > > = 5 >
5 = | €258 g5t 2 | 502 £ 2 fo | EEZ
2 = = 32 ] R ass 28 g 5e
& = ] < =°§E —]gg < EES w'gg-» o= gmg
2 g E 2 | 2852 =E5E g% 32 gESE =232 |25xE
3 = [ —_ e = SZeF _u_’g‘ <S=N-d 5-<<tl§¢=b =g = sS85
as g jos anp Qo 2 z 2 °Sca SR -2 2=E2 ® =0 °ZE32
S5 Z, = S5 | 74 g g T2 232 E= sS8rxF Bes |BSE&
g2 = g 3= oS8 o = 2 3.8 e o SSS S25 Z.a3 Z=5 508 o
e 2 = =5 =32 =3 e - e 3 2 S SEze = SE5==
E 4 = - ®p =g e a a5ss e S§3¢e 8023 ags aes 3
g £ g S| B282 = s cg2 £s ez NES® e 2 gea
g s g | 35585 g§55 5o 505 5232 s g 255
g & & | 5338 2g% s s ZFSe 273 as, oo 2
& 3 s 2 =° g & ) =°z
=
Hocheng (China) [Production 953,760 | (II) 894,627 - - 894,627 (172,633) 100.00% (172,633)| (333,488) -
Corporation land sale of
[plumbing
[products
UPEX Sale of 29,805 | (II) 5,961 - - 5,961 (2,885) 100.00% (2,885) 15,272 -
[bathroom
lequipment
Hocheng (China)
Corporation
Hocheng Sale of 4,581 | (ID - - - - (22,213) 100.00% (22,213)  (96,029) -
Shanghai [bathroom
Corporation lequipment
Hecheng Jianlang|Sale of 4,300 | (In) - - - - (2,434) 50.00% (1,217) 776 -
(Shamghai) [bathroom
Kitchen and lequipment
Bathroom Co.,
Ltd.

2. Limit on investment in Mainland China:

Ceiling on investments in

IAccumulated investment amount Investment amounts China imposed by the
of remittance from Taiwan to | authorized by Investment | Investment Commission of
China at the end of the period Commission, MOEA MOEA (Note 3)

900,588 928,336 4,001,683

Note 1: There are three types of investment methods; please mark the type:
(I) Direct investment in Mainland China.

(II) Investing in Mainland China through companies in a third-party region (the investing company in the third-party region is Ritiboon

International Limited).
(III) Others methods.
Note 2: Based on the financial statements of investees audited by CPAs.
Note 3: The limit is 60% of the net worth.
Note 4: Relevant figures in the table are presented in NTD.

Note 5: The difference between the paid-in capital and the amount remitted from Taiwan is due to the capital increase from earnings in the amount of

US$2,000 thousand performed by Hocheng (China) Corporation in 2009.

Note 6: The difference between the paid-in capital and the amount remitted from Taiwan is due to the direct investment and indirect investment of Ritiboon
International Limited in Hocheng Group Holding Corp. and UPEX, respectively, in the amount of US$800 thousand.
Note 7: The difference between recognized gains or losses from investment and investee is unrealized gains or losses.

3. Significant transactions:

For details of the significant transactions between the Company and investees in China

in 2023, please refer to “Information on significant transactions.”
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Hocheng Corporation Parent Company Only Financial Statements (cont’d)

(IV) Major shareholders:

Unit: Share
Shares | No. of Shares Ownershi
Name of major shareholder Held P
Dorkay Investment Company Ltd. 15,774,048 5.21%

The information on major shareholders in the table is based on the data by Taiwan
Depository and Clearing Corporation on the last business day in December 2023. The total
number of ordinary shares and preference shares (including treasury shares) held by
shareholders with ownership of 5% or greater that have completed the non-physical
registration and delivery or above. The share capital in the financial statements of the Company
may differ from the actual number of shares delivered with non-physical registration

completed due to different preparation or calculation basis.

XIV. Segment information

For details, please refer to the 2023 consolidated financial statements.
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Hocheng Corporation

Breakdown of cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2023 Unit: NT$ thousand
Item Summary Amount
Cash Cash in hand $ 466
Working capital 2,862
Subtotal 3.328
Bank deposits Checking account deposits 2,392
Demand deposit 347,333
Deposits in foreign currency 16,996
Subtotal 366,721
S 370,049
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Hocheng Corporation

Breakdown of notes receivable

December 31, 2023 Unit: NTS thousand
Client Name Summary Amount Remarks
Related party:
Hoceng Service Co., Ltd. Due within one year  § 12,275
Subtotal 12,275
Non-related party:
Company A Due within one year 155,597
Others ” The balance of a single
customer has not exceeded
217,717 5%
Subtotal 373,314
Total $ 385,589
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Hocheng Corporation

Breakdown of accounts receivable

December 31, 2023 Unit: NTS$ thousand
Client Name Summary Amount Remarks

Related party:

Hoceng Service Co., Ltd. $ 6,060

HOCHENG (CHINA) CO., 58

LTD.
Bao Long Interior Crafts 2,485
Co., Ltd.

Yuhuang Co., Ltd. 21

Subtotal 8,624
Non-related party:

Company A 37,696

Company B 33,152

Company C 23,764

Others 390.893

Subtotal 485,505

Less: Impairment loss (2,702)
allowance

Net amount 482.803
Total $ 491.427
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Hocheng Corporation

Breakdown of other receivables

December 31, 2023 Unit: NTS thousand
Item Summary Amount Remarks

Related party:

Hocheng (China) Use of trademark 22,433
Corporation rights

trademarks

Subtotal 26,464
Non-related party Trademark income 30,812
Total 57.276

Breakdown of inventories
Amount
Net realized
Item Costs value Remarks

Raw material $ 207,701 204,747
Supplies 8,577 8,240
Work in process 165,317 235,770
Finished goods 537,831 853,162
Merchandise 276,244 326,506
In transit inventory 5,767 5,767
Subtotal 1,201,437 1,634,192
Less: loss allowance (54.806)
Total 1,146,631
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HOCHENG CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in NT$ thousand, unless otherwise specified)

I. Company History
Hocheng Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated in 1961 under the approval of the
Ministry of Economic Affairs. The address of its registered office is 1F, No0.398, Xingshan Rd.,
Neihu District, Taipei City 114, Taiwan. The consolidated financial statements of the Company as
of December 31, 2023 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the
Group”) and the Group’s interest in associates and jointly controlled entities. The Group primarily
engages in the manufacturing and trading of residential equipment (i.e., bathtubs, toilets), kitchen

equipment, copper pipe equipment and construction of national housing.

I1. Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board
of Directors (the “Board”) on March 12, 2024.

ITI. New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:
(I) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) endorsed by the
Financial Supervisory Commission, which have already been adopted.
The Group has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have a
significant impact on its consolidated financial statements, from January 1, 2023.
« Amendments to IAS1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
« Amendments to IAS8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”
« Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Income Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising
from A Single Transaction”
The Group has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have a
significant impact on its consolidated financial statements, from May 23, 2023.
Amendment to IAS 12 “International Tax Reform - -Pillar Two Model Rules”
(IT) The impact of IFRS endorsed by the FSC but not adopted
The Group assesses that the adoption of the following new amendments, effective for the
annual period beginning on January 1, 2024, would not have a significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements.
« Amendment to [AS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current”
« Amendments to IAS1 “Non-current Liabilities with Contractual Terms”
+ Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 “Supplier Financing Arrangements”
« Amendments to IFRS 16 “Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback”
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Hocheng Corporation

Breakdown of other non-current assets

December 31, 2023 Unit: NT$ thousand
Item Summary Amount Remarks
Collection $ 7,087
Less: Impairment loss allowance (7,087)
Prepayments for equipment 20,934
Others 2,423
Total $ 23,357
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Hocheng Corporation

Breakdown of notes payable

December 31, 2023 Unit: NTS$ thousand
Client Name Summary Amount Remarks
Related party:
Yuhong Co., Ltd. $ 38,283
Non-related party:
Company A 3,947
Company B 3,179
Company C 2,259
Company D 1,854
Others 941
Subtotal 12,180
Total $ 50,463
Breakdown of accounts payable
Client Name Summary Amount Remarks
Related party:
Bao Long Interior Crafts $ 63,220
Co., Ltd.
Yuhong Co., Ltd. 12,076
Hocheng (China) 3.784
Corporation
Subtotal 79,080
Non-related party:
Own company 47,057
Others 118,147 The balance of a single
supplier has not exceeded
5%
Subtotal 165,204
Total $ 244284
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Hocheng Corporation

Breakdown of other payables

December 31, 2023 Unit: NTS$ thousand
Item Summary Amount Remarks
Salary, annual bonus, and $ 148,189
board wages payable
Labor and health insurance 12,046
payable
Pension payable 3,493
Others 54,718
Total h) 218,446
Breakdown of other current liabilities
Item Summary Amount Remarks

Contract liabilities Advances for products $ 34,682
Income tax liabilities 45,016
Tax payable Business tax 12,244
Temporary credit Provisional advances for taxes, 15,464

labor and health insurance

premiums, and rent
Total $ 107,406
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Hocheng Corporation

Breakdown of operating costs

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Item

Unit: NTS thousand

Cost of sales for self-produced products
Raw materials at the beginning of the period
Add: Incoming stock during the period
Others
Gains on inventory
Less: Transfer to various expenses
Disposals of raw materials
Scrapping
Raw materials at the end of the period
Indirect raw materials
Supplies at the beginning of the period
Add: Incoming stock during the period
Less: Others
Disposals of supplies
Scrapping
Transfer to other equipment
Transfer to various expenses
Supplies at the end of the period
Direct labor costs
Manufacturing expenses
Manufacturing costs
Add: Work in progress at the beginning of the period
Work in progress purchased
Others
Less: Work in progress sold
Losses on inventory
Work in progress at the end of the period
Cost of finished good
Finished good at the beginning of the period
Add: Gain on inventory
Others - Finished good processing
Less: Scrapping
Losses on inventory
Transfer to other equipment
Transfer to various expenses
Others
Finished good at the end of the period
Costs of production and sales
Cost of sales for purchased products
Products purchased at the beginning of the period
Add: Purchases during the period
Gains on inventory
Others
Less: Products purchased at the end of the period
Scrapping
Reclassified to expenses
Losses on inventory
Cost of sales - Products
Disposals of semi-finished good
Disposals of raw materials and supplies
Disposal of supplies and office supply inventory
Cost of sales
Add: Loss on inventory
Processing costs
Inventory scraping losses
Gain from the recovery of inventory write-down or obsolescence
Less: Income from disposal of scraps
Total operating cost
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Amount
Subtotal Total
225,875
536,863
3,180
1
(2,737)
(21,626)
(2,565)
(207.701) 531,290
7,894
70,714
(108)
(138)
(160)
(12,815)
(26,190)
(8,577) 30,620
230,215
476,391
1,268,516
148,516
14,052
11,719
(1,122)
(129)
(165.317) 7,719
1,276,235
567,356
50
1,722
(4,028)
(652)
(16,237)
(12,614)
(26,476)
(537.831)
1,247,525
322,101
1,084,597
37
16,047
(282,011)
(1,590)
(6,294)
(369)
1,132,518
138
21,626
1.122
2,402,929
1,062
5,926
8,343
(5,689)
(655)
h 2,411,916




Hocheng Corporation
Breakdown of marketing expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2023 Unit: NTS$ thousand

Item Summary Amount Remarks
Salary expenses $ 146,189
Advertisement fees 74,822
Freight 28,508
Social charges 24,084

Other expenses

Total

188,623 Any single amount

has not exceeded 5%

$ 462,226

Breakdown of management fees

Item Summary Amount Remarks
Salary expenses $ 63,735
Depreciation 16,588
Social charges 9,061

Other expenses

Total

64,749 Any single amount

has not exceeded 5%

h 154,133
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Hocheng Corporation

Breakdown of R&D expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2023 Unit: NTS$ thousand
Item Summary Amount Remarks
Salary expenses $ 43,061
Depreciation 13,559
Research and experiment 23,511

expenses

Other expenses

29,275 Any single amount

has not exceeded 5%

h 109,406
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VI In the latest annual report up to the printing date, there have been no
instances of financial difficulties affecting the financial condition of the
company or its related enterprises.

VII. Review and Analysis of Financial Position, Financial Performance, and

Risk Assessment
7.1 Analysis of Financial Position
The main reasons and effects of major changes in assets, liabilities, and

shareholders' equity during the past 2 fiscal years:
Unit: NT$ thousands

Year Differences
Item 2022 2023 Amount %

Current Assets 4,245,339 4,683,997 438,658 10.33
Fixed Assets 3,594,970 3,457,571 (137,399) (3.82)
Intangible Assets 37,757 31,279 (6,478) (17.16)
Other Assets 1,986,122 2,421,942 435,820 21.94
Total Assets 9,864,188 10,594,789 730,601 7.41
Current Liabilities 2,477,584 3,358,296 880,712 35.55
Non-Current Liabilities 877,912 509,830 (368,082) (41.93)
Total Liabilities 3,355,496 3,868,126 512,630 15.28
Attributes to Shareholders 6,448,029 6,669,472 201 443 343
of the parent

Capital stock 3,032,800 3,023,037 (9,763) (0.32)
Capital surplus 15,223 16,587 1,364 8.96
Retained Earnings 3,036,828 3,017,205 (19,623) (0.65)
Other Adjustments 376,639 617,424 240,785 63.93
Treasury Stock (13,461) (4,781) 8,680 (64.48)
Non-controlling interest 60,663 57,191 (3,472) (5.72)
Total Stockholders' Equity 6,508,692 6,726,663 217,971 3.35

Explanation of significant changes: (Changes exceeding 20% between periods and amounting to
over 30 million New Taiwan Dollars)

1.Other assets: Due to a significant increase in deferred tax assets and financial assets measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income compared to the same period last year, other assets
increased during this period compared to the same period last year.

2.Current liabilities: Due to a substantial increase in income tax liabilities and other current
liabilities compared to the same period last year, current liabilities increased significantly during
this period compared to the same period last year.

3.Non-current liabilities: Due to the repayment of bank borrowings during this period, non-current
liabilities decreased significantly during this period compared to the same period last year.

4.0ther equity: Due to a significant increase in unrealized gains and losses from holding financial
assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income at the end of the year compared
to the same period last year, other equity increased substantially during this period.

5.Treasury stock: Due to the cancellation of treasury shares during this period, treasury stock
decreased significantly during this period compared to the same period last year.
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7.2 Financial Performance:

The main reasons and effects of major changes in operation revenue, operation
net profit and income before tax during the past 2 fiscal years, providing a sales
volume forecast and the basis therefor, and description of the effect upon the
company's financial operations as well as measures to be taken in response.

Analysis of Financial Performance

Unit: NT$ thousands

Year 2022 2023 Variant Amount Variance
Item (%)

Net Sales 5,004,444 4,870,787 (133,657) (2.67)
Cost of Sales 3,695,789 3,670,621 (25,168) (0.68)
Gross Profit 1,308,655 1,200,166 (108,489) (8.29)
Operating Expenses 1,206,122 1,207,704 1,582 0.13
Operating Income 102,533 (7,538) (110,071) (107.35)
Non-operating Income and 147,697 73,721 (73,976) (50.09)
Expenses

Incorpe 'Before T?X from 250,230 66,183 (184,047) (73.55)
Continuing Operation

Income tax expense 92,098 44,106 (47,992) (52.11)
Profit for the year 158,132 22,077 (136,055) (86.04)

Explanation of Changes in Ratios: (Changes exceeding 30 million and a percentage change

of over 20%)

. Operating Profit: Due to a decrease in gross profit from product sales compared to the
same period last year, coupled with a slight increase in operating expenses, operating
profit decreased significantly during this period.
Non-operating Income and Expenses: Due to a substantial decrease in dividend income
compared to the same period last year, non-operating income and expenses decreased
significantly during this period compared to the same period last year.
Profit before Tax from Continuing Operations: Due to a decrease in gross profit and
dividend income from product sales compared to the same period last year, and with
minimal differences in other factors, profit before tax from continuing operations
decreased significantly during this period compared to the same period last year.

Income Tax Expense: Due to a decrease in gross profit and dividend income from product
sales compared to the same period last year, and with minimal differences in other factors,
resulting in a significant decrease in pre-tax profit, income tax expense decreased during
this period compared to the same period last year.
Net Profit for the Period: Due to a decrease in gross profit and dividend income from
product sales compared to the same period last year, and with minimal differences in other
factors, net profit for the period decreased significantly during this period compared to the

same period last year
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7.3 Review and Analysis of Cash Flow:
7.3.1 Description and Analysis of cash flow changes during the most recent fiscal year (2023),
mainly based on Consolidated information

Unit: NTS$ thousands

Cash and Leverage of Cash
Cash Net Cash Flow Net Cash Flow Net Cash Flow Cash Surplus Deficit
Equivalents, | from Operating from Investing from Financing (Deficit) Investment| Financing
Beginning of |  Activities (2) Activities (3) Activities (4) (DH+2)+(3)+(4)
Year (1) Plans Plans
665,867 1,260,744 166,399 (735,178) 1,372,939 None None
Analysis

(1) Analysis of change in cash flow in the current year:

Operating Activities: The net cash inflow/outflow from operating activities is primarily due to the sales inflow
Investing Activities:. The net cash outflow from investing activities is mainly due to the acquisition of financial

Financing Activities: The decrease in net cash inflow from financing activities was mainly due to repayment of

and adjustments to the profit and loss items during the year.

assets and property, plant, and equipment.

financing borrowings and cash dividends.

(2) Remedy plan for Estimated Cash Deficit and Liquidity Analysis: None.
7.3.2 Remedy for Cash Deficit and Liquidity Analysis: Not applicable.

7.3.3 Cash Flow Analysis for the Coming Year(2024):

Unit: NT$ thousands

Estimated Leverage of Cash
Cash and |Estimated Net Cash|Estimated Net Cash| Estimated Net Cash Surplus Deficit
Cash Flow from Flow from Cash Flow from (Deficit)
Equivalents, |Operating Activities| Investing Activities Financing (1)+H2)+G)H4) Investment| Financing
Beginning of 2 €)) Activities (4) Plans Plans
Year (1)
370,049 184,353 (121,313) (100,461) 332,628 None None
Analysis

(1) Analysis of change in cash flow in the following year:
Operating Activities: Mainly due to the increase in sales revenue and the realization of inventories, which contributes

to the increase in cash inflow. Estimated net cash flow is NT$184,353 thousands.
Investing Activities: Mainly due to the capital expenditure and estimated net cash flow is NT$ 121,313 thousands.
Financing Activities: Mainly due to the payback of long-term and short-term borrowings and cash dividends and
estimated net cash flow is NT$100,461 thousands.
(2) Remedy plan for Estimated Cash Deficit and Liquidity Analysis: None.

7.4 Major Capital Expenditure Items and its Influence:

7.4.1 Review and Analysis of Major Capital Expenditure Items and Source of Capital: Major
capital expenditure of the Company in 2023 is mainly from the purchase of production
equipment, office equipment, and additions to plant and land, which are paid by self-
owned capital without affect to normal operating turnover fund of the Company.

a. Interest Rate Fluctuations

1. Impact on Company's Profit and Loss: In the fiscal year 2023, the global inflationary trend
slightly decreased, with the inflation rate in the United States dropping from 6.40% at the
beginning of the year to 3.40% in December 2023. During this period, interest rates were
raised four times, reaching a range of 5.25% to 5.50%. Additionally, the central bank of our
country raised interest rates by half a percentage point in March of the 2024th year. This
increase brought interest rates to recent highs, impacting the company's operating capital
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costs and resulting in increased interest expenses, which eroded the company's
profitability.

Future Measures by the Company: With interest rates at recent highs, the company
reduced its bank liabilities to near recent lows in the fiscal year2023. However, with an
inevitable increase in electricity prices and an anticipated higher-than-expected Consumer
Price Index (CPI) this year, the central bank's interest rate hikes are aimed at keeping CPI
increases within a manageable range. Therefore, the company is striving to minimize bank
liabilities and reduce interest expenses to maintain profitability in the face of future interest
rate hikes.

b. Exchange Rate Fluctuations

Impact on Company's Profit and Loss: In fiscal year 2023, the New Taiwan Dollar
depreciated against the US Dollar by approximately 4.53% compared to the previous year.
As the company's operations are primarily focused on the domestic market, with export
sales accounting for less than 0.5% and import letter of credit amounts representing less
than 1.5% of the overall procurement amount, exchange rate fluctuations have a limited
impact on the company's profit and loss. However, currency fluctuations still affect
domestic suppliers to some extent. If the depreciation is significant, it increases import
costs for suppliers, which may reflect in their pricing. Therefore, the company coordinates
with suppliers to adjust purchase prices or payment methods to benefit both parties.
Future Measures by the Company: With ongoing conflicts such as the Russia-Ukraine war
and incidents like the Ha attack targeting merchant vessels, there are tightening
constraints in the global supply chain. Raw material prices continue to fluctuate
unpredictably. To mitigate these impacts, the company negotiates with suppliers and
coordinates pricing adjustments if exchange rate fluctuations exceed a certain threshold.
This helps stabilize procurement costs and minimize the impact of exchange rate
fluctuations on profit and loss.

c. Inflation

Impact on Company's Profit and Loss: In fiscal year2023, the Consumer Price Index (CPI)
had an annual growth rate of 2.49%, slightly lower than the previous year's 2.95%, marking
the second-highest in nearly a decade. With recent and anticipated electricity price hikes,
the Statistics Bureau internally estimates that the CPI growth rate for this year (2024) will
rise to 2.03%. The impact of electricity price increases on economic growth is estimated to
be around 0.1 percentage point. In anticipation of inflation, industries are expected to raise
prices, leading to increased costs and affecting company profitability. To prevent inflation
from directly eroding company profits, there are annual plans to strengthen the
management of various cost expenses and execute key strategies to maximize profits for
shareholders.

Future Measures by the Company: Expecting future price increases and global efforts to
reduce carbon emissions, the company continues to improve production processes and
research and develop energy-saving, cost-reducing products. This strategy aims to
minimize the impact of inflation while maintaining a smooth supply chain. The company
collaborates with upstream and downstream manufacturers to jointly develop energy-
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saving, carbon-reducing products, optimizing profitability while contributing to ecological
sustainability and maximizing shareholder interests.

7.5 The company's reinvestment policy for the most recent fiscal year, the main
reasons for the profits/losses generated thereby, the plan for improving re-
investment profitability, and investment plans for the coming year

1. Analysis Table of Reinvestment

December 31, 2023; Unit: thousands

Remarks

2023

Income Reasons for Gain . Investment Plan
Action Plan for the Next 12
(Loss) or Loss Months
Item Amount
Hohong Co., Ltd. NTD | Investment interest Strengthening Looking for
16,127 | and dividend income | understanding of the | investment targets
revenue status of each | with good
investment company, | profitability and low
eliminating the poor | price-to-earnings ratio
and sustaining the
strong, and setting a
profit point.
Ritiboon USD | Gains and losses of Strengthening None
International Limited -5,145 | reinvestment understanding of the
revenue status of each
subsidiary
Hoceng Service NTD | The depression in Enhancing talent Implementing general
Co., Ltd. 4,968 | construction industry | training, surveys of sanitary
and economy, implementing wares by going to
resulting in a slight community security customer’s houses for
decrease in income checks to increase repair, grasping the
and profit. customer sources and | preemptive
saving expenses opportunity of second
services.
Hocheng (China) CNY | 1. Sales performance | 1. To centralize the None
Co., Ltd. -39,276 weakened by the region and the
impact of the products.
pandemic. 2. Enhancing internal
2. Sluggish market management and
and increased controlling
competition. expenses.
3. Utilizing assets and
land
Hocheng CNY | 1.Sales performance | 1. Expanding None
Shanghai -5,129 weakened by the distribution outlets
Corporation impact of the and coordinating the
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pandemic.
2. Sluggish market
and increased

supply chain.
2. Enhancing internal
management and

competition. controlling
expenses.
United Pacific CNY | Affected by the Strengthening the None
Express Trading -656 | epidemic, demand in | development of
Co., Ltd. overseas markets has | overseas market
plummeted
Hocheng PHP | Low Sales, high None None
Philippines 16,862 | cost and expenses.
Corporation
Competition in the
market
Hocheng PHP | Fixed Revenue and | None None
Philippines 156,789 | normal cost.
Property Holding,
Inc.
Bao Long Interior NTD | The main reasons We will continue to | The Kitchen Cabinet
Crafts Co., Ltd. 2,146 | for turning losses strengthen Division's projected
(forme_r Holong into profits are the | management, performance for the
CLJtedre;mlc Co,, expansion of promote profit year 2024 is
' business center system, and | expected to
operations, effective | expand projects increase from 307
performance such as social million to 352
improvement, and | housing million, with

better control of
budgeted expenses
and internal
management.

construction to
enhance individual
and departmental
performance and
profitability.

We will enhance the
development of
energy-efficient
Class 1 gas water
heaters and gas
stoves, and
introduce smart
products to expand
the market.

We will continue
social housing visits
and strengthen site
visits to private
construction sites to
negotiate contracts.
We will integrate
and share resources

operating profit
rising from 2.24% to
over 4%.

In response to
H&C's operational
needs, the
department is
brainstorming new
product ideas for
development. It is
anticipated that
three new products
will undergo
development,
requiring
investment in
production molds,
production tools,
and safety standard
applications.
Implementation of
the annual KPI plan

-327-




with the
kitchenware division
to jointly expand
the market.

includes enhancing
performance
expansion, strict
adherence to
budgetary
constraints, and
reducing inventory
costs.

Integration of Al
computer software
collaboration is
being explored for
marketing and
routine tasks to
improve work
efficiency and
reduce labor costs.
Enhanced media
exposure efforts
aim to secure
exposure and sales
opportunities
through the official
website,
broadcasting
platforms, etc.
New product
development
prioritizes energy
efficiency,
aesthetics, and
intelligence to
enhance quality and
user experience.

Hocheng Group
Holding Corp.

USD
-5,310

Gains and losses of
reinvestment

Strengthening
understanding of the
revenue status of each
subsidiary

None

Swatton
International
Corp.

USD
194

Investment interest
and dividend income

Strengthening the
development of
overseas market

Looking for
investment targets
with good
profitability and low
price-to-earnings ratio

Hocheng
Jianlong
(Shanghai)
Kitchen and

CNY
-552.83

There are many
brands, and the
competition is
fierce.

We are adjusting our
sales strategy to
allocate more
manpower to follow

None
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Bathroom Co., up on potential

Ltd. opportunities, aiming
to increase the
success rate given the
current staffing
conditions.

7.6 The section on risks shall analyze and assess the following matters during the most recent fiscal
year and as they stood on the date of publication of the annual report:
7.6.1. The effect upon the company's profits (losses) of interest and exchange rate fluctuations and
changes in the inflation rate, and response measures to be taken in the future:
a. Impact of Interest Rate Changes:
Impact on Company Profit and Loss: In 2023th year, the global inflation surge slightly declined. In
the United States, the annual inflation rate dropped from 6.40% at the beginning of the year to
3.40% in December. During this period, there were four interest rate hikes, bringing the rates to a
range of 5.25% to 5.50%. Additionally, our central bank raised interest rates by half a percentage
point in March of the 2024th year, pushing bank interest rates to recent highs. This affects the
operating costs of companies by increasing the cost of funds, leading to an increase in interest
expenses and eroding company profits.
Future Response Measures by the Company: With interest rates reaching recent highs, the company
reduced its bank liabilities to near recent lows in the 2023th year. However, an increase in
electricity prices is inevitable, and this year's CPI index is expected to increase higher than
anticipated. With the central bank's interest rate hikes aimed at keeping the CP1 increase within a
manageable range, the company is striving to reduce bank liabilities and minimize interest expenses
in anticipation of future interest rate hikes to maintain profitability.

b. Impact of Exchange Rate Fluctuations:

Impact on Company Profit and Loss: In the 2023th year, the New Taiwan Dollar depreciated by
approximately 4.53% against the US Dollar compared to the previous year. The company's
operations are mainly focused on the domestic market, with exports accounting for less than 0.5%
of total sales and import letters of credit amounting to less than 1.5% of overall procurement. The
impact of exchange rate fluctuations on the company's profit and loss is limited. However, currency
fluctuations still affect domestic suppliers. If the depreciation is significant, it increases the import
costs for suppliers, which may reflect in their pricing. Therefore, the company coordinates with
suppliers to adjust purchase prices or payment methods appropriately to benefit both parties.

Future Response Measures by the Company: In the 2023th year, the conflict between Russia and
Ukraine continued without a ceasefire, and the situation escalated with the conflict in the Strait of
Ha. Indiscriminate attacks on merchant ships have led to tightness in the global supply chain. Raw
material prices continue to fluctuate. To mitigate these impacts, the company has negotiated with
suppliers to set pricing adjustments if exchange rate fluctuations exceed a certain threshold,
stabilizing procurement costs and minimizing the impact of exchange rate fluctuations on profit and
loss.

c. Impact of Inflation:

Impact on Company Profit and Loss: In the 2023th year, the Consumer Price Index (CPI) had an
annual growth rate of 2.49%, slightly lower than the previous year's 2.95%, but still one of the
highest in nearly a decade. With recent electricity price increases and internal estimates from the
Directorate-General of Budget, Accounting and Statistics, the annual CPI growth rate for the current
year (2024th year) is projected to rise to 2.03%. The impact of rising electricity prices on economic
growth is estimated to be around 0.1 percentage point. In anticipation of inflation, industries are
expected to raise selling prices, leading to increased costs and affecting company profitability. To
prevent inflation from eroding company profits directly, there is an annual strengthening of cost
management plans and execution of key strategies to maximize profits for shareholders.

Future Response Measures by the Company: Expecting future price increases and global efforts to
reduce carbon emissions, the company continues to improve production processes, research and
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develop energy-saving, cost-reducing products to minimize the impact of inflation. It also aims to
maintain smooth supply chain operations by collaborating with upstream and downstream
manufacturers to develop energy-efficient, carbon-reducing products. This optimization ensures the
company's profitability while contributing to ecological sustainability and maximizing shareholder
interests.

7.6.2. The company's policy regarding high-risk investments, highly leveraged investments, loans to
other parties, endorsements, guarantees, and derivatives transactions; the main reasons for the
profits/losses generated thereby; and response measures to be taken in the future:

1. The Company did not engage in any high-risk or high-leveraged investments, nor any
derivative commodity transactions.

2. As of the end of December 2023, the total amount of endorsements and guarantees
provided by our company to subsidiaries both domestically and internationally amounted
to NT$219,443,000. The breakdown is as follows:

3. Hochen Corporation, Philippines: NT$219,443 thousands (US$2,000thousands)
and PHP 285,000 thousands.

7.6.3. Research and development work to be carried out in the future, and further expenditures
expected for research and development work:

For future research and development plans, please refer to the research and development plan
in this annual report. For the research progress of the Company, please refer to III Operation
Overview in this annual report, for the achievements of research and development in 2023,
projects have been completed accordingly, mass production launch and selling and marketing
in the market. For 2024, NT$117,690 thousands has been allocated as research expenses to
strengthen the research and development capabilities and enhance the company's
competitiveness.

7.6.4. Effect on the company's financial operations of important policies adopted and changes in the
legal environment at home and abroad, and measures to be taken in response:

The company's daily operations are managed in accordance with relevant laws and regulations
at home and abroad, and always pay attention to domestic and foreign policy development
trends and changes in laws and regulations, to fully grasp the changes in the market and
environment, and proactively propose countermeasures in a timely manner. As of the date of
publication of the annual report, there are no such major events with effect on the company's
financial operations of important policies adopted and changes in the legal environment at
home and abroad.

7.6.5. Effect on the company's financial operations of developments in science and technology as
well as industrial change, and measures to be taken in response:

The company can promptly master industry dynamics and obtain market information ahead of
its peers, so changes in technology and transformation in industry persist a positive impact on
the company.

7.6.6. Effect on the company's crisis management of changes in the company's corporate image, and
measures to be taken in response:

Since its establishment, the company has been committed to maintaining its corporate image
and complying with laws and regulations. As of now, there has been no affairs to affect the
corporate image.

1. In order to advocate the importance of the health, comfort, diversification, and rationalization
of living spaces, we encourage to create a perfect living space suitable for Taiwan’s local and
cultural ideals by creativity, planning, design and construction. The company sponsored the
7" Taiwan Golden Pottery Award held by the Hocheng Cultural and Educational Foundation
of NT$5 million, and expenditures for related activities of design and competition to reward
outstanding local works with creativity and contribution.

2. In order to expand the business level, diversify the risk of a sole product, and accelerate the
transformation of enterprise products, some products that have been actively cooperating in
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technology with academic research units in recent years have entered the mature stage of
research and development, and have started mass production this year.

3. In order to create more superior housing equipment, the company independently researched
and developed new glaze processing technology to introduce worldwide mainstream "nano"
technology into mass production. This is the pioneer in the domestic industry, and it is also
rare in domestic industry that high-tech nanotechnology is used in the daily life of the general
public, and such application of technology will enable the company's products to have better
anti-fouling and antibacterial effects. In addition, the company actively takes the lead in
signing a water-saving strategic alliance with the Institute of Energy and Resources of
Industrial Technology Research Institute, and has established a good cooperation mode to
promote various cooperation topics, including the promotion of green building demonstration
cases, the national standard system and revision of water-saving equipment products, the
exchange of domestic and foreign certification experience in laboratories, the research and
development and promotion of water-saving equipment products, the holding of public
hearings on water-saving-related topics, the development of subsidized replacement plans, and
the acceleration of the replacement of water-saving toilets, and will definitely demonstrate the
effectiveness of water conservation. With "creative” and "active", Hocheng provides a
supreme quality of life to the public, which is helpful to enhance the company's corporate
image. In future, we will fulfill our social responsibilities in line with the corporate spirit of a
listed company and seek the best interests for all shareholders and employees.

7.6.7. Expected benefits and possible risks associated with any merger and acquisitions, and
mitigation measures being or to be taken:

In the most recent year and as of the publication date of the annual report, there is no plan for
the Company to merge and acquire other companies. If there is a plan for mergers and
acquisitions in the future, we will take a prudent attitude and consider whether the merger can
bring concrete results to the company, so as to ensure and protect the original rights and
interests of shareholders.

7.6.8. Expected benefits and possible risks associated with any plant expansion, and mitigation
measures being or to be taken:

While the expansion of production capacity and the plant will cause an increase in operating
costs, the company will face the risk if production capacity cannot be effectively used. In this
regard, the company will pay close attention to market changes, maintain close cooperation
with customers, and adjust expansion plans in a timely manner to mitigate and avoid risks.

7.6.9. Risks associated with any consolidation of sales or purchasing operations, and mitigation
measures being or to be taken:

The company’s main raw materials are generally in an appropriate inventory. If due to force
majeure or emergencies, the company shall be able to seek other domestic and foreign supplies
in response to support. Therefore, although the company’s purchases are concentrated in a few
companies, such concentration of purchases shall not cause the risk of supply shortage or
interruption.

7.6.10. Effect upon and risk to the company in the event a major quantity of shares belonging to a
director, supervisor, or shareholder holding greater than a 10 percent stake in the company has
been transferred or has otherwise changed hands, and mitigation measures being or to be taken:

With respect to the most recent fiscal year as well as the current fiscal year up to the date of
publication of the annual report, there is no instances in which a major quantity of shares
belonging to directors, supervisors, or shareholders holding greater than a 10 percent stake in
the company is transferred or otherwise changes hands; to be compliance with laws and
regulations released in public, the company has removed term of office of supervisors on June
28,2018, and replaced their powers with an audit committee. There are no adverse effects from
this adjustment, with no change in the main operating team nor significant changes in financial
and business conditions, so there are no adverse effects from the adjustment of the supervisor
and the audit committee. In addition to a few reasonable equity trading, the company shall not
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have the risk due to the transfer or changes a major quantity of shares resulting in change of
operation ownerships.

7.6.11. Effect upon and risk to company associated with any change in governance personnel or top
management, and mitigation measures being or to be taken:

The chairman of the company has been involved in the company's operations for a long time.
The management has a strong sense of mission for the company and regards the company's
operation as a lifelong mission. As of the publication date of the annual report, there is no
change in governance personnel or top management, hence there shall be no risk.

7.6.12. Litigious and non-litigious matters. List major litigious, non-litigious or administrative
disputes that: (1) involve the company and/or any company director, any company supervisor,
the general manager, any person with actual responsibility for the firm, any major shareholder
holding a stake of greater than 10 percent, and/or any company or companies controlled by the
company; and (2) have been concluded by means of a final and unappealable judgment, or are
still under litigation. Where such a dispute could materially affect shareholders' equity or the
prices of the company's securities, the annual report shall disclose the facts of the dispute,
amount of money at stake in the dispute, the date of litigation commencement, the main parties
to the dispute, and the status of the dispute as of the date of publication of the annual report :
None.

7.6.13. Other important risks, and mitigation measures being or to be taken:
1. Impact of COVID-19 and mitigation measures being or to be taken:

The COVID-19 epidemic has had an impact on the supply chain of information technology
products recently, and it may accelerate the trend of supply chain transfer and dispersion,
and it will also bring risks to the downward of economic growth of China and the world in
2021. The Group will continue to pay close attention to changes in the overall environment,
flexibly adjust the organization and business while enhancing working capital to cope with
various changes.

2. Supplier strategy adjustment and mitigation measures being or to be taken:

In response to supplier strategic adjustments, the company will integrate and adjust
resources in a timely manner to accelerate the growth of other suppliers and add new and
competitive suppliers and products in order to pursue the company's maximum benefits.

7.7. Other important matters: None
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VI11. Special Disclosure
8.1 Summary of Affiliated Companies

8.1.1 Organizational Structure of Affiliates 2023/12/31
HCG
|
100% 100% 70% 99.6%
0.15%
y \ 4 v
Bao Long Ritiboon Hohong
. Hoceng
Interior Service
Crafts
Co., Ltd. 100%
A4
Swatoon
40% 100%
A4 A 4
Hocheng Philippines Hocheng Group
Property Holding, Inc. Holding Corp.
A
60%
40% 100% 100% 100%
y A v
Triple S Hocheng UniFed Hocheng
(China) Pacific Philippines
100% 50%
A
Hocheng Shanghai Hocheng Jianlong
Corporation (Shanghai)
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